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NOTICE:OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that 73rd Annual General "Meeting of Alpha Insurance
Company Limited will be held on Thursday, May 22nd, 2025 at 11:30 am. at
registered office of the Company situated at 4™ Floor, Building No. 1-B, State Life
Square, |. |. Chundrigar Road, Karachi to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To confirm the minutes of the 72nd Annual General Meeting held on
Wednesday, May 15th, 2024,

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the
Company for the year ended 31st December 2024, along with the Directors’
Report and Auditor's Report thereon.

3. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Window
Takaful Operation of the Company for the year ended 31st December 2024,
along with the Directors' Report and Auditor's Report thereon.

4. To appoint the auditors of the Company, for both Conventional and Window
Takaful Operations for the year ending 31st December 2025 and fix their
remuneration.

* 5. Any other matter with the permission of the Chairman.
By Orders of the Board

f“

Mu ﬁid
Karachi: April 30th, 2025 Company Se ary

Notes:

1, The share transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from May 15th,
2025 to May 21st, 2025 (both days Inclusive)

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint another
member as proxy to attend and vote in the meeting.

3. The instrument appoiﬂtin% a proxy must be received at registered Office of the
Company situated at 4™ Floor, Building No. 1-B, State Life Square, I |
Chundrigar Road, Karachi not later than 48 hours before the time of the
Meeting. A member shall not be entitled to appoint more than one proxy. If a
member appoints more than one proxy and more than one Instrument of proxy
are deposited by a member with the Company, all such instruments of proxies _
shall be rendered invalid.

4, Change of address, if any, should be notified immediately to the Company at 4t
Floor, Building No. 1-B, State Life Square, | .I. Chundn%ar Road Karachi.
ffice: -

Building Mo, 1-B, State Life Square,

Off. I.I. Chundrigar Road, Kagachi-74000.
Tel: 021-32416041-45 Fax:021-32419968
info@alphainsurance.com.pk

www alphainsurance_com.pk
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Directors' Report to Shareholders
For the year ended December 31, 2024

Company Performance

We are pleased to present the 73"Annual Report to our valued shareholders, providing an overview of the
company's performance, strategic initiatives, and financial results for the year ended December 31, 2024. This
report outlines key developments, challenges, and oppertunities that have shaped our business trajectory, along
with our commitment to sustainable growth and shareholder value.

The following are key financial results for the period under review:

Business Overview:

The summarized results along with the same period last year's performance figures are as follows:

%
2024 2023 InGrease/
{Decreas
e)
--- {Rupees) -——-e--m-—m-meuce= -
Premium Written (Conventional) 527,274,070 350,777,631 50.32%
Net premium revenue 369,971,282 246,991,671 49.79%
Net insurance claims (226,208,498) {144,839,791) 56.18%
Net Commission/acguisition cost (94,236,325) (53,866,603) 74.94%
Management expenses (167,571,288) (123,097,962) 36.13%
Underwriting results {127,879,351) (78,894,682) 62.09%
Net investment income 159,373,020 136,870,125 16.44%
Other income 28,697,384 27,541,857 4.20%
Profit brefore tax from erdow Takaful 6,742,280 4,060,882 66.03%
Operations - Operator's Fund
Profit / (loss) before tax 55,079,402 85,387,835 35.50%
Taxation (16,481,911} (35,816,848) 53.98%
Profit / (loss) after tax 38,597,491 49,570,987 22.14%
Earnings/(loss) per share 0.77 0.99 22.22%

The year 2024 marked a significant phase in the company’s growth trajectory, reflected in a notable 50% increase
in both gross and net premiums compared to the previous year. This growth underscores the effectiveness of
the company’s strategic expansion initiatives. However, underwriting losses also saw an increase of 62%,
primarily driven by a 56% rise in claim costs and a 75% surge in acquisition expenses. The expansion of business
activities resulted in a 36% increase in management expenses, largely attributed to the recruitment of new
marketing professionals to support the implementation of the company's growth strategy. /4
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Investment income registeréd an increase of 16%, benefiting from a high-interest rate environment and the
upward momentum in the equity market index. A portion of this income was derived from the realization of
capital gains on equity portfolio classified as available for sale.

During the review period, the company reported an after-tax profit of Rs. 38.57 million, compared to Rs. 49.57
million in the preceding year. The decline in profitability is primarily attributed to the higher claim ratio,
increased acquisition costs, and rising management expenses. A detailed analysis of the claim ratio revealed that
the surge in claims was largely driven by increased activity in the marine and health insurance portfolios.
Nevertheless, management remains confident that both the claims ratio and acquisition costs will be effectively
managed through enhanced underwriting quality, once the business growth strategy is successfully
implemented.

The company ventured into Window Takaful operations in mid-2023. In the current year, the Takaful segment
demonstrated remarkable growth, with gross contributions rising by 114%. The Operator’s Fund recorded a pre-
tax profit of Rs.6.7 million, compared to Rs. 4.0 million in the previous reporting period, signaling a strong upward
trajectory in this segment.

Credit Rating

Credit Rating Announcement VIS has assigned a credit rating of “A+" (Single A Plus) to the company for the fiscal
year 2024-25, with a stable outlook.

Fliture QOutlook

i) Strategic Outlook and Commitment to Growth

Alpha has enjoyed excellent brand equity and success in the past. As we look to the future, we are strategically
planning further strengthening of business fundamentals and significant growth in the short to medium term.
We plan to leverage the company’s strong position and use of technology including but not limited to Al to
capitalize on emerging opportunities. We are well supported by our team of highly skilled professionals and their
proven track record and this will be developed further. We plan to build the organizational capacity including
aggressive marketing to drive sustainable growth and operational excellence.

While our growth and developmental initiatives may mean limited growth in profits in the short term, we
anticipate consistent and sustainable revenue growth. In the medium to long term in accordance with our
business strategy we expect continued revenue and profit expansion based on our strategic initiatives to
broaden product offerings and build on existing strengths. While we recognize the potential risks, including
evolving consumer preferences, competitive dynamics, and regulatory shifts, we are dedicated to proactively
managing these challenges through informed decision-making and adaptive strategies.

iij) Commitment to Stakeholder Engagement and Community Impact
At Alpha Insurance, we prioritize fostering meaningful and enduring partnerships with all stakeholders. Our
commitment to diversity and inclusion extends to every community in which we operate, ensuring that our
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presence is both constructive and beneficial. Guided by a comprehensive community strategy, we actively
engage with local stakeholders to remain well-informed about the demographics and social factors that shape
our business enviranment. '

Stakeholder engagement is integral to our continued success, and we recognize its direct influence on
organizational performance. By maintaining transparent and collaborative relationships with individuals,
organizations, and groups impacted by our business model, we reinforce our dedication to responsible corporate
governance and sustainable growth.

Reinsurance

The reinsurance arrangements for the year 2025 were successfully finalized in the last quarter of 2024. As a
result, the company's underwriting capacity stands at Rs. 1 billion for Fire, Marine, and Engineering classes.

Contingencies and Commitments

The Board has sufficient reasons to believe that the ultimate outcome of contingencies mentioned in note # 21
to the Financial Statements will be in the Company’s favor.

Minimum Paid-up Capital

"The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) has revised the minimum paid-up capital
requirement, mandating an increase to Rs. 1.0 billion by December 31, 2026, Rs. 1.5 billion by December 31,
2028 and further to Rs. 2.0 billion by the end of the year 2030. The company's management is fully committed
to ensuring compliance with these regulatory requirements in a timely manner."

Dividend and Appropriations

While the company is aiming to improve further the underwriting performance, the Directors have decided not
to pay dividends for this year in order to conserve cash for the growth initiatives planned for medium to long
term sustainable and significant growth of the company.

Earnings Per Share

The company's earnings per share have slightly declined to Rs. 0.77 from Rs. 0.99 in 2023. However,
management considers this downturn temporary and remains optimistic about a recovery, driven by the
successful execution of its business growth strategy.
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Auditors

M/s. Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman, the company’s external auditar, has successfully completed their five-year
tenure and is now retiring. The Board of Directors has decided to appoint M/s. BDO lbrahim, Chartered
Accountants, as the new external auditor for the year 2025, with an extension option of up to five years, subject
to mutually agreed terms and conditions.

The Board also expresses its sincere appreciation to the retiring auditors, acknowledging their professionalism
and invaluable contribution to strengthening the company’s internal and financial control systems. Their
expertise and guidance have been instrumental in supporting both the Board and management, and their
services are deeply valued., )

Statement of Directors' Responsibility

« The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its state of affairs,
the result of its operations, cash flows, and changes in equity.

¢ Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained.

« Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of the financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

_* International Accounting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in the preparation of
financial statements. Approved accounting standards comprise such International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standard Board as notified under the Companies
Act, 2017, provisions of and directives issued under the Companies
Act, 2017, the Insurance Ordinance, 2000, and SEC (Insurance) Rules, 2017. Any departure
therefrom has been adequately disclosed.

e The internal control system has been augmented and has provided effective monitoring and controls to
the senior management.

e There is no basis to doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

¢ Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance is attached to these Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2024,

Director’s Remuneration

As per the regulations, our company's policy regarding the compensation of non-executive directors, which
includes independent directors, is that they shall not receive any remuneration unless they attend board
meetings. In such cases, a meeting fee will be paid in accordance with the Company's Article of Associagion to
comply with the regulatory requirements. ;E /
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Board Meetings

During the year Seven (6) meetings of the Board of Directors were held, attendance details are as follows:

Eligible for No. of

Name of Directors Meetings Attended
Mr. Tarig lkram 6 6
Mr. Faisal Mumtaz 6 6
Muhammad Amjad 6 6
Syed Shahnawaz Nadir 6 6
Dr. Lubna Ayub i B 5
Ms. Rafat Sultana b 5

The Board of Directors of Alpha Insurance is pleased to welcome Ms. Rafat Sultana as an Independent Director.
Ms. Sultana, a highly respected legal professional, brings a wealth of expertise to the Board. Her extensive
experience is expected to make a significant contribution, particularly in the company's legal affairs and human
resources matters. We look forward to her valuable insights and leadership in strengthening the company's
governance and strategic initiatives.

Board Committees’ Meetings
Following are the details of the Board Committees’ meetings held during the year:

No. of Meetings

Held
Audit Committee 6
Ethics, HR, Remuneration, Nomination and Procurement Committee 4
Investment Committee 2

Management Committees’ Meetings

Following are the details of the Management Committees’ meetings held during the year:

No. of Meetings

Held
Underwriting, Reinsurance, and Coinsurance Committee 2
Claims Settlement 2
Risk Management, Compliance, and IT Steering Committee 2 ?[
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Pattern of Shareholding

The pattern of shareholding is enclosed in this annual report.

Six Years Kev Data

Six years of key data are enclosed in this annual report.

Acknowledgement

On behalf of the Board, we extend our sincere gratitude to our esteemed clients for entrusting our Company
with their risk management needs, Your confidence in our expertise is the driving force behind our continued
success. We also wish to express our deep appreciation to our valued shareholders, particularly the State Life
Insurance Corporation of Pakistan, for their unwavering support and trust. Their commitment has played a
pivotal role in our growth and achievements.

Furthermore, we acknowledge the invaluable cooperation, guidance, and advice provided by the Securities &
Exchange Commission of Pakistan, the Insurance Association of Pakistan, the State Bank of Pakistan, and our
foreign correspondents and reinsurers, Their contributions have been instrumental in enabling us to deliver
exceptional service and uphold industry standards.

Lastly, we recognize and commend the dedication and hard work of our marketing and back-office staff across
the country. Their efforts throughout the year ending December 31, 2024, have been integral to our continued

Progress.

We look forward to another year of success and collaboration.

For and on behalf of the Board

Dr. Syed Arif Hussain Tariq lkram (Sl)
Chief Executive Officer Chairman

Karachi: April 29, 2025
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Statement of Compliance with the Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance)

Rules, 2013 and Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016.

Name of company:

For the year ended:

Alpha Insurance Company Limited

Alpha

Insurance Company Limited

{Asubsidiary of State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan)

31 December 2024

i.  This statement is being presented to comply with the Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules
(the Rules), 2013 and the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016 (CCG Insurers, 2016) (both herein
referred to as ‘Codes’) issued for the purpose of establishing a framework of good governance, whereby a public
sector company is managed in compliance with the best practices of public sector governance, In case where
there is inconsistency with the CCG Insurers, 2016, the provisions of Public Sector Companies (Corporate
Governance) Rules, 2013 (“Rules™) shall prevail.

li. The Company has complied with the provisions of the Rules in the following manner:

At present, the Board includes:*

Category

Names

Date of
Appointment

Independent
Directors**

Mr. Tariq Ikram

Mrs. Rafat Sultana
Dr. Muhammad Amir
Malik

September 25, 2023

Executive Directors

Non-Executive
Directors

Mr. Faisal Mumtaz
Muhammad Amjad

Dr. Lubna Ayub

Syed Shahnawaz Nadir
Shah

September 25, 2023

S. | Provision of the Rules Rule Y | N
No. no, Tick the relevant box
1. The independent directors meet the criteria of independence, as defined under Ud) v

the

Rules.
2. | The Board has the requisite percentage of independent directors. 3(2) v

Female Directors Dr. Lubna Ayub September 25, 2023
Ms, Rafat Sultana
Ll
It
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E.l Alpha

Provision of the Rules

Rule
no,

Y | N

Tick the relevant box

*During the year, shareholders in their Extra Ordinary General Meeting
held on 25™ September 2023 appointed seven directors through election of
directors on expiry of three years term 2020-23

*% Shareholder also appointed three independent directors in the aforesaid
EOGM. However, subsequently, approvals of six directors except for Mr.
Muhammad Amir Malik have been granted by the SECP. However, approval of
Mr. Muhammad Amir Malik is under process as SECP requires a few
documents.

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as director on more
than five public sector companies and listed companies simultaneously, except
their subsidiaries.

3(3)

The appointing authorities have applied the fit and proper criteria given in the
Annexure in making nominations of the persons for election as board members
under the provisions of the Act.

3(7)

The chairman of the board is working separately from the chief executive of the
Company.

4(1)

The chairman has been elected by the Board of Directors except where
Chairman of the Board has been appointed by the Government.

4(4)

The Board has evaluated the candidates for the position of chief executive on
the basis of the fit and proper criteria as well as the guidelines specified by the
Commission.

5(2)

| (@) The company has prepared a “Code of Conduct” to ensure that

professional standards and corporate values are in place.

{b) The Board has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies
and procedures, including posting the same on the company’s website.
(www.alphainsurance.com.pk)

(¢c) The Board has set in place adequate systems and controls for the
identification and redressal of grievances arising from unethical practices.

5(4)

The Board has established a system of sound internal control, 1o ensure
compliance with the fundamental principles of probity and propriety;
objectivity, integrity and honesty; and relationship with the stakeholders, in the
manner prescribed in the Rules.

5(5)

10.

The Board has developed and enforced an appropriate conflict of interest policy
to lay down circumstances or considerations when a person may be deemed to
have actual or potential conflict of interests, and the procedure for disclosing
such interest.

5(5)
(b)
(i)

11.

The Board has developed and implemented a policy on anti-corruption to
minimize actual or perceived corruption in the Company.

5(5)
(b)
(vi)

12

The Board has ensured equality of opportunity by establishing open and fair
procedures for making appointments and for determining terms and conditions

3(3)
(©

Ay
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E.l Alpha

s.
No.

Provision of the Rules

Rule
no.

Y | N

Tick the relevant box

of service. \

(ii)

The Board has ensured compliance with the law as well as the Company’s
internal rules and procedures relating to public procurement, tender regulations,
and purchasing and technical standards, when dealing with suppliers of goods
and services.

5(5)
(c)
(iif)

14.

The Board has developed a vision or mission statement and corporate strategy
of the company.

5(6)

15.

The Board has developed significant policies of the company. A complete
record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they
were approved or amended, has been maintained.

5(7)

The board has quantified the outlay of any action in respect of any service
delivered or goods sold by the Company as a public service obligation, and
have submitted its request for appropriate compensation to the Government for
consideration.

5(8)

The Board has ensured compliance with policy direction requirements received
from the Government.

5(11)

(a) The board has met at least four times during the year.

(b} Written notices of the board meetings, along with agenda and working
papers, were circulated at least seven days before the meetings.

(c) The minutes of the meetings were appropriately recorded and circulated.

6(1)
6(2)

6(3)

19.

The Board has monitored and assessed the performance of senior management

“on annual basis and held them accountable for accomplishing objectives, goals

and key performance indicators set for this purpose.

§Q)

20,

The board has reviewed and approved the related party transactions placed
before it after recommendations of the audit committee. A party wise record of
transactions entered into with the related parties during the vear has been
maintained.

21

(a8) The Board has approved the profit and loss account for, and balance sheet
as at the end of, the first, second and third quarter of the year as well as the
financial year end.

(b) The Board has placed the annual financial statements on the company’s
website,

10

22

All the board members underwent an orientation course arranged by the
Company to apprise them of the material developments and information as.
specified in the Rules

11

23.

(a) The board has formed the requisite committees, as specified in the Rules.

(b) The committees were provided with written term of reference defining
their duties, authority and composition.

(c) The minutes of the meetings of the committees were circulated to all the

12

Y
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S.
No.

Provision of the Rules Rule Y | N

no. Tick the relevant box

board members. '
(d] The committees were chaired by the following non-executive directors:

Committee Number of | Name of Chair
Members
Audit Committee Four Ms. Rafat Sultana

Risk Management Seven Mr. Faisal Mumtaz
Committee
Human Resources Four Dr. Lubna Ayub
Committee
Procurement Committee Four Ms. Rafat Sultana
Nomination Commitiee Four Dr. Lubna Ayub

24.

The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company 13 v
Secretary and Chief Internal Auditor with their remuneration and terms and
conditions of employment.

23,

The Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary have requisite 14 v
qualification prescribed in the Rules.

26.

The company has adopted International Financial Reporting Standards notified 16 v
by the Commission in terms of sub-section (1) of section 225 of the Act.

o

The directors’ report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the 17 v
requirements of the Act and the Rules and fully describes the salient matters
required to be disclosed.

28.

The directors, CEQ and executives, or their relatives, are not, directly or 18 v
indirectly, concerned or interested in any contract or arrangement entered into
by or on behalf of the company except those disclosed to the company.

28.

(a) A formal and transparent procedure for fixing the remuneration packages 19 v
of individual directors has been set in place and no director is involved in
deciding his/her remuneration.

(b) The annual report of the company contains criteria and details of the v
remuneration of each director.

30.

The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by the chief 20 v
executive and chief financial officer, before consideration and approval of the
audit committee and the Board.

3k

The Board has formed an audit committee, with defined and written terms of 21(1) | v
reference, and having the following members: and
21(2)

Name of Member Category Professional Background
Dr. Lubna Ayub Non-Executive Ph.D. Sociology, Southern

Carbondale 1L.

Director Illinois University,

Head Office: 4
Building Mo, 1-B, State Life Square,
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Provision of the Rules Rule Y | N

no. Tick the relevant box

' Dissertation Title:
“Religion and Women’s
Status Attainment: A
Comparative and
Hierarchical Analysis.”
Mr. Faisal Mumtaz Non-Executive M.A (Economics), Fellow
Director of Society of Actuaries
USA

Mr. Muhammad Amjad | Non-Executive Fellow member of the
Director ICMA International

Ms. Rafat Sultana Non-Executive Masters in Political
Director Science

Masters in Law

The Chief Executive and Chairman of the Board are not members of the audit
comimittee,

32

(a) The chief financial officer, the chief internal auditor, and a representative 213) | v
of the external auditors attended all meetings of the audit committee at
which issues relating to accounts and audit were discussed,

{(b) The audit committee met the external auditors, at least once a year, without .
the presence of the chief financial officer, the chief internal auditor and
other executives.

(c) The audit committee met the chief internal auditor and other members of
the internal audit function, at least once a year, without the presence of
chief financial officer and the external auditors.

(a) The Board has set up an effective internal audit function, which has an 22 v
audit charter, duly approved by the audit committee.

(b) The Chief Internal Auditor has five years of relevant Audit experience. v

(c) The internal audit reports have been provided to the external auditors for
their review.

34

The company has appointed its external auditors in line with the 23
requirements envisaged under the Rules.

E

The external auditors of the company have confirmed that the firm and all its 23(4) | v
partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC)
guidelines on Code of Ethics as applicable in Pakistan.

36,

The auditors have confirmed that they have observed applicable guidelines 23(5) | v
issued by [FAC with regard to provision of non-audit services.

A,
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Further disclosures as required under Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016:

Clause 2(5) of the Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance Compliance) Guidelines, 2013 issued by the
commission requires that any disclosure required under any other director, code, regulation or rules shall also be
made in the statement of compliance, notwithstanding anything contained in the statement. Accordingly, below are
the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016 (CCG Insurers, 2016);

L

The insurer ensures representation of independent non-cxecutive directors and facilitates directors
representing minority interests on its Board of Directors. At present, the Board includes:

Category Names
Female Director Dr. Lubna Ayub
Female Director Ms. Rafat Sultana

All independent directors meet the criteria of independence as laid down under the Code of Corporate
Governance for Insurers, 2016.

All the resident directors of the insurer are registered as taxpayers and none of them has defaulted in payment
of any loan to a banking company. A DFI or an NBF1 or, being a member of stock exchange, has been
declared as a defaulter by a stock exchange.

All casual vacancies that occurred during the year on the Board were filled up by the directors within ninety
days thereof.

The insurer has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the Code of Corporate
Governance for [nsurers, 2016.

The Board has reformed the following management committees after the Board of Directors election held on
25" September 2023:

Underwriting, Re-Insurance & Co-Insurance Commitiee:

Dr. Lubna Ayub Chairperson

Syed Shehnawaz Nadir Member

Ms. Rafat Sultana Member

Dr. Syed Arif Hussain- CEO Member

Mr. Muhammad Irfan — CFO Member

Khawaja Baleegh — Head of Operation Member & Secretary
Claims Settlement Committee:

Mr, Muhammad Amjad Chairman

Mr. Tariq Ikram Member

Dr. Syed Arif Hussain- CEO Member

Mr. Rana Javed — Head of Claims Member & Secretary

a3
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Risk Management, Compliance and IT Steering Committee

Mr. Faisal Mumtaz ‘ Chairman

Mr. Tariq Ikram Member

Dr, Lubna Ayub Member

Dr. Syed Arif Hussain- CEO Member

Mr. Muhammad Rashid - CFO Member

Mr. Liagut Ali Qamar — Head of IT Member

Mr. Umair Sattar — Head of Compliance Member & Secretary

The Board has reformed the following Board Committees under CCG Insurers, 2016 after the Board of Directors

election held on 25th September 2023:

Ethies, Human Resource, Remuneration, and Nomination Committee:

Dr. Lubna Ayub Chairperson
Mr, Tarig Tkram Member
Mr. Muhammad Amjad Member
Dr. Syed Arif Hussain — CEO Member

Mr. Liaqut Ali Qamar — Head HR & Admin Secretary

Investment Committee:

Syed Shahnawaz Nadir Chairman

Mr. Tariq Ikram Member

Ms. Rafat Sultana Member

Dr. Syed Arif Hussain — CEO Member

Mr. Muhammad Rashid — CFO Member & Secretary

The Board has formed an Audit, Procurement and Legal Committee. [t comprises of four members, of whom one
is an independent director and three are non-executive directors. The chairperson of the Committee is an

independent director. The composition of the Audit Committee is as follows:

Audit, Procurement and Legal Committee:

Ms. Rafat Sultana Chairperson
Dr. Lubna Ayub Member
Mr. Faisal Mumtaz Member
Mr. Muhammad Amjad Member
Head of Internal Audit Secretary

6. The terms of reference of the Committees have been formed and advised to the Committees for compliance,

The frequency of meetings of the Committees were as follows:

Committee Frequency
Ethics, Human Resource, Remuneration and Nomination Committee Twice a year
Investment Committee Twice a year

4L
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Audit, Procurement and egal Committee Quarterly

Underwriting, Re-insurance & Co-insurance Committee ; Twice a year
Claim Settlement Committee ‘ Twice a year
Risk Management, Compliance & [.T Steering Committee Twice a vear

7. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function through competent personnel who are considered
suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the
insurer and they are involved in the internal audit function on a regular basis.

8.The Chief Executive officer, Chief Financial Officer, Compliance Officer and the Head of Internal Audit
possess such qualification and experience as is required under CCG Insurers, 2016.The Appointed Actuary of the
insurer (if any) also meets the conditions as laid down in the said Code. Moreover, the persons heading the
underwriting, claim, and reinsurance departments, possess qualification and experience of direct relevance to their
respective functions, as required under section 12 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 (Ordinance No. XXXIX of
2000).

Name of the Person Designation

Dr. Syed Arif Hussain Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Muhammad Rashid Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Muhammad Rashid Company Secretary

Mr. Liaqut Ali Qamar Head of IT
‘Mr. Muhammad Shahbaz Khan Head of Internal Audit
“Mr. Khawaja Balighuddin Head Operation

Mr. Muhammad Adeel Khan Head of Re-insurance
Mr, Muhammad Adeel Khan Head of Underwriting
Mr. Rana Javed Head of Claims

Mr. Muhammad Nadir Head of Takaful

Mr. Liaqut Ali Qamar Head of HR & Admin and Legal
Mr, Akhtar Hussain Actuary

Mr. Umair Sattar Abro Head of Compliance

Following changes in the appointments were made during the reporting period

Name of outgoing Name of incoming Designation Reason of change in
emplovee employee appointment
Mr. Muhammad Irfan | Mr, Muhammad CFO & Company New appointment
Rashid Secretary

8. The statutory auditors of the Company have been appointed from the panel of auditors approved by the
Commission in terms of section 48 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 (Ordinance No, XXXIX of 2000). The
statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given 4 satisfactory rating under the

Al
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10.

14.

(A subsidiary of State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan)

Quality Control Review pmg;‘am of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, that they or any of the
partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and

all its partners are in compliance with the International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code
of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services
and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed [FAC guidelines in this regard.

The Board ensures that the investment policy of the insurer is drawn up in accordance with the provisions of
the CCG Insurers, 2016.

. The Board ensures that the risk management function of the company is in place as per the requirements of the

CCG Insurers, 2016.

. The insurer has set up a risk management function, which carries out its tasks as covered under the Code of

Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016.

. The Board ensures that as part of the risk management system, the insurer gets itself rated from VIS — Pakistan

(credit rating agency) duly licensed by the Commission, which is being used by its risk management
function/department and the respective Committee as a risk monitoring tool. The rating reaffirmed by the said
rating agency on February 1, 2024, is “A+" with a “Stable” outlook.

The Board has set up a grievance department/function, which fully complies with the requirements of the CCG
Insurers, 2016.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHAIRMAN
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Q GrantThornton

Grant Thornton Anjum
Rahman
Review Report to the Members on the 1st & 3rd Floor,
Modern Motors House,
Beaumont Road,

Governance for Insurers, 2016 and The Public Sector Karachi, Pakistan.

Statements of Compliance with The Code of Cotporate

Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013 T

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained
in the Code of Cbrporatc Governance for Insurers, 2016 and the Public Seetor Companies
(Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013 (combined called 'the Codes') prepared by the Board
of Directors of Alpha Insurance Company Limited ("the Company") for the year ended
December 31, 2024.

The responsibility for compliance with the Codes is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Qur responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be
objectively verified, whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the
Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Codes and report if it does not and to
highlight any non-compliance with the requitements of the Codes. A review is limited
primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents
prepared by the Company to comply with the Codes.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding
of the accountng and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an
effective audit approach, We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors'
statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the
effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures
and risks.

The Codes requirc the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their
teview and approval its related party transactions distinguishing between transactions
carried out on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions and
rransactons which are not execured at arm's length price and recording proper justification
for using such alternate pricing mechanism. We are only required and have ensured
compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party
transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We
have not carried out any procedures to determine whether the related party transactions
were undertaken at arm's length price ot not.

Chartorad Accountants grantthornton.pk



Q Grant Thornton

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attenton, which causes us to believe that
the Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in
all material respects, with the best practices contained in the Codes as applicable to the
Company for the year ended December 31, 2024,

G\L,Nb GWL... HHUL— .

Chartered Accountants

Karachi
Date: May 21, 2025
UDIN: CR202410154sv8bjDZdi
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT Grant Thornton Anfim
Rah

TO THE MEMBERS OF ALPHA INSURANCE RSt Pt

COMPANY LIMITED Madern Motors House,

Beaumont Road,

Karachi, Pakistan.
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. T +92 21 35672951-56
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Alpha Insurance Company Limited
(the Company), which comprise the statement of financia

posigon as at December 31, 2024,
and the profit and loss account, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes i equity, the eash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the inancial
statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory
information and we state thar we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to
the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 1o the explanations given to
us, the statement of financial position, the profit and loss account, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement together
with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Insurance Ordiniance, 2000 and
the Companies Act, 2017 (XTX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true
and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at December 31, 2024 and of the profit
and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then
ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Aundirng (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibiliies under those standards are further described in the
Awditer's Responsibitities for the Andit of the Financial Statements section of our report, We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Echics Standards Board tor
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Insutte of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan {the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilites in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained s sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annuzl report, but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon. :
Our Dpinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Chuortared Ascourtants grantthornton.pk
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other informaton is marerially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obrained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. Tf, based on the worl we have performed, we conclude that there is a
miaterial misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard,

Responsibilitics of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentanion of the financial statements
in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), and
for such internal gontrol as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements thar are free from material misstatement, whether due ro fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to poing concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Boards of directors are responsible for oversecing the Company’s financial reporting process,
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issuc an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can atise from fraud or
etror and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepricism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the tisks of material misstaternent of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal conrrol,

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audir
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reascnableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncerminty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. [f we conclude that a matetial uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements o, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our apinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audic evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern,

o EBvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a mannet that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and tming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and whete
applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a)  proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Insurance
Otdinanee, 2000 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the profit and loss account, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement
together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity wirth the Insurance
Ordinance, 2000, the Companies Act, 2017 (XXT of 2017), and are in agteement with the
books of account;

¢) investments made, expenditures incurred and guarantees extended during the year were
tor the purpose of the Company’s business; and

d}  no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of
1980).

The engagement partner on the audic resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Muhammad Khalid Aziz,

Qh\,ﬁﬁ.- ,J\.,....l-\_, \»—- L

Chartered Accountants

Karachi
Date: May 21, 2025
UDIN: AR2024101534Ez16n0acl
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ALPHA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024
2024 2023
Note  =mecmemmeaee {Rupees) -—----ecmee- -
Assets
Property and equipment . 25,457,155 17,610,267
Intangible assets 6 474,405 315,773
Investments '
Equity securities 7 261,746,818 165,355,174
Debt securities 8 587,250,012 298,554,200
Loans and other receivables 9 75,311,758 17,192,556
Insurance / reinsurance receivables 10 192,822 757 137,546,331
Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims 23 122,581,102 101,275,592
Deferred commission expense / acquisition cost 24 26,541,209 24.951,808
Deferred taxation 12 - 1,059,927
Taxation - payment less provisions 13 88,012,879 79,230,408
Prepayments 14 59,192,450 47,285,919
Cash and bank » 15 145,019,709 315,367,626
1,584,410,254 1,205,745,580
Total assets of window Takaful operations - Operator's Fund 16 81,318,308 65,196,853
Total Assets 1,665,728,562 1,270,942.433
Equity and Liabilities
Capital and reserves attributable to Company's equity holders
Ordinaty share capital 17 500,000,000 500,000,000
Reserves 18 132,521,921 61,726,567
Unappropriated profit 194,333,914 156,412,774
Total Equity 826,855,835 718,139,341
Liabilities
Underwriting provisions
Qutstanding claims including IBNR 23 280,599,160 216,793,824
Unearned premium reserves 22 151,064,657 116,171,934
Premium deficiency reserves 15,049,884 5,215,362
Unearned reinsurance commission 24 4,964,011 1,291,035
Retirement benefit 11 1,366,694 -
Deferred taxation 12 33,100,963 .
Premium received in advance 55,395,617 13,577,804
Insurance / reinsurance payables 19 164,136,155 92,049,713
Others creditors and accruals 20 109,547,524 95,389,734
815,224,665 54(),489,466
Total liabilities of window talkaful operations - Operator's Fund 18 23,648,062 12,313,626
Total Liabilities 834,872,727 552,803,092
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,665,728,562 1,270,942.433
Contingencies and commitments 21

The annexed notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statemﬂntsa{? me

Chief Execcutive Officer Dirlcror

-

-

%/

Direcior

Chairman




ALPHA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

2024 2023
Note = - (Rupees) ~-mmmemmeee-.
Net insurance premium 22 369,971,282 246,991,671
Net insurance claims 23 (226,208,498) {144,839,791)
Premium deficiency (9,834,522) (4,081,997)
Net commission and other acquisition costs 24 (94,236,325) (53,866,603)
Insurance claims and acquisition expense (330,279,345) (202,788,391)
Management expenses 25 (167,571,288) (123,097,962)
Underwriting results (127,879,351) (78,894,682)
Investment income 26 159,373,020 136,870,125
Other income 27 28,697,384 27,541,857
Other expenses 28 (8,675,550) {3,798,938)
- 179,394,854 160,613,044
Results of operating activities 51,515,503 B1,718,362
Finance costs ' 29 (3,178,381) (391,400)
Profit bef i 1 = 1
rofit before tax from window takaful operations - Operator’s Fund 30 6,742,280 4,060,882
Profit before tax 55,079,402 85,387,835
Income tax expense 31 (16,481,911) (35,816,848)
Profit after tax 38,597,491 49,570,987
Eamings after tax per share - Basic and Diluted 32 0.77 0.99
The annexed notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.
o~
— "
r—-—'_’
Chief Exccutve Officer Difector Director Chairman



ALPHA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

2024 2023
Note e = (Rupees) ==mmmmmmmmeneee
Insurance premiums received 591,371,955 321,850,008
Reinsurance premium paid - (144,765,271) (69,994,299)
Claims paid 23 (213,851,198) (197,631,335)
Reinsurance and other recoveries received ' 30,142,526 49,674,857
Commission paid (87,446,463) (66,894,605)
Commission received 8,189,285 2,259,080
Management expenses paid (154,025,196) (122,182,972)
Net cash flow used in underwriting activites 29,615,638 (82,919,266)
b) Othet opetating activiries
Income rax paid (19,743,652) {19,262,588)
Other operating payments (8,675,550) (3,798,938)
Other operating receipts (57,533,733) 9,954,669
Payment of retirement benefits - -
Other receipts - 862,020
Payments for Window Takaful Operaton 5,366,241 {51,989,015)
Loans advanced (316,559) 645,935
Net cash flow used in othet operating activities (80,903,253) (63,587,917)
Total cash flow used in all operating activities (51,287,615) (146,507,183)
Investment activities
Profit / remarn received 88,501,185 119,715,062
Dividend received 17,776,076 8,333,901
Payment for investments 36 (768,959,330) (554,633,636)
Proceeds from investments 560,231,932 769,070,180
Fixed capital expenditure (12,451,935) {1,279,450)
Intangibles (341,750) -
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 1,200,000 -
Total cash flow (used in) / generated from investing activities (114,043,822) 341,206,057
Financing activities
Lease payments | (5,016,480)| | (4,777,223)]
Total cash flow used in financing activities (5,016,480) (4,777,223)
Net cashflow from all activities (170,347,917) 189,921,651
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 15 315,367,626 125,445,975
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 15 145,019,709 315,367,626




—-

ALPHA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Reconciliation to Profit and Loss Account
Operating cash flows
Depreciaton expense
Guain on sale of property and equipment
Amortisation
Finance costs
Dividend income
Other Investment Income
Other income
[ncrease in assets other than cash
Decrease in liabilities other than borrowing
Profit aftet taxation

The annexed notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2024 2023
------- ~— (Rupees) -—=-—comemenens
(51,287,615) (146,507,183)
{4,605,047) (4.,954,300)
1,200,000 -
(183,118) (181,124)
(3,178,381) (391,409)
17,776,076 8,333,901
141,596,944 128,536,224
19,777,390 15,577,694
204,456,369 126,338,935
(286,955,127) (77,181,751)
38,597,491 49,570,987

l—-ﬂ‘
/ " 3 /
Chief Executive Officer Difector

Director

Chairman



ALPHA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Profit after tax

Other comprehensive income / (loss)

Irems that will be reclassified to profit and loss
subsequently

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale investments

Net gain transferred to profit and loss on disposal of investments
Related deferred tax

Total change in fair value on available-for-sale investments

Items not to be reclassified to profit and loss
sobsequently

Actuarial (losses) / gains on defined benefit plans

Related deferred tax

Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

The annexed notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive Officer Dircctor

2024 2023
Note e (Rupees) --sm-mmmmmeeeme
38,597,491 49,570,987
106,076,472 21743251
(7,264,702) (50,750,474)
(28,916,416) 8,934,803
70,795,354 (20,072,4200
(952,607) 621,306
276,256 (180,179)
(676,351) 441,127
70,119,003 (19,631,293)
108,716,494 29,939,694

Director

./

Chairman



ALPHA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Balance as at January 01, 2023

Totafl compredensive loss for the year:

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive loss/ (income)

Balance as at December 31, 2023
Balance as at January 01, 2024
Total comprebensive income for the year:
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income /(loss)

Balance as at December 31, 2024

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

The annexed notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.
O.,_._,:h\ -

J

1
_n_u.nm,. m“mnn:.?n Officer

Capital reserve
Revenue reserves
Subtotal U iated
Share Capital Reserve for General reserve  Unrealized Gain on ”_w: $ S Total
: : . eserves profit
exceptional Revaluation of AFS
losses Investment - net
(Rupees)

500,000,000 3,355,000 6,820,000 71,623,987 81,798,987 106,400,660 688,199,647

- - - - - 49,570,987 49,570,987

- - - (20,072,420) (20,072,420} 441,127 (19,631,293)

- - - (20,072,420; (20,072,420) 50,012,114 29,939,694
500,000,000 3,355,000 6,820,000 51,551,567 _m.—un__.m_ﬂm,mm.‘q 156,412,774 718,139,341
500,000,000 3,355,000 6,820,000 51,551,567 61,726,567 156,412,774 718,139,341

- - - - - 38,597,491 38,597,491

- - - 70,795,354 70,795,354 (676,351) 70,119,003

- - - 70,795,354 70,795,354 37,921,140 108,716,494
500,000,000 3,355,000 6,820,000 122,346,921 132,521,921 194,333,914 826,855,835

-~ o
i ’ |
Di m.nﬂa- Director Chairman




8 ALPHA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024
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LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Alpha Insurance Company Limited ("the Company") was incorporated in Pakistan on 24 December 1951 under the
Indian Companies Act VII of 1913 as a public limited company and registered 25 a non-life insurance company by the
Securities and Exchanpe .Commission of Pakistan (SECP) under the Insurance Ordinance, 2000. The Company is
engaged in providing non-life insurance business comprising fire and property, marine, motor, health, credit and
suretyship and miscellaneous. The Company commenced its commercial operations on January 23, 1952,

The registered office of the Company is situated at 4th Floor, Building # 1-B, State Life Square, L. I. Chundrigar Road,
Karachi. The Company has 09 (December 31, 2023: 09) branches in Pakistan. The parent enrity of the Company is State
Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan holding 95.15% (December 31, 2023: 95.15%) shares of the Company.

The Company was granted authorzation on November 21, 2022 under Rule 6 of the Takaful Rules, 2012 to undertake
Window Takaful Operations (WT'O) in respect of General Takaful products by the Secunties and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and the Company has commenced Window Takaful Operations on 11 January 2023,

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan, The accounting and repotting standards comptise of:

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Srandards Board (IASB) as
notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, Insurance Ordinance, 2000, Insurance Rules 2017,
Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017, General Takaful Accounting Regulations, 2019 and Takaful Rules, 2012,

In case requirement differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Act, 2017, the Insurance Ordinance, 2000,
Insurance Rules 2017, General Takaful Accounnng Regulatnons, 2019 shall prevail.

Total assets, total liabilities and profit of the Window Takaful Operations of the Company referred to as the Operaror's
Fund has been presented in these unconsolidated financial statements in accordance with the requirements of Circular
25 ot 2015 dated 09 July 2015. A separate set of financial statements of the General Window Takaful Operations has
been reported which is annexed to these unconsolidated financial statements as per the requirements of the SECP
Takaful Rules, 2012, General Takaful Accounting Regulations, 2019,

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis except for the available-for-sale investments
that has been measured at fair value and the Company's liability under defined benefit plan that is determined based on
present value of defined benefir obligation less fair value of plan assets.Further lease Labilities and their related right-of-
use aseets measured at their present values at initial recogntion, and the company's liability under defined benefit plan is
determined based on present value of defined benefit obligation less fair value of plan assets.

Functional and ptesentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistani rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation
currency.

Standards, interptetations and amendments effective during the current year

The Company has adopted following accounting standards, interpretations and amendments of IFRSs and the
improvements to accounting standards which became effecrive for the current year.
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ALPHA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

2.4

Effective date (annual periods
beginning on or afier)

Amendments

Classification of liabilitics as current ot non-curtent (Amendments to TAS-01) 01-January-2024
Non-current Lizhilites with covenants (Amendment to LAS-01) (1-January-2024
Lease liability in a sale and leaseback (Amendment to IFRS-16) . 01-January-2024
Supplier Finance arrangements (amendment to [AS 7 and IFRS 7) 0-January-2024

These amendments had no or material impact on the Company's financial statements.
Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective
The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017

and the amendiments and interpretations theteto will be effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2025:

- Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (amendments to IFRS 10 and
[AS 28) amend accounting treatment on loss of control of business or assets. The amendments also introduce new
accounting for less frequent transaction that involves neither cost nor full step-up of certain retained interests in assets
that are not businesses. The effective date for these changes has been deferred indefinitely until the completion of a
broader review. Eatly adoption continues to be permitted.

Lack of Exchangeability (amendments to TAS 21) clarify:

- when a currency is exchangeable into another currency; and

- how a company estimates a spot rate when a currency lacks exchangeabiliry.

Further, companies will need to provide new disclosures to help usets assess the impact of using an esamated exchange
rate on the financial statements. These disclosures might include:

- the nature and financial impacts of the curtency not being exchangeable;

- the spot exchange rate used;

- the estimation process; and

- risks to the company because the currency is not exchangeable.

The amendments apply for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025. Barlier application is

permitted,

- Amendments to the Classification end Measurement of Financial Instruments - Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial
[nstruments and IFERS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures; and

- Financial Assets with ESG-linked features.

Under IFRS 9, it was unclear whether the contractual cash flows of some financial asset with ESG-linked features
represented SPPL This could have resulted in financial assets with ESG-linked features being measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

Although the new amendments are more permissive, they apply to all contingent fearures, not just ESG linked
features. While the amendments may allow certain financial assets with contingent features to meet the SPPI criterion,
companies may need to perform additional work to prove this. Judgement will be required in determining whether the
new test is met.

The amendments introduce an additional SPPI test for financial assets with contingent features thar are not related

directly to a change in basic lending risks or costs - e, where the cash flows change depending on whether the
borrower meets an ESG rarget specified in the loan contract.

The amendments also include addidonal disclosures for all financial assets and financial habilittes that have cettain
contingent features that are:

- not related directly to a change in basic lending nisks or costs; and

- are not feasured at fair value through profit or loss.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024
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The amendments apply for reporting periods beginning on ot after 1 January 2026, Companies can choose to ecarly-
adopt these amendments (including the associated disclosure requitements), separately from the amendments for the
recognition and derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities,

- Recognition / Derecognition requirements of financial assets / liabilities by electronic payments:

The amendments to IFRS 9 clarify when a financial asset or a financial liability is recognised and derecognised and
provide an exception for certain financial liahilitics settled using an electronic payment system. Companies generally
detecognise their trade payables on the settlement date (i.e. when the payment is completed). However, the amendments
provide an exception for the derecognition of financial liabilities. The exception allows the Company to derecognise its
trade payable before the settlement date, when it uses an electronic payment system that meets all of the following
criteria;

- no practical ahility to withdraw, stop or cancel the payment instruction;

- no practical ability to access the cash to be used for settlement as a result of the payment instruction;

the settlement risk associated with the electronic payment system is insignificant; and

- other related amendments.

Contractually linked instruments (CLIs) and non-recourse features:

The amendments clarify the key charactenstics of CLIs and how they differ from financial assets with non-recourse
features. The amendments also include factors that a company needs to consider when assessing the cash flows
underlying a financial asset with non-recourse features (the look through’ test).

- Disclosures on investments in equity instruments:

The amendments require additional disclosures for investments in equity instruments that are measured ar fair value
with gains or losses presented in other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The amendments apply for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026. Eatlier application is permitted
Annual improvements to TFRS Accounting Standards — Amendments to:

- IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Internadonal Financial Reporting Standards;

- IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and it's accompanying Guidance on implementing
- IFRS 9 Financial Instruments;

- IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements; and

- IAS 7 Statement of Cash flows.

The amendments to IFRS 9 address:

A conflict berween IFRS 9 znd IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers over the initizl measurement of trade
receivables: Under IFRS 15, a trade receivable may be recognised at an amount that differs from the transaction price
e.g when the transaction price is vadable. Conversely, IFRS 9 requires that companies initially measure trade receivables
without a significant financing component at the transaction price. The IASB has amended IFRS 9 to require companies
to initially measure a trade receivable without a significant financing component at the amount determined by applying

IFRS 15; and
- how a lessee accounts for the derecognition of a lease liability under patagraph 23 of IFRS 9:

When lease hiabilities are derecognised under IFRS 9, the difference berween the carrying amount and the consideration
paid is recognised in profit or loss.

The amendment on trade receivables may require some companies to change their accounting policy.

The amendments apply for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026. Earlier application iz
permitted.

The amendment on derecognition of lease liabilites applies only to lease liabilities extinguished on or after the
beginning of the annual reporting perod in which the amendment is first applied.
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241 SECP vide its SRO 1715 dated 21 November 2023 directed the application of IFRS 17 for the period

31
311

commencing from 1 January 2026,

-IFRS 17 - 'Insurance contracts' has been notified by the IASB to be effective for annual periods beginning on ot after
January 1, 2023, however it is yet to be notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan. In addition,
the Company has opted fot the temporary exemption from the application of IFRS 9 as allowed by the International
Accountng Standards Board (IASB) for entities whose activities are predominantly connected with insurance. Further
details relating to the temporary exemption from the application of IFRS 9 are given in the notes below.

The management is in the process of assessing the impacts of these standards and amendments on the financial
statemnents of the Company.

Temporary Exemption from the Application of IFRS 9 (Financial Instruments)

As an insurance company, the management has opted for the temporary exemption from the application of IFRS 9 as
allowed by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) for entities whose activities are predominanty
connected with insurance as the percentage of the toral carrying amount of its liabilities connected with insurance
relative to the total carrying amount of all its liabilities is greater than 90 percent and the Company doesn't engage in
significant activitics unconnected with insurance based on historical available information. Additional diselosures, as
tequired by LASB, for being eligible to apply the temporary exemption from the application of TFRS 9 are as follows:

December 31, 2024

Fail the SPPI test Pags the SPPI test
Fair value Change in Carrying Cost less Change in
unrealized gain value Impairment  unrealized gain
/ (loss) during / (loss) during
the year the year

Financial assets {(Rupees)
Cash and bank* 5,884,188 - 139,124,635 - -
Investments in equity sccurities

- available for sale 261,746,818 106,976,472 " - -
Investments in debr securities -

- held to maturity - - 587,250,012 587,250,012 -
Loans and other recetvables® 75,311,758 = - - -
Total 342,942,764 106,976,472 726,374,647 587,250,012 -

December 3, 2024
Gross carrying amounts of debt instruments that pass the SPPI test
AAA AA+ AA A Unrated
{Rupees)
Investments in debt secuntes -

held to marurity - - - - 587,250,012
Loans and other receivables® = - = = =
Total - - - - 587,250,012

* The carrying amount of these financial assets measured applying IAS 39 are a teasonable approximation of their fair
values.
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below:
Property and Equipment
Operating assets

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulared impairment losses (if any). Historical cost
includes expenditure that are directly attmbutable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs ate included in the
assct's carrying amount or recognised as 4 separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Normal
repairs and maintenance expenditure is charged to the profit and loss account as and when these are incurred.
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Depreciation is chatged to the profit and loss account using the straight line method whereby the depreciable amount of
an asset is written off over the estimated uscful life in accordance with the rates specified in note 5 to the financial
statements, The assets' residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate,
at each reporting date. Depreciation is charged on additions from the month of acquisition and on disposals up to the
month of disposal. ’

An ttem of operating assets is derecognised upon disposal and when o economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Gains or losses on disposal of tangible assets are taken to the profit and loss account in the period in which
disposals are made.

Right of use assets

The right-of-use asset is initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease lability, any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle. and
remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentive
received. The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight line basis over the lease term. The right-of-use assets is
reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The Company has elected to.apply the practical expedient not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liahilities for
short term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The lease payments
associated with these leases is recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term.

The profit ot loss on disposal or termination of an assct represented by the difference between the remaining lease
liability and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized as other operating income or expense. Refer note 3.24 for
impairment of non fnancial asset.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets having finite useful lives are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accurnulared impaitment
losses, if any. These are amortised using the straight line method over their estimated usefil lives. The useful lives and
amortization methods are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each repotting date.

Subsequent costs arc included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as approprate, only when
it 1s probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably.

Gains or losses on disposal of intangible assets are taken to the profit and loss account in the petiod in which disposals
are made.

Insurance contracts

Insurance contracts are those contracts where the Company has accepted significant insurance risk from the insurance
contract holders agree to compensate the insurance contract holder on the occurrence of a specified uncertain furure
event (the insured event) that adversely affects the insurance contract holder under the terms and conditions of the
contract. Insurance contracts issued by the Company are generally classified in four basic categores i.e. fire and property
damage, marine, aviation and transport, motor and miscellaneous.

Contracts are issued to mylaple types of clients with business in engineering, automobiles, cement, power, textile, papet,
agriculture, services and tracing sectors ete. and individuals as well. The tenure of these insurance contracts depends
upon terms of the policies written and varles accordingly, Nonetheless, once a contract has been classified as an
insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for the remainder of its liferime, even if the insurance risk reduces
significantdly duting this period, unless all rights and liabilities ate extinguished or expired.

The classification of an insurance contract / policy into the aforementioned categories is based on management's
Judgment regarding the incident / cause of loss effecting the majority of asset(s) insured under the insurance contract.
The Company performs its segment teporting activities based on the classifications of insurance contracts made, s
disclosed in note 35 to these financial statements.
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a) Fire and property damage;

i} Insurance risks and events insured

Insurance is provided to the insurance contract holders against damages caused by fire, earthquake, rior and strike,
explosion, atmospheric disturbance, flood, electric fluctuation and impact and burglary etc. and loss of profit followed
by the incident of fire. These insurance contracts are normally availed by commercial organizations, however are
available to both commercial organizations and individuals.

if) Revenue recognition policy

Prermium income including administrative surcharge is recognized over the period of insurance from the date of the
issue of the policy / cover norte to which it relates, to its expiry. For direct insurance business, premium is recognized
evenly over the period of the policy and for proportional reinsurance business, evenly over the petiod of underdying
insurance policies. Where the pattern of incidence of risk varies over the petiod of the policy, premium is recognized as
revenue in accordance with the pattern of the incidence of risk. Premiums for policies receivable in installments are
recognized as receivable at the inception of the policy and is recognized as income over the petiod of the policy. The
gross premium underwritten is adjusted against the unearned premium reserves / liabilides existing at each reporting
date to determine the net premium underwritten during the year.

Revenue from premium is determined after taking into account the uneared pottion of premium. The unearned
portion of premium income is recognised as a liability .

In addifion to direct insurance, at times the Company also participates in risks under coinsurance from other companies
and also accepts risks thtough reinsurance inward by way of facultative acceptances on case to case basis provided such
risks are within the underwriting policies of the Company. Premium recognized against coinsurance policies is limited to
the share of the Company only. The narure of the risks undertaken under such arrangement is consistent with the risks
in each class of business as stated above.

Administrative surcharge represents documentation and other charpes recovered by the Company from insurance

contract holdet in respect of policies issued, at the rate of 5% of the gross premium written restricted to 4 maximum of
Rs. 2,000 per policy.

iii} Claims recognition

Claim Hlability against losses incurred are recognized at the time of the incident giving nise to the claim, except otherwise
expressly indicated in the insurance contract. A claim generally includes the loss resulting from the incident, along with
claim handling costs that are directly related to the processing / settling the claims, net of any salvage recoveries and any

adjustments to claims oustanding from previous years. In addition to reported claims, the liability also includes
provisions made under IBNR and expected claims settlernent costs.

b) Marine, aviation and transport;
i} Insurance risks and events insured

Insurance is provided to the insurance contract holders agamnst loss of or damage to cargo while in transit to and from
foreign lands and inland transit due to varous insured perils including loss of or damage to carrying vessel etc. This
product is normally provided to commercial organizations. These insurance contracts are normally availed by
commercial organizations, however are available to both commercial organizations and individuals.

ii) Revenue recognition policy

Premium income including administrative surcharge is recognized over the period of insurance from the date of the
issue of the policy / cover note to which it relates, to its expiry. For direct insurance business, premium is recognized
evenly over the period of the policy and for proportional reinsurance business, evenly over the period of underlying
insurance policies. Where the pattern of incidence of risk varies over the petiod of the policy, premium is recognized as
revenue in accordance with the pattern of the incidence of risk. Premiums for policies receivable in installments are
recognized as receivable at the inception of the policy and is recognized as income over the period of the policy. The
gross premium underwritten is adjusted against the unearned premium reserves / liabilities existing at each reporting
date to determine the net premium underwritten during the year,

Revenue from premium is determined after taking into account the unearned pottion of premlurn The unearned
portion of premium incorme is recognised as a hability .
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In addition to direct insurance, at times the Company also participates in risks under coinsurance from other companies
and also accepts risks through reinsurance inward by way of facultative acceptances on case to case basis provided such
risks are within the underwtiting policics of the Company. Premium recognized against coinsurance policies is limited to
the share of the Company only. The nature of the rsks undertaken under such arrangement is consistent with the risks
in each class of business as stated abave.

Admumistrative surcharge represents documentation and other charges recovered by the Company from insurance
contract holder in respect of policies issued, at the rate of 5% of the gross premium written restricted to a maximum of
Rs. 2,000 per policy,

iii) Claims recognition

Claim against losses incutred are recognized at the time of the incident giving rise to the claim, except otherwise
expressly indicated in the insurance contract. A claim generally includes the loss resulting from the incident, along with
claim handling costs that are directly related to the processing / settling the claims, net of any salvage recoveries and any
adjustments to claims outstanding from previous years. In addition to reported claims, the liability also includes
provisions made under IBNR and expected claims sertlement costs,

c) Motor

i) Insurance risks and events insured

Insurance 1s provided to the assets of the insurance contract holders against accidental damage to or loss of insured
vehicle including loss of or damage to third party and other comprehensive car coverage. This product is notmally
provided to individual customers. These insurance contracts are normally availed by commercial organizations, however
are available to both commercial organizations and individuals.

ii) Revenue recognition policy

Premium income including administrative surcharge is recognized over the period of insurance from the date of the
issue of the policy / cover note to which it relates, to its expiry. For direct insurance business, premium is recognized
evenly over the period of the policy and for proportional reinsurance business, evenly over the period of undetlying
insurance policies, Where the pattern of incidence of risk varies over the period of the policy, premium is recognized as
revenue in accordance with the pattern of the incidence of risk. Premiums for policies receivable in installments are
recognized as receivable at the inception of the policy and is recognized as income over the period of the policy. The
gross premium underwritten is adjusted apainst the unearned premium reserves / liabilities existing at each reporting
date to determine the net premium underwritten during the year.

Revenue from premium is determined after taking into account the unearned portion of premium. The uneamed
portion of premium income is recognised as a liability .

In addition to direct insurance, at times the Company also participates in risks under coinsurance from other companies
and also accepts tisks through reinsurance inward by way of facultative acceptances on case to case basis provided such
tisks are within the underwriting policies of the Company. Premium recognized against coinsurance policies is limited to
the share of the Company only. The nature of the risks undertaken under such arrangement is consistent with the risks
in each class of business as stated above,

Adminsstrative surcharge represents documentation and other charges recovered by the Company from insurance

contract holder in respect of policies issued, ar the rate of 5% of the gross premium written restricted to a maximum of
Rs. 2,000 per policy.

iif) Claims recognition

Claim against losses incurred are recopnized at the time of the incident giving rise to the claim, except otherwise
expressly indicated in the insurance contract. A claim generally includes the loss resulting from the incident, along with
claim handling costs that are directly related to the processing / settling the claims, net of any salvage recoveries and any
adjustments to claims outstanding from previous years, In addition ro reported claims, the liability also inchides
provisions made under IBNR and expected claims settlement costs.
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d) Miscellaneous
i) Insurance tisks and events insured

Insurance is provided to the assets of insurance contract holders against damage / loss occurring due to burglary, loss of
cash in safe, cash in transit and cash on counter, health, travel and crop etc. As per guidance of Insurance Accounting
Regulations, 2017 amounts constituting less than 10% of the gross premium revenue are clubbed together under this
class of insurance contract. Normally personal insurance contracts'e.g. vehicle, travel, personal accident, etc. are
provided to individual customers, wheteas, insurance contracts of loss of cash in safe, cash in transit and cash on
counter and health are provided to commercial organizations.

ii) Revenue recognition policy

Premium income including administrative surcharge is recognized over the period of insurance from the date of the
issue of the policy / cover note to which it relates, to its expiry. For direct insurance business, premium is recognized
evenly over the period of the policy and for proportional reinsurance business, evenly over the peried of underlying
tnsurance policies, Where the pattern of incidence of risk varics over the period of the policy, premium is recognized as
revenue in accordance with the pattem of the incidence of risk. Premiums for policies receivable in installments are
recognized as receivable at the inception of the policy and is recognized as income over the period of the policy. The
gross premium underwritten 15 adjusted against the uneatned premium resetves / liabilities existing at each reporting
date to determine the net premium underwntten during the year,

Revenue from premium is determined after taking into account the unearned portion of premium. The unearned
pottion of premium income is recognised as a liability .

Ini addition to direct insurance, at times the Company also participates in risks under coinsurance from other companics
and also accepts risks through reinsurance inward by way of facultative acceptances on case to case basis provided such
risks are within the underwriting policies of the Company. Premium recognized against coinsurance policies is limited o
the share of the Company only. The nature of the risks underraken under such arrangement is consistent with the risks
in each class of business as stated above,

Administrative surcharge represents documentation and other charpes recovered by the Company from insurance

contract holder in respect of policies issued, at the rate of 5% of the gross premium written restricted to a maximum of
Rs. 2,000 per policy.

iii) Claims recognition

Claim against losses incutred ate recognized at the time of the incident giving tise to the claim, except otherwise
expressly indicated in the insurance contract. A claim generally includes the loss resulting from the incident, along with
claim handling costs that are ditectly related to the processing / settling the claims, net of any salvage recoveries and any

adjustments to clims outstanding from previous years. In addition to reported claims, the hability also includes
provisions made under IBNR and expected claims settlement costs.

Detailed accounting policies for recording and measurement of reinsurance contracts held, receivables / payables related
to insurance contracts and provision for outstanding claims including Incurred Bur Not Reported (IBNR) are
mentioned in note 3.9 and 3.20, respectively.

Commission
Deferred commission expense / Acquisition Cost

Commission expense and costs incurred in obtaining and recording policies are deferred and recognised as an asser and
are recognised in the profit and loss account as expenses in accordance with the pattern of recognition of premium
income,

Unearned Commission income

Commission income from reinsurers is recognised at the dme of issuance of the underlying insurance policy by the
Company. This income is deferred and brought to account as revenue in accordance with the pattern of recognition of
the reinsurance premium to which it relates. -
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Premium

Premium received / receivables under a policy s recognised as written from the date of attachment of the policy to
which it relates, Premium income under 2 policy for direct businesses is recognised over the period of insurance from
inception to expiry evenly over the period of the policy.

Premium income also includes administrative surcharge that represents documentation and other charges recovered by
the Company from policy holders in respect of policies issued, at the rate of 5% of the premium written restricted to 2
maximum of Rs. 2,000 per policy. Administrative surcharge is recognised as premium at the time the policies ate written.

Receivables under insurance contracts are recognised when due, at the fair value of the consideration receivable less
provision for doubtful debts, if any. If there is objective evidence that the receivable is impaired, the Company reduces
the carrying amount of the receivable accordingly and recognises that impairment loss in the profit and loss account.

Uneamed premium reserve

Unearned premium reserve represents the portion of premium written relating to the unexpired period of coverage and
is recognised as a liabilicy by the Company. This liability is calculated by determining the ratio of the unexpired period of
the policy as specified in the Insurance Rules, 2017.

Premium deficiency reserve

The cumulative unearned premium reserve for any classes of business is not adeguate to meet the expected future
liability, after reinsurance, from claims and other supplementary expenses, including reinsurance expense, commissions
and other underwriting expenses, expected to be incurred after the reporting date in respect of policies in that class of
business in force at the reporting date, a premium deficiency reserve is recognised as a liability to meet the deficit. The
movement in premium deficiency reserve is recorded as an expense / income in the profit and loss account for the year.

For this purpose, loss ratios for each class are estimated based on historical claims development. Judgment 15 used in
assessing the extent to which past trends may not apply in furure or the effects of one-off claims. Further, actuarial
valuation has been carried out to determine the amount of premium deficiency reserve in respect of all class of business.

Reinsurance contracts held

The Company entets into reinsurance contracts in the normal course of business in order to limit the potential for
losses anising from certain exposures. Outward reinsurance premiums is accounted for in the same period as the relared
premium for the direct business being reinsured. Reinsurance premium is recognised as expense after taking into
account the proportion of deferred premium expense which is caleulated using pattern similar to caleulation of premium

income for the same policy. The deferred pottion of premium expense is recognised as prepaid reinsurance premium
ceded.

Remsurance liabilides represent balances due to reinsurance companies. Amouats payable are estimated in a manner
conststent with the related reinsurance contract. Reinsurance assets represent balances due from reinsurance companies.
Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in 4 manner consistent with the provision for outstanding claims or
settled claims associated with the reinsurance policies and are in accordance with the related reinsurance contracts.

Reinsurance assets are not offset against related insurance liabilities. Income ot expenses from reinsurance contracts are
not offset against income or expenses from related insurance contracts.

Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognised when the contracrual rights are extinguished ot expired.

The Company assesses its reinsurance assets for impaitment on each reporting date. If there is an objective evidence
that the reinsurance asset is impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount of the reinsutance asset to its
recoverable amount and recognises that impairment loss in the profit and loss account,

Receivables and payables related to insurance contracts

Receivables including premium due but unpaid, relating fo insurance contracts are recognised when due. The elaim
payable is recorded when intimation is received. These are recognized at cost, which is the fair value of the
consideration given less provision for impairment, if any. Premium received in advance is recognised as Liability till the
time of issuance of insurance contract there apainst.

1f there 15 an objective evidence that any premium due but unpaid is impaired, the Cotnpany reduces the carrying
amount of that insurance receivable and recopnizes the loss in profit and loss account.
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3.15

Creditors, accruals and provisions

Liabilities for other creditors and accruals are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in
future for goods and / or services received, whether or not billed to the Company.

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligations and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims

Claims recoveries against outstanding claims from the reinsurer and salvage are recognized as an asset at the same time
as the claims which give rise to the right of recovery are recognized as a liability and are measured at the amount
expected to be received.

Salvage recoveries accrued
Salvage recoveries are recognized as an asset and measured at the amount expected to be received.

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a cofnponent of the Company that engages in business actvities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses. The Company presents segment reporting of opetating results using the classes of
business as specified under the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and Insurance Rules, 2017 as the primary reporting formar.

The Company has five primary business segments for reporung purposes namely fire and property damage, marine
aviation and rransport, motor, accident and health and credit and suretyship.

Investment and income taxes are managed on an overall basis and are, therefore, not allocated to any segment.

Assets and liabiliries are allocared to particular segments on the basis of gross premium written during the year. Those
asscts and liabilities which cannot be allocated to a particular segment on a reasonable basis are reported as unallocated
corporate assets and lizbilities.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for cash flow purposes include cash in hand, policy and revenue stamps, bond papers and
bank balances in current and saving accounts.

Revenue Recognition

{a) Premium income under a policy is recognised over the period of insurance contract from the date of inception of
the policy to which it relates till the expity in case of marine cargo business whereas, for all other cases of premium,
income is recognised as a difference between total prermium written and provision for unearned premium.

(b) Commission income is taken to the profit and loss account on 4 time propottionate hasis in accordance with the
pattern of recognition of reinsurance premium to which it relates.

{¢) Administrative surcharge récovered by the Company from policy holders is included in income.

(d) Income from held-to-maturity investments is recognised on time proportion basis taking into account the effective
yield on the investment. The difference between redemption and purchase price of the held-to-marurity investment
is amortised and recognised in the profit and loss account over the term of invesment.

(¢) Dividend income is recognised when the tight to receive such dividend is established,

(f) Gain / (loss) on sale of investments is included in the profit and loss account in the period of sale.
(g) Return on bank balances is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the effective yield.

{h) Reinsurance premium is recognized as expense after taking into account the proportion of prepaid reinsurance
premium which is tecognized as a proportion of the gross reinsurance premium of each policy, determined as the
ratio of the unexpired period of the policy and the total period, both measured o the nearest day.
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3.20

Investments
Recognition and classification

All investments are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given and include transaction
costs except for investents held for trading in which wansaction cost 1s charged to profit and loss account. All
purchases and sales of investments that require delivery within the time frame established by regulatons or market
convention are accounted for at the trade date. Trade date is the date when the Company commits to purchase or sell

The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial asset is acquired, the Companyelassified investments
as follows:

-In equity securities - available for sale

-In debt securities - available for sale
Measurement

Available-for-sale

Investments which are not eligible to be classified as at held for trading, or held to maturity are classified as available-for
sale. Further, Tnvestments which at the time of acquisition are intended to be held for an undefined penod of time but
may be sold in response to the need for liquidity or changes in interest rates are classified as available-for-sale.

Subsequent to initial measurement, these are remeasured at fair value. Surplus / deficit on revaluation from one
reporting date to other is taken to other comprehensive income in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. On
derecognition or impairment of available-for-sale investments, the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in other
comprehensive income is transferred to profit and loss for the period within Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Whereas, any reversal in impairment is taken in Statement of Comprchensive Income.

Impairment against financial assets

When the decline in value of an equity security is significant or prolonged, the decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is considered as an objective evidence of impairment. In case of impairment of available-for-sale equity
securities, the cumulative loss previously recognised in the statement of comprehensive income is temoved there from
and included in the profit and loss account. Impairment losses recognised in the profit and loss account on equity
securities ate only teversed when the equity securities are derecognised.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial Liabilities are offset and the net amount is teported in the financial statements only when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realisc the assets and settle the Liabilities simultaneously.

Compensated absences

The liability towards compensated absences accumulated by the eligible employees is provided in the period in which
they are earned,

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation
as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be requited
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. However, provisions are reviewed at each
repotting date and adjusted to management's best estimate.

Provision for outstanding claims (including IBNR)

Provision for outstanding claims include amounts in relation to unpaid reported claims, claims incurred but not reported
{(IBNR) and expected claims settlement costs.

Outstanding claims

The amount of claims that have been reported and are yet unpaid or partially unpaid at the end of reporting year for a
given accident year.
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A liability for ourstanding claims (claim incurred) is recagnized for all claims incurred which represents the estmates of
the claims intimated or assessed before the end of the repornng period and measured at the undiscounted value of
expected future payments. Provision for liability in respect of unpaid reported claims is made on the basis of individual
case estimates while taking into consideration the past claims settlement experience including handling costs and the
Company’s reserving policy. Where applicable, deductions are made for salvage and theit tecoveries.

Reinsurance recoveries against owstanding claims and salvage recoveéries are recognized as an asset and measured at the
amount expected to be recelved.

Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) Claims
The losses that have incurred or are in the occurrence petiod at the end of reporting year and have not been intimated

to the Company by that end of reporting year, or if reported, complete details are nor available to the Company, so as to
ascetfain the amount of loss for that claim as claims outstanding,

The provision for claims incurted but not reported (IBNR) is made at the financial statement date. The Company takes
actuarial advice for the determination of IBNR claims. IBNR claims have been estimated using Chain Ladder (CL)
methodology. The Chain Ladder (CL) Method involves determination of development factors or link ratios for each
period. These are then subsequently combined to determine Cumulative Development Factor (CDF), which represents
the extent of future development of claims to reach their ultimate level,

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the profit and loss
account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in the statement of comprehensive
income, in which case it is recognised in equity or in the statement of comprehensive income respectively.

Cutrent tax

Provision for curtent taxation is based on taxable income determined in accordance with the prevailing law for taxation
of income and is calculated using enacted ot substantively enacted rates of taxation after taking into account available
tax credits and rebates, if any. The charge for the current taxation also includes adjustments where necessaty, relating to
priot years which arise from assessments framed / finalised during the year or required by any other reason.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised using the statement of financial position liability method for all temporary differences
between the amounts attributed to assers and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amouats used for
taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax recognised is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement
of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates enacted at the financial statement date,

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will beavailable against
which the asset can be utilised. Deferted tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable thar the related
tax benefit will be realised.

Staff retirement benefits

Defined benefit plan - Gratuity Scheme

The Company operates an approved and funded gratuity scheme for employees whose period of service with the
Company 1s five years or more. The liability / (asset) recognized in the balance sheet is the present value of defined
benefit obligation at the reporting date less fair value of plan assets. The defined benefir obligation is calculated
annually using Projected Unit Credit Method. Remeasurements which comprise actuarial gains and losses and the rerarn
on plan assets (excluding interest) are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income.

The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability / (asset) for the period
by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefir obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the
net defined benefit liability / (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability / (asset) during
the petiod as a result of contribution and benefit payments. Net interest expense and current service cost are recognized
in profit and loss account and actuarial gains / (losses) are recognised in other comprehensive income as they pecur and
are not reclassified 1o profit or loss in subsequent periods. The last actuarial valuation of the Compan}r s defined benefit
plan was carried on as of December 31, 2024,
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3.22.2 Defined contribution plan

3.22.3

3.23

3.24

The Company contributes to a provident fund scheme which covers all permanent employees. Eaqual contributions are
made both by the Company and the employees to the fund at the rate of 8.33% of basic salary.

Employees' compensated absences

The Company accounts for the liability in tespect of eligible employees' compensated absences in the period in which
they are earned.

Leases
Lessee accounting

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease based on whether the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that ate not paid at the commencement
date. The lease payments ate discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases of the Company, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being
the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to
the right of usc asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions,

To determine the inctemental borrowing rate, the Company:

- where possible, uses the recent third party financing received by the Company 4s a starting point, adjusted to reflect
the changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received;

- uses expected terms of third party financing based on cotrespondence with the third party financial institutions, where
third party financing was not received recently; and

- makes adjustments specific to the lease e.g. terms and security.

Lease payments include fixed payments, vatiable lease payment that are based on an index or 2 rate, amounts expected
to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantee, the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, payments of penaltics for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising that option, less any lease incentives receivable.

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to
exercise an extension option or not to exercise a termination option. Extension options (or perods covered by
termination options) ate only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably cettain to be extended (or not
terminated). While making this assessment, the Company considers significant penalties to terminate (ot not extend) as
well as the significant cost of business disruption.

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. It is premeasured
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in fixed lease payments or an index or rate,
change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, ot if the
Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. The
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-to-use asset, ot is recorded in profit and loss if
the catrying amount of tight-ro-use asset has been reduced to zera.

In determining the lease term termination options are considered as are included in a number of property leases by the
Company. These are used to tmaximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the Company’s
operations. The majority of termination options held are exercisable by both the Company and the respective lessors.
Further refer note 4.21 fot impaitment of non financial assets.

Impairment of assets

A financial asset is assessed at each financial statement date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that it
s impaired. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if there is objective evidence that one or more events have had
a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asser.
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The carrying amount of non financial assets 1s reviewed at each financial statement date to detetmine whether there is
any indication of impairment of any asset or a group of assets. If such indication exists, the tecoverable amount of such
asset is estimated, The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell.
An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.

All impairment losses ate recognized in the profit and loss account. Provisions for impairment are reviewed ar each
financial statement date and arc adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Changes in the provisions are recognized
as INCome or expense.

Dividend distribution

Dividend to shareholders is recognized as liability in the period in which it is approved. Dividends, if any, declared and
transfers between reserves made subsequent to the teporting date are considered as non-adjusting events and are
recognised in the financial statements in the year in which such dividends are declared and transfers are made.

Management Expense

Expenses of management have been allocated to various revenue accounts on equitable basis.
Commission from reinsurets

The revenue recognition policy for commission from reinsurer is given under note 3.4.2,
Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies ate translated into reporting currency at the rates of exchange prevailing ar the date of
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilitics denominated in forcign currencies are translated ar the rate of exchange
ruling at the reporting date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign cusrency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions, All exchange differences are routed through
the profit and loss account.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments include cash and bank, loans to employees, investments, premiums due but unpaid, amount due
from other insurers / reinsurers, accrued investment income, reinsurance tecoveries against outstanding claims, sundry
receivables, other claim liabilities amount due to other insurers / reinsurers, accrued expenses, other creditors and
accruals, deposits and other payables and unclaimed dividends,

All the financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument and derecognized when the Company losses control of contractual rights thar
comptises the financial assets and in the case of financial liabililes when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities is taken to
income directly.

Earnings per Share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
shares ourstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.

Share Capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recopnised at their face value.
Contingent liabilities

Contingent liability is disclosed when:

a) a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occutrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertzin future events not wholly within the control of the company; or

b} a present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settde the obligation ot the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with
sufficient reliability.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reposted amounts of assets and
lizbilities, income and expenses.

The judgments, estimates and assumprions are based on historical experience, current trends and vatious other factots
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the estimates

about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

In particular, the marters involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial staterments are:

b)

<)
d)

€)
h)

P
1

Useful lives of property and equipment

Intangible assets

Unearned Premium reserve

Premium deficiency reserve

Receivables and payables related to insurance contracrs
Provision for outstanding claim (inchiding IBNR)
Taxation

Staff redrement benefits

Leases

Impairment of assets

Contingent liabilities

Note

311
32
3.6
37
3.9

3.20

i

3.22

3.23

3.24

332
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ALPHA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

—

9 LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 2024 2023

- Considered good Note — (Rupees) ———-—--
Receivables from Window Takaful Operation-OTF 6,577,650 3,166,670
Accrued investment income 2,872,928 6,648,067
Security deposit 9.1 61,225,860 305,120
Advance to Supplier 2,315,377 5,983,835
Agent commission receivable 858,857 22 855
Loans to employees 9.2 725,164 408 605
Federal insutance fec - 264,963
Other receivables 735,922 392441

75,311,758 17,192,556

9.1

9.2

10

11

11.2

1.3

This includes security deposir Rs. 60 millions (2023: Nil) are placed with State Bank of Pakistan under Secton 29 of

the [nsurance Ordinance, 2000.

This represents interest free short term loan to employees as per the Company policy.

INSURANCE / REINSURANCE RECEIVABLES

- Unsecured and considered good

Due from insurance contract holders

Less : provision for impairment of receivables

from insurance contract holders
Due from othet insurers / reinsurers
Less ¢ provision for impairment of due

from other insurers / re-insurets

RETIREMENT BENEFIT
Balance Sheet Reconciliation

Fair value of plan assets

Present value of defined benefit obligation
Funded status

Recognised net actuarial gain

Recognised (liability) /asset

Movement in fair value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets as at 1st January
Expected return on plan assers

Acmarial pain

Benefits paid

Fair value as at 31st December

Movement in the defined benefit obligations

Obligation as at 1st January
Service cost

Inrerest cost

Actuadal {gain)/ loss
Experience Adjusmments
Benefits paid

Obbgation as at 31st December

2024 2023
uuuuuuu {Rupees) SR
46,290,001 52,294 157
(19,175,671) (25,320,531)
203,131,815 141,851,233
(37,423,388) (31,278,528)
192,822,757 137,546,331
7,683,212 8,015,382
(9,049,906) {7,810,886)
(1,366,694) 204,496
- (204,496)
(1,366,699) -
8,015,382 8,018,900
1,202,307 1,122,646
112,781 115,108
{1,647,258) (1,241,272)
7,683,212 8,015,382
7,810,886 8,048,749
444,761 387278
1,171,633 1,126,825
- (710,694)
1,269,884 o =
(1,647,258) (1,241,272)
9,049,906 7.810,8846




ALPHA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

11.4

11.5

11.6

1.7

Cost

Current service cost

Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets
Expense

Actual return on plan assets

Charge for the year recognized in the profit and

Loss account

Cutrent Service Cost
Net Interest (Income) / Expense

Actuarial loss/ (gain) tccngnjsn:d in the
Other Comprehensive Income

Net actuarial loss/(gain) recognised in the
Other Comprehensive income

(Reversal) /charge due to asset Ceiling

2024 2023
mememmmeemmen (RUpEES) avanmannean

444,761 587,278
1,171,633 1,126,825
(1,202,307) (1,122,646)
414,087 591,457
1,315,088 1,237,754
444,761 587,278
(30,674) 4,179
414,087 591,457
1,157,103 (825,801)
(204,496) 204 496
952,607 (621,305)

The actuatial valustons are cartied out annually using Projected Unit Credit (PUC) actuarial cost method and
contributons are made accordingly. Following are the significant assumptions used for valuation of the plan:

2024 2023
Discount rate and expected return on plan assets 13% 15%
Future salary increases 13% 15%
Morrality rates 60 years 60 years
Rates of Employee turnover SLIC (2001-05) SLIC (2001-05)
-1 Light -1 Light
Comparison for five years: 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
{Rupees)
Fair value of plan assers 7,683,212 8,015,382 8,018,900 8,233,194 8,233,194
Defined benefir obligations {9,049,906) (7.810,885) (8,048,750) (8,052,536) (7,052,757)
Surplus / (Defecit) (1,366,694) 204,497 (29,850) 180,658 1,180,437
Experience adjustments
Gain / (Loss) on plan assers
(as percentage of plan assets) 1.47% L44% 4.57% T7.40% -5.80%
(Gain) / Lioss on abligations
{as percentage of plan obligations) 0.00% 9.10% -0.10% 0.51% -1247%
Composition of fair value of plan assets 2024 2023
(Rupees) % {Rupees) %
Debt . N 3
Equity , . i )
Cash and cash equivalent 7,683,212 100% 8,015,382 100%
Total 7,683,212 100% 8,015,382 100%
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11.8  Sensitivity analysis on significant actuarial assumptions defined benefit obligation

2024 2023
() Rupees (%a) Rupees
Discount rate +1.00% -4.80% (437,475) 4.10% (319,849)
Discount rate -1.00% 5.5% 500,852 4.60% 363,111
Furure salary increase +1.00% 5.90% 529,718 4.90% 385,460
Future salaty inctease -1.00% 5.20% (470,708) -4.40% (345,311)

The weighted average duration of the defined benefir obligation 1s 5 years (2023: 5 years).

Projected payments

Expected matunty analysis of undiscounted defined benefit obligation for the gratuity fund is as follows:

Paytnent of benefits:

2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029 onwatds

1.9 The gratuity has been discontinued for future appointments since 2015.

12°  DEFERRED TAXATION-NET
Deferred debits arising in respect of:
Accelerated tax depreciation on fixed assets
Lease liabilides
Provision against premium due but unpaid
Provision for diminution in value of investment
Provision against amount due from other insurers /reinsurers

Deferred credits arising due to:

Right-of-use assers
Actuarial gain on defined benefit plan
Unrealized gain on revaluation of AFS

Deferred tax (Liability) / asset

2024 2024
------- — (Rupees) —-rmrms
2,417,668 2,416,292
1,267,114 186,946
181,523 1,174,861
2,813,661 216,491
503,872 2,550,076
22,803,939 27,100,082
2024 2023
reemeneress (RUPEES) weonnace
(22,274) 881,300
3,568,581 4,101,630
5,560,945 7,342,954
477,601 5,382,005
10,852,783 9,070,773
(3,281,304) (4,101,630)
(284,607) (560,862)
(49,972,688) (21,056,272)

(33,100,963) 1,059,927
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14

151

Movement in net deferred tax asset / (liability) is as follows:

Note

Opening deferred tax asset

{Charge to) / reversal of the profit and loss account

Accelerated tax depreciation on fixed assets
Lease liabilities

Provision against premium due but unpaid
Provision for diminution in value of investnent

Provision against amount due from other insurers/reinsurers
Right-of-use assets

(Charge to) / reversal of othep comprehensive income

Actuarial gain on defined benefit plan
Unrealized gain on tevaluation of AFS

Closing deferred tax (liability) / asset

TAXATION - PAYMENT LESS PROVISIONS

Advance tax - opening
Add: Advance tax paid during the period
Less: Provision for the year

PREPAYMENTS

Prepaid reinsurance premium ceded 22

CASH AND BANK

Cash and cash equivalent

- Cash in hand

- Policy and Revenue stamps, Bond papers
Cash at banlk

- Current accounts
- Savings accounts 15.1

2024 2023
—--—-—- (Rupees) — -
1,059,927 10,157,888
(903,583) (428,294)
(533,049) 1,680,665
(1,782,009) (15,615,838)
(4,904,424) (2,034,615)
1,782,010 657,901
820,325 {2,112,404)
(5,520,730) (17,852,585)
276,256 (180,179)
{28,916,416) 8,934,803
(28,640,160) 8,754,624
(33,100,963) 1,059,927
79,230,408 77,932,083
19,743,652 19,262,588
(10,961,181) (17,964,263)
88,012,879 79,230,408
59,192,450 47,285,919
59,192 450 47,285.919
10,886 -

2,078,508 253,717
3,805,680 37,367,430
139,124,635 277746 479
145,019,709 315,367,626

The rate of return on profit and loss savings account maintained at 13.5% per annum (2023: 14% to 20% per annum).
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16

17

171

17.2

18

18.1

Window Takaful Operations - Operator’s Fund

Note
Assets
Quard e Hasna to Participants' Takaful Fund
Investments
Debt securities
Defetred commission expense
Receivable from PTF
Taxation - payments less provision
Other receivables
Cash and bank
Total Liabilities
Unearned wakala fee -
Other creditors and accruals
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorized capital
2024 2023
(Number of shares) Note
51,000,000 51,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital

Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each issued

Capital reserve
Reserve for exceptional losses
Revenue resetves

General reserve
Unrealised appreciation on "available for sale'
investments

1,162,000 1,162,000 - as fully paid in cash
19,640,000 19,640,000 - issued as right share
29,198,000 29,198,000 - issued as fully paid bonus shares
50,000,000 50,000,000
RESERVES

18.1

2024 2023

-------- -~ (Rupees) ~=---memume
25,000,000 5

- 25,000,000
3,282,754 2823772
11,716,563 10,709,827
514,327 22,018
- 1,095,865
40,804,664 25,545,371
81,318,308 65,196,853
8,290,890 5,406,240
15,357,172 6,907,380
23,648,062 12,313,626

2024 2023

---------- (Rupees) =-=smrmcmomnams

510,000,000 510,000,000
11,620,000 11,620,000
196,400,000 196,400,000
291,980,000 291,980,000
500,000,000 500,000,000
3,355,000 3,355,000
6,820,000 6,820,000
122,346,921 51,551,567
132,521,921 61,726,567

The reserve for exceptional losses represents amounts set aside till 31 December 1978 to avail deduction
thereof in computing taxable income, as allowed previously undet the old Tncome Tax Act of 1922. After
the introduction of the repealed Income Tax Ordinance, 1979, which did not permit the said déduction,
hence the Company discontinued the setting aside of amounts as reserve for exceptional losses.



ALPHA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

2024 2023
19 INSURANCE/ REINSURANCE PAYABLES NoOte =ememmmmmmnmen (Rupees) ===nmsesmmamme.
Due to other insurers_/ reinsurers 19.1 118,519,646 53,907,998
Cash margins against performance bonds 19.2 45,616,509 38,141,715
164,136,155 92,049,713

19.1  Ths includes payable to related party amounting to Rs. 32.49 million (2023: Rs. 12.86 million).

19.2  This represents margin deposit on account of performance and other bond policies issued by the

company.
2024 2023
20 OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS Note -----m=ssmmeeen (Rupees) =====rmsmnnnae.
Agent commission payable 66,047,393 53,151,821
Federal Excise Duty / Sales tax 6,704,575 11,948,007
Lease Liability 20.1 12,305,453 14,143,552
Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 20.2 5,062,212 2,197,746
Salaries & wages payable - 372,052
Accrued expenses 2,512,455 2,604,325
Compensated absences 4,988,209 3,542,498
Withholding payables 1,046,196 213,132
Unpaid and unclaimed dividend 3,001,450 3,001,430
Accounts payable for goods & services 782,950 906,255
Other creditors & accruals 20.3 7,096,631 3,308,806
109,547,524 95,389,734
20.1  Lease Liability
Current 1,991,538 1,838,099
Non - Current 10,313,915 12,305,453
12,305,453 14,143,552
December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Minimum Financial . Minitmum Finangial r
Lease chatges for Pmmp?l Lease charges for Scp
Paments  fureperiods  OVStnding R e
Not Latet than one 5,016,480 3054 1,991,538 5,016,480 5178381 1,838,199
Later than one year and not later than five years 15,049,440 4,735,325 10,313,915 20,063,920 1,760,447 12,303,453
20,065,920 7,760,467 12,305,453 LORZAN 10938848 14,143,532

20.2

The Finance Act, 2008 introduced amendments to the Workers' Welfare Fund (WWF) Ordinance, 1971
whereby the definition of industrial establishment was extended. The amendments were challenged at
various levels and conflicting judgments were rendered by the Lahore High Court, Sindh High Coutt and
Peshawar High Court.

The Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan vide its judgment dated 10 November 2016, has upheld the
view of Lahore High Court and decided that WWF is not a tax and hence the amendments introduced
through Finance Act, 2008 are ultra-vires to the Constitution,
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20.3

21
211
21.1.1

21.1.2

The Federal Board of Revenue has filed Civil Review Petitions in respect of above judgment with the
prayer that the judgment dated 10 November 2016 passed in the Civil Appeal may kindly be reviewed in
the interest of justice.

In view of the above, on prudent basis the management has decided not to reverse charge for WWF
recorded for the years up to 2015 amounting to Rs. 2.198 million.

Further,during the year company has made provison for sindh worker welfare amounting to Rs.2.864

million.

This includes outstanding claims in respect of which cheques have been issued by the Company for
claim settlement but the same have not been encashed by the claimant. The following is the aging as
required by SECP circular No. 11 dated 19 May 2014:

2024 2023

R — (Rupees) --------- —
- Mote than 6 months 482,455 768,053
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

Various claims amounting to Rs. 51.58 million (2023: Rs. 74.75 million) has been lodged by various
parties against the Company. The Company has not acknowledge these claims as the management
considers that the Company is not liable to settle the amount.

The deemed assessment under section 120 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 of the Company have been
finalised up to tax year 2023. Matters of disagreement exist between the Company and the tax authorities
for the tax year 2009, 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015 and 2016. In prior years, the Commissioner has
passed amended assessment orders for the these tax years under section 122(5A), wherein tax on
dividend income has been charped at corporate tax rate by treating such income as business income of
the Company under Fourth Schedule to the Ordinance. Further, certain disallowances were made in
respect of provision for IBNR claims, non-withholding of tax on commission expenses and payment of
certain expenses in cash. The management is contesting these matters with the tax authorities and has
filed appeals with the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR), the Honourable High Coutt of Sindh
(the Court) and with the Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals (CIRA) and is confident that these
matters will be decided in favour of the Company. Consequently, no provision has been made in these
financial statements in respect of the above matters.

For tax years 2009, 2011, 2012 and 2013, the ACIR has passed amended assessment order under section
122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 wherein tax on dividend income has been charged at
corporate tax rate by treating such income as business income of the Company under Fourth Schedule
to the Ordinance. As a result of the amended assessment order for the tax year 2009, demand of Rs. 4.63
million was created, for the tax years 2011 and 2012, demand of Rs. 18.58 million was created against
which the Company has paid Rs. 9.74 million and for the tax year 2013, demand of Rs. 1.79 million. The
Company has filed appeals before CIRA and if the appeal is decided against the Company, a tax liability
of Rs, 15.26 million would arise, however the Tax advisor believes that the case will be decided in favour
of the Company.
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21.1.4

"During 2017, the ACIR issued notice dated 16 May 2017, under section 122(5A) for passing an amended order on
certain issues for the tax year 2011, However, the Company has filed a writ petition before the Honourable High Court
of Sindh challenging the validity of the notice being barred by limitation of time. The Court has granted an order and
the said order is operating, Based on tax advisor opinion the management is confident of favourable outcome of the
said appeal. accordingly, ho tax provision has been recorded in these financial statements,

For tax years 2015 and 2016, the ACIR passed an amended assessment order under section 122(5A), wherein tax on
dividend income has been charged at corporate tax rate by treating such income as business income of the Company
under Fourth Schedule to the Ordinance. Further, cettain disallowances were made in respect of non-withholding of tax
on comimission expenses and payment of certain expenses in cash. Consequently, rax demand of Rs. 2.30 million and
Rs. 6.83 million was created respectively. Against the amended assessment order, an appeal was filed before the CIRA,
who vide combined appellate order dated 21 November 2017 allowed relief in respect charpeability of dividend ar
corporate tax rates and levy of Worker's Welfare Fund whereas additions on account of non-withholding of tax

cominission expense and cash expenses made by the Company were confirmed.

The Company has filed a further appeal before the ATIR on the issues confitmed by the CIRA. Moreover, the
department has also filed appeal before the ATIR challenging the relief granted by the CIRA. If the appeal is decided
against the Company, a tax lighility of Rs, 9.12 million would arise, however the tax advisor believes that the case will be
decided in favour of the Company.

Moreover, the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR), Enforcement & Collecion Unit-3, Range-B, Zone T11,
Large tax payers Unir, Karachi finalized the monitonng proceedings 161/205 of the Income Tax Otdinance, 2001 in
2017. The DCIR, while passing the ordet, levied tax on account of rent, insurance commission, re-insurance premium,
insurance claims and payment of various expenses aggregatng to Rs.16.64 million including default surcharge and
penalty. Against the order, the Company filed an appeal before the CIR{A), wherein the CIR(A) deleted the tax demand
against rent payments, remanded back the issues of insurance comimission, insurance claims and payment of vatious
expenses. Further, the CIR(A) confirmed the levy of tax in respect of re-insurance premium. Moreover, against the
order of CIR(A), the Company filed an appeal before the ATIR which is pending adjudication.

Show-cause notice dated 19 December 2018 was instituted after the Company’s audit for the tax perods from January
2016 to December 2016 was carried out under Section 28(2) of the Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011, The instant
notice called upon the Company to show cause as to why not the Sindh sales tax amounting to Rs, 152.26 million may
not be assessed as short payment of Sindh sales tax. The Company submitted various arguments, evidence and
reconciliations, The Asgsistant Commissioner SRB vide Order-in-Original dated 13 November 2019 held that the
Company has received re-insurance services from foreign re-insurance companies and is, thetefore, liable to deposit the
Sindh sales tax amount of Rs. 7.56 million along with penalty of Rs. 0.38 million. The Company being aggrieved
preferred an appeal before the Commissioner Appeals — SRB. Various hearings have been conducted; however, the case
is pending adjudication. The tax advisor is very confident with regard to the merits of the issue mvolved and suggest
favorable outcome for instant case.

During the year 2019, the Assistant Commuissioner, Sindh Revenue Board (“ACSRB”) had issued 2 show cause notice
No. SRB-COM-I/Unit- 10/5SNC/11/2018/000492 (“SCN™) dated 22th June 2019, to the Company on various issues
specified in the SCN including short payment of Sindh sales rax amount of Rs. 7.44 million. These issues pertain to the
tax period 2011. In response to the aforesaid notice, the Company through its legal advisor filed 2 Constinutional
Petition # D-4743 of 2019 in the High Cowt of Sindh (HCS) challenging the aforesaid notice and obtained interim stay
order and case was decided in favor of SRB.

Subsequently the ACSRB fixed the date of hearing on similar SCN on which the Company has decided to challenge the
decssion of Sindh High Court in the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan. Meanwhile, the Company has also
requested the ACSRB to extend the date of compliance for instant case. However, the ACSRB passed an Ordet in
Original No. 309 of 2021 dated 01 July 2021 in urgency and whimsical manner which creared a demand of Rs. 7.82
million inclusive of penalty. In this regard, the Company decided to file an appeal before the Commissioner Appeals,
Sindh Revenue Board. The tax advisor cannot predict about its outcome with certainty, but strong believe that the
merirs of the issue involved suggest favorable outcome for instant case.
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21.1.5

2116

2119

212

22

During the year 2022, the Sindh Revenue Board through 2 show cause order No. SRB-COM-T1/AC-10/Ins./ Alpha/2014.
15/2022/27/74688 dated 18th January 2022 (“SCN™), was issued against the Company whereby it was observed that
duting scrutiny of the financial statements for the calendar years 2014 and 2015 the Company has ceded reinsurance
premiums and also received commission from reinsurers. Accordingly, it was alleped that the Company has short paid
Sindh Sales Tax of amounting to Rs. 48.39 million under secton 23 (1) and (2} of the Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act,
2011,

The Company, being aggrieved by the aforesaid SCN, preferred filing petiion before the Honorable High Court of
Sindh. The Honorable High Court after hearing the submissions, granted stay against the show cause proceedings and
directed SRB not to pass any final adverse order. The interim stay order vide C.P No. D-804 of 2022 dated 14 February
2022 was granted. Although, the tax advisor cannot predict about its outcome with certainty, but believe that the merits
of the issue involved suggest favorable outcome for instant case.

During the year 2022, the Sindh Revenue Board through a show cause order No. SRB-COM-1/AC-10/Ins./AIC/2014-
15/2022/81757 dated 27th January 2022, (“SCN") was issued against the Company wheteby it was observed during
scrutiny of the financial statements of the Company that the Company has written insurance premium worth Rs. 179.99
million which is taxable wherein Sindh Sales Tax (SST) amounting to Rs. 26.10 million for the tax periods from January
2015 to December 2015 is involved. Tt was further mentioned that the Company has written insurance premium worth
Rs. 219.65 million wherein Siddh Sales Tax (S5T) amount involved is Rs. 34.05 million for the tax periods from January
2014 to December 2014. The assessing officer alleged that the Company has failed to deposit the Sindh Sales Tax (85T)
recoverable against cited taxable services and has also failed to declare the same in the Sindh Sales Tax (S5T) returns.
Further, it was alleged that the Company has claimed illegal/unlawful input tax adjustment amounting to Rs. 1.32
million on account of certain purchases which are inadmissible according to Section 15 and 15A of the Sindh Sales Tax
(SST) on Services Act, 2011 (“the SSTSA, 20117, Accordingly, the Company was required to show cause as to why
Sindh Sales Tax (35T) amounting to Rs. 61.46 million may not be assessed under Section 23(1) and 23(2) of the 55TSA,
2011,

In this regard, the Company, being aggrieved by this SCN, filed petition before Honorable Sindh High Court (SHC)
bearing CP No. 1166 of 2022. Sindh High Court (SHC) has suspended operation of impugned order dll next date of
hearing The Tax advisor is having a strong believe that the merits of the issue involved suggest favorable outcome for
instant case.

The Company has received notice No. SRB/SWWF/SHOPS/A-G/2023-24/323999 dated. January 23, 2024, in which
the authority advised the Company to deposit the due amount of Sindh Welfare Fund for the tax year 2023 as being
industrial Establishment, as per section 2(g)(vi-a) of the Sindh Workers Welfare Fund Act, 2014, The company is
required to pay SWWF amounts to the government. Furthermore; the management of the company is viewed as 1
owned and controlled by the Federal Government having offices all over Pakistan, and as such is not liable for the
subject contribution which would be paid to the Federal government,

Commitments

There are no commitments zs 2t December 31, 2024 (2023: Nil).

NET INSURANCE PREMIUM 2024 2023
Note  eececeesesees (Rupees) ==-=-eareeee
Written Gross Premium 527,274,070 350,777,631
Add: Uneamed premium reserve opening 116,171,934 85,324,267
Less: Unearned premium reserve closing 151,064,657 116,171,934
Premium earned 492,381,347 319,929.964
Reinsurance premium ceded 134,316,596 93,150,371
Add: Prepaid reinsurance premium opening 47,285,919 27,073,841
Less: Prepaid reinsurance premium closing 59,192,450 47285919
Reinsurance expense 122,410,065 72,938,293

369,971,282 - 246,991,671
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NET INSURANCE CLAIMS EXPENSE
Note

Claims paid
Add: Oustanding claims including IBNR closing
Less: Outstanding claims including IBNR opening

Claims expense

Less:

Reinsurance and other recoveries recerved

Add: Reinsurance and other recoveries received in
respect of outstanding claims opening

Less: Reinsurance and other recoveries received in
tespect of outstanding claims closing

Reinsurance and other recoveries revenue

2024 2023

——-———— (Rupees) --—--—----
213,851,198 197,631,335
280,599,160 216,793,824
(216,793,824) (210,329,362)
277,656,534 204,095,797
(30,142,526) (49,674,857)
101,275,592 91,694,443
{122,581,102) (101,275,592)
(51,448,036) (59,256,006)
226,208,498 144,839,791

Claim development

The Company maintains adequate reserves in respect of its insurance business in order to protect agmnst adverse
future claims experience and developments. The uncertainties about the amount and timing of clam payments are
notmally resolved within one year. The following table shows the development of the claims over 4 period of time.

All amounts are presented in gross numbers before reinsurance.

Accident year 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Total
(including

Estimate af ultimate claims cost: IBNR)
- At end of accident mn, 729527 T94,035 24 580,373 47 634,423 289,481,022 454,219 380
- Oine years later 91,729,527 841,644 34,270,264 69,157,793 - 195,999 228
- Two years larer 01,734,144 1,137,168 42,245 499 - - 135,116,811
- Three years later o1,734,144 1,311,479 - - 03,045,623
- Four years later 92,254,565 - . : - 092,254 505
Current estimate of cumulatve claims 92,254,565 1311479 42,245 499 64,157,793 289,481,022 494,450,358
Curmulative payment to dare (1,855,511) (565,019 (18,518,050)  {42,085,894) (150,826,724) {213,551,198)
Liability recognised in statement

ol financial position 90,399 (454 T46,460 23727449 27,071,899 138,654,298 280,599,160

The provision for IBNR on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out as at December 31, 2024 amounting to Rs.

46.47 mullion (2025: Rs. 27.78 million).

2024 2023
NET COMMISSION EXPENSE / Note mmmmmmennnnne (RUPEES) ==snmennnssan
ACQUISITION COSTS
Commission paid or payable 100,342,035 65,147,065
Add: Deferred commission expense opening 24,951,808 15,115,328
Less: Deferred commission expense closing 26,541,209 24,951,808
Net Comnmission 98,752,634 55,310,585
Commission received or recoverable 8,189,285 2,259,080
Add: Unearned Reinsurance commission opening 1,291,035 475,937
Less: Unearned Reinsurance commission closing 4,964,011 1,291,035
Commission from reinsurers 4,516,309 1,443,982
94,236,325 53,866,603
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25

251

2511

25.2

26

MANAGEMENT EXPENSES Note
Employee benefit cost 251
Traveling expenses

Advertisemnents & sales promotion
Printing and stationery
Depreciation

Amortisation

Rent, Rates and taxes

Legal and professional charges - business related
Electricity, gas and warter
Entertainment

Vehicle running expenses

Office repairs and maintenance
Bank charges

Postages, telegrams and telephone
Miscellaneous

Employee benefit cost

Salaries, allowance and other benefits
Charges for post employment benefits 251.1

2024 2023
--------- (Rupees) -

98,736,476 70,010,556
1,813,802 1,076,318
1,328,538 639,450
2,730,203 2,667,384
4,605,047 4,954,300
183,118 181,124
2,342,133 3,160,262
7,965,164 5,271,287
4,753,923 3,795,690
3,627,690 1,862,546
25,301,556 19,557,720
2,161,171 2,795,256
183,067 379,343
2,100,156 1,817,292
9,739,244 4,929,434
167,571,288 123,097,962
95,325,501 68,027,129
3,410,975 1,983,427
98,736,476 70,010,556

This represents Rs. 2,996,888 (2023: Rs. 1,391 970) being contribution for employees' provident fund and Rs. 414,087

(2023 Rs. 591,457) in respect of defined benefit plan.

Provision for impairment of receivables Note
Opening provision

Charge/(teversal) provision for the year

Write off against provision for the year

INVESTMENT INCOME

Available for sale
Income from equity securities
Dividend Income
Realized gains on:
Equ."lt}* securities
Realized losses on:
Equiry securities

Held to maturity
Income from debt securities

Return on government securities
Amortization of discount on government secutities

Total investment income

Add: Reversal of impairment in value of available for sale equity securities

2024 2023

------- -—- (Rupees) ———ammmeme
56,599,059 118,558,004
- {1,830,757)
- {60,128,188)
56,599,059 56,599,059
17,716,076 8,333,901
45,423,795 37,399,650
- (8,861,066)
45,423,795 28,538,584
19,524,861 75,552,925
59,736,482 3,285,371
79,261,343 78,938,294
142,461,214 115,810,781
16,911,806 21,059 344
159,373,020 136,870,125




ALPHA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

27

28

28.1

29

30

3

311

OTHER INCOME Nite
Return on bank balances

Gain on sale of property and equipment

Reversal of bad and doubtful debrs- net - 252

Liabilities no longer payable

OTHER EXPENSES

Auditors' remmuneration 28.1
Directors' Fees

Fees & Subscription

Workers' welfare fund

Auditors’ remuneration

Audir fee
Out-of-pocket expenses

FINANCE COSTS

Mark up on leases

PROFIT FROM WINDOW TAKAFUL
OPERATIONS - OPERATOR'S FUND

Walkala fee

Mudarib Fee

Commission expense

General administrative and management expense
Investment income

Other income

Ceded money Expense

Other expenses

Profit before tax
TAXATION

For cutrent year
- Current
- Deferred

Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

Operanng profit before raxation

Tax at the applicable rate of 29% (2023: 29%5)
Tax Effect of:
Depreciation and amortisation
Gain on sale of property and equipment
Bad and doubtful debts
Prowvision for impairment of investment
Lease liability
Deferred tax

2024 2023
-------- {Rupees) =—=-mmmemean
19,777,390 15,577,694
1,200,000 -
- 1,830,757
7,719,994 10,133,406
28,697,384 27,541,857
1,182,800 1,107,800
4,040,000 1,940,000
588,283 751,138
2,864,467 -
8,675,550 3,798,938
882,800 882,800
300,000 225,000
1,182,800 1,107,800
3,178,381 391,409
14,892,500 3,218,875
A 116,504
(8,108,189) (1,340,792)
(5,910,866) (4,078,757)
1,567,662 3,759,392
5,012,472 3,558,607
- (500,000
(711,299) (672,94T)
6,742,280 4,060,882
10,961,181 17,964,263
5,520,730 17,852,585
16,481,911 35,816,848
55,079,402 85,387,835
15,973,027 24,762,472
452,604 998,299
(26,97T) -
- (530,920)
{4,904,424) (6,107 210)
{533,049) (1,158,378)
5,520,730 17,852,585
16,481,911 35,816,848
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32  Earnings after tax per share - Basic and Diluted
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the nert profit for the year by the weighted average number of shares
as at the year end as follows:
2024 2023
===—m=nemem- (Rupees) ———-—— —
Profit after tax for the year
38,597.491 49,570,987
(Number of shares)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 50,000,000 50,000,000
—mmmmemmeeeme (RUPEES) wmeemmeeae
Earnings per share 0.77 0.99
32.1 No figure for diluted earnings per share has been presented as the Company has not issued any instrument which would
have an impact on eatnings per share when exercised.
33 COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
Chicf Exceutive officer Dircctors Executives Total
224 2023 2024 023 2024 123 04 pliek]
{Rupees)
Fees - 4,040,000 1,940,000 - - 4,040,000 1,940,000
Wanagerial remunenation 65,92 2812160 - - 10,232,729 9,187,500 16,263,649 11,999,960
Leave encashment - - . - 32734 B 327504
Bonus g 4§ = _ 5 :
Ex-grata allowsnce 180,800 100,000 i - 663,024 654,024 763,024 T, 024
Charpe for defined contribetion plan £ B i = = s = -
Rent anil house maintenance : - 2 = * - .
Utilities 3,615,520 637,296 5,376,406 4051,387 8,991,926 3730653
Medical o560 35115 - : 894,636 674,205 1497,19 455,511
. Conveyanee s - - = = : & g
Entertamment Allowance - 46,175 108,273 46,175 108273
Chthers - 580,438 - - - 978,562 - 1,559 (00
10,344,200 5,461,110 4,040,000 1,940,000 17,217,910 15,991,654 L6015 2392764
Number of persons | 1 6 9 10 10 17 20
331 The Chief Executive Officer is provided with the Company maintained cars, house rear and utilides,driver
salaries,medical facility, group life cover and health msurance. The Executives are provided with free use of Company
cars, medical insurance cover.
33.2 The Non-Executive Directors were paid Directors meeting fee of Rs. 4.04 million (2023 : 1,94 million), No other
remuneration was paid to Non-Execntive Directors.
34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties comptises State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan being the parent company, associated entities
having directors in common, other subsidiaries of parent company, directors, key management personnel, gratuity fund
and provident fund. The transactions with related parties are carried out at commercial terms and conditions except for
compensation to key management personnel which are on employment terms. The transactions and balances with
related parties during the year other than those which have been specifically disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements are as follows:
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2024 2023
- Transactions and balances with related parties ——-———- (Rupees) ——-——
Parent Company - State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan- 95.15%
Rent paid 5,761,118 6,016,052
Group Insurance 1,614,058 1,651,523
Pakistan Reinsurance Company Limited - Associate of parent
(Common Directorship)
Reinsurance - Net {19,627,912) 2,296,203
Employeces' funds
Contribution to provident fund 2,996,887 1,795,177
Others .
Remuneration to key management personnel 30,048,188 21,452,764
Directors' remuneration 4,040,000 1,940,000
Actuary Fee to M/s Akhtar & Hassan (Private) Limited. - 500,000
Insurance stamps - PTF - 21,810
- Balances as at 31 December 2024 2023
= (Rupeesg) —-——m—-
Pakistan Reinsurance Company Limited - Associare of parent
{Common Directorship)
Payable to Pakistan Reinsurance Company Limited (32,486,627) {12,858,715)
Others
Payable to/from gratuity fund (1,366,693) -

Payable to M/s Akhtar & Hassan (Private) Limired. - {500,000
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36 MOVEMENT IN INVESTMENTS Held to Available Total
maturity for sale
(Rupees)
At beginning of previous year 491,256,311 191,652,112 682,908,423
Additions 554,633,636 - 554,633,636
Disposals (redemptions) (750,721,118) (18,349,062) {769,070,180)
Fair value net gains (Excluding net realised gains) - (29,007,223) (29,007,223)
Amortsation of discount 3,385,371 4 3,385,311
Impairment losses - 21,059,347 21,059,347
At beginning of current year 298,554,200 165,355,174 463,909,374
Additons 768,959,330 - 768,959,330
Disposals (540,000,000) (20,231,932) (560,231,932)
Fair value net gains (Excluding net realised gains) - 99,711,770 99,711,770
Amorttisation of discount 59,736,482 - 59,736,482
Impairment losses - net of reversal - 16,911,806 16,211,806
At end of current year ) 587,250,012 261,746,818 §48,996,830

37 MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK

The Company issues contracts that transfer insurance risk or financial risk or both. This section summarises these risks
and the way the Company manages them.

371  Insurance Risk

The risk under any insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event oceurs and the uncertainty of the amount
of compensation to the insured. Generally most insurance contracts catry the insurance risk for a period of one year,

The Company accepts insurance through issuance of general insurance contracts. For these general insurance contracts
the most significant tisks arise from fire, atmosphetic distutbance, carthquakes, transit, theft, third party liabilities and
other carastrophes. For health insurance contracts significant risks arise from epidemics.

The Company's risk exposure is mitigated by employing 2 comprehensive framework to identify, assess, manage and
monitor nsk. This framewotk includes implementation of underwriting strategies which aim to ensure that the
underwritien risks are well diversified in terms of type and amount of the sk, Adequate reinsutance is arranged to
mitipate the effect of the potennal loss to the Company from individual to large or catastrophic insured events.
Further, the Company adopts strict claim review palicies including active manapement and prompt pursuing of the
claims and regular detailed review of claim handling procedures.

a) Frequency and severity of claims

Risk associated with peneral insuranice contracts includes the reasonable possibility of significant loss as well as the
frequent occurrence of the insured events. This has been managed by having in place underwriting strategy,
reinsurance arrangements and proactve claim handling procedures,

The reinsurance arrangements against major risk exposure include excess of loss and facultative reinsurance. The
objective of having such arrangements is to mitigate adverse impacts of severe losses on the Company’s net retentions.
As the major reinsurance arrangements are on excess of loss basis, therefore the reinsurance coverage apainst
Company's risk exposures 1s not quantifiable.

Concentration of risk

To optimise benefits form the principle of average and law of large numbers, geographical spread of risk is of extreme
importance, There are a number of parameters which are significant in assessing the accumulation of nsk with
reference to the geographical locaton, the most imporrant of which is risk survey.,
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Risk surveys are carried out on a tegular basis for the evaluation of physical hazards associated with the commercial/
industrial/ residential occupation of the insured. Details regarding the fire separation/ segregation with respect to the
manufactuting process, storage, utilities, ctc. are extracted form the layout plan of the insured facility. Such details are
formed part of the reports which are made available to the underwriters/ reinsurance personnel for their evaluation.
Reference is made to the standard construction specification as laid down by IAP (Insurance Association of Pakistan),
For instance, the presence of perfect party walls, double fire proof iron doors, physical separation berween the
building within a insured’s premises. It is basically the property contained within an area which is scparated by
another property by sufficient distance to confine insured damage from uncontrolled fire and explosion undet the
most adverse conditions to that one area,

The ability to manage catastrophic risk is tied managing the density of risk within a particular area. For catastrophic
aggregates, the system assigns precise geographic CRESTA (Catastrophe Risk Evaluating and standardising Targer
Accumulations) codes with reference to the accumulation of sum insured in force at any particular location against

natural perils.

For matine risks, complete underwriting details such as sums insured, mode of transport (air / inland transit), vessel
identification, sailing dates, origin and destination of the shipments, per carty limits, accumulation of sum insured on
2 single voyage etc. are taken into consideration.

A number of proportional and non-proportional reinsurance arrangements are in place to protect the net account.
Apart from the adequate event limit which is 2 multiple of the treaty capacity or the primary recovery from the
proportional treaty, any loss over and above the said limit would be recovered from the non-proportional treaty
which is very much in line with the tisk management philosophy of the Company.

The insurers monitors concentration of insurance risks primarily by class of business. The table below sets out the
concentration of the claims and premium liabilities (in percentage terms) by class of business at reporting date:

2024

Class GI?SE.‘f]j,ﬁms N.Et ‘.:l.ﬂ uns pr{:::lsuin prer:ln?:lm

Mabilies:  BabRGe il  lakiie
Fire and property 73.8% 66.0% 46.7% 28.8%
Marine, aviation and transport 10.3% 13.1% 2.2% 2.5%
Motor 12.2% 14.5% 23.6% 28.5%
Health 0.6% 1.0% 20.9% 34.4%
Credit and suretyship 0.0% 0.0% 0.5% -0.5%
Miscellaneous 3.2% 5.5% 6.1%% 6.3%
100% 100% 100%s 100%

2023
Class Grf:nﬂs_ -j:l_aim Net claims p:z;:iin Net premium
liabilities liabilities L liabilities
lizhilines

Fire and property 81.1% 63.9% 48.9% 44.7%
Marine, aviation and transport 8.2% 13.5% 2.9% 0.0%
Motor 4.2% 6.6% 24. 7% 32.3%
Health 3.0% 5.7% 14.2% 23.9%
Credit and suretyship 0.0% 0.0% 0.8% -0.1%
Miscellaneous 3.4% 4.8% 8.6% -0.9%
10044 100% 100% 100%

The Company minimises its exposure to significant losses by obtaining reinsurance from a number of reinsurers, who
are dispersed over several geographical regions.

The concentration of risk by type of contracts based on single risk with maximum exposure is summarised below.
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(Gross sum insured Reinsurance Net
2024 2023 2024 223 2024 2023

Fire and property 2,276,500,000 843000,000  2,256,500,000 823,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000
Marine, aviation and transport  1,219,578,119 522,522,000 1,199,578,119 502,522,000 20,000,000 20,000,000

Mator
Health

52,000,000 45,000,000 50,500,000 44,100,000 1,500,000 900,000
3,000,000 11,885,362 . ’ 3,000,000 11,885,362

Credit and surctyship 23,300,000 50,000,000 18,300,000 30,000,000 5,000,000 20,000,000
Miscelleneous 1939447238 1930447238 1919447238 1919447238 20,000,000 20,000,000

b)

d)

5,513,825,357 3854600 5444,325,357 3,319,069,238 69,500,000 92,785,362

Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments

Claims on general insurance contracts are payable on a claim occurrence basis. The Company is liable for all insured
events as per terms and condition of the insurance contract.

An estimated amount of the claim is recorded immediately on the intimation to the Company. The estmation of the
amount is based on management judgement or preliminary assessment by the independence surveyor appoiated for
the pumpose. The initial estimates include expected settlement cost of the claims. Prowvision for IBNR is recorded
based on the advice of the actuary.

There arc several varable factors which affect the amount and timing of recognised claim liabilities. The Company
takes all reasonable measures to mitigate the factors affecting the amount and dming of claim settlements. However,
uncertainty prevails with estimated claim liabilities and it is likely thar final settlement of these liabilies may be
diffetent from initial recognised amount. Similarly, the provision for claims incurred but not reported is based on
histotic reporting pattern of the claims other than exceptional losses, Hence, actual amount of incurred but not
reported claims may differ from the amounts estimated.

Process used to decide on assumptions

The prncipal assumption underlying the liability estimation of IBNR and Premium Deficiency Reserves is that the
Company's future claim development will follow similar historical pattern for occurrence and reporting. The
management uses qualitanve judgement to assess the extent to which past occurrence and reporting pattern will not
apply in future. The judgement includes external factors e.g. treatment of one-off occurrence claims, changes in
market factors, economic conditions, etc,

Changes in assumptions
The Company did not change its assumptions for the insurance contracts as disclosed in above (b} and (c).
Sensitivity analysis

The insurance claim liabilities are sensitive to the incidence of insured events and severity / size of claims. The impact
of 10% increase / decrease in incidence of insured events on gross claim liabilires, underwriting results, net claim
liabikities, profit before tax and shareholdet's equity is as follows:

Average claim cost Underwriting results Sharcholder's equity
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2024 2023 2024 2023
- —— (Rupees) iy

Fire and property (6,132,324) (7,421,648) (10,429,617) (11,730,206)
Marine and transport (3,498,438) (1,491,194) (5,950,007) (2,356,890)
Mator (2,666,383) (1,045,504) (4,534,880) (1,652,460)
Health Insurance (8,576,444) (3,489,817) (14,586,481) | (5,515,792)
Miscellaneous (654,627) (1,035,818) (1,113,364) (1,637,149)

(21,528,216) (14,483,981) (36,614,349) (22,892.497)
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37.2

Financial risk management

The Board of Directors of the Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company's risk management framework. The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial

Instraments: .
- Financial risk

- Credit risk

- Liquadity risk

- Marker sk

Financial risk

Maturity profile of financial assets and liabilities:

December 31, 2024
Interest / mark-up beaning Non interest / mark-up beaning
Maturityupto  Maturity after  Sub total Maturity upte  Matuniy after Sub total Total
ane year one year one year one year
: (Rupees)
Financial assets
Cash 139,124,635 B 139,124,635 5,895,074 - 5,395,074 145,019,709
lnwestments 490,650,861 95,595,151 547,250,012 261,745,818 - 261,746,818 848,996,830
Loans gnd other receivables o - - T2IN207 nan My 7nLa7
Insucance / retnsurance receivables 5 - . 192,822,757 » 192,322,757 192,822,757
Reinsuance recovedies against
outstanding claims - . - 122,581,102 122,581,102 122,381,102
Salvape recovenes accrued - . . - » 5 =
629,775,496 0,599,151 T6,374,647 655,316,968 - 655,316,568 1,391,591,615
Financial labilities
Undeewriting Provision for outstanding
elaims including IBNR - - - {280,509, 160) (280,599,160 (280,599,160)
Insurance / seinsuesnce: payables = - - {164,134,155) {164,136,155) (164,136,155)
Other credimes and secruals - - - (91,745,332 (91,746,332) {91,746,332)
2 - - (536,48L,647) - (536,431,647) (536,48L,647)
Interest eate risk sensitivity gap £29,775,4% 95,50050 726,374,047
Cumulative interest rate risk seasitivity gap 629,775.4% T26,374,647
[ecember 31, 2023
Initerest |/ rmr‘::—up hﬂn'ng Non interest | m:ui-up hn[hg
Mamrity upto  Maturity after Sub total Matunity upto. Maturity aftec Sub ol Total
o pear one year O yedr one jear
Financial assets {Rupees)
Cazh ITTTHEATY - 27T 746,479 37,621,147 421,047 315,367,626
Tnvestments (4,633,636 2133920564 208 554 20K 165,335,174 - 165,355,174 463,005,374
Loans and othee receivables . - . 10,535,153 10,335,153 10,335,133
Insurance / renssrace recervihles - - - 137 546,301 137,546,331 137,344,331
Retnsurance recoveries aganst
outstinderg chims - - = 101,275,592 101,275,552 101,375,502
Sabvage recovernes acomed 3 3 - .
2380115 ZB3IN5EM STA00670 152313397 4535330 10286346
Financial Habilities
Underweiting Provision for outstanding
chuims inchuding TBNR ] : 2 (216,793424) - @IGTOEM) (216793824
Insarance / ceinsurance paysbles - - - [B20£0.713) - {92040713) [02,049,713)
Othes creditors and acceuals - 2 - {17.448,261) - {T7.488,261) [17,488,261)
B (346,331,798) - {386,31,798) (386,331,758)
Tnberest rate rsk sensitivity gap 2380115 35.520.564 876,300,679

Cumulative interest rate risk sensitivity gap 342,380,115 576, 3KL679
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a) Sensitivity analysis - interest rate risk
al)  Fair value sensitivity analsis for fixed rate instroments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets at fair walue through profit and loss. Therefore, a
change in interest rates at the reporting date would nor affect profit and loss account and equity of the Company.

a.2)  Cath flow sensitivily analysts for varighle rate instruments

The Company is exposed to cash flow interest rate zisk in respect of its balances with saving account with banks . A
change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the year end would not have material impact on profit for the year and
equity of the Company.

b) Sensitivity analysis - equity risk

Equity price tisk is the risk of changes in the fair value of equity securities as the result of changes in the levels of PSX-
100 Index and the value of individual shares. The equity price risk exposure arises from the Company's investments in
equity securities and units of mumal funds. This arises from investments held by the Company for which prices in the
future are uncertain. The Company policy is to manage price risk through diversification and selection of securities
within spectfied limits set by the rmanagetnent.

The management monitors the flucmations of prices of equity securities on regular basis. The Company also has
necessary skills for monitoring and managing the equity portfolio in line with fluctuations of the market.

Market prices are subject to fluctuation and conscquenily the amount realised in the subsequent sale of an investment
may significantly differ from the reported market value. Furthetmore, amount realized in the sale of a particular
security may be affected by the relative quantity 6f the security being sold.

37.3  Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its
obligarion and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to control credit risk by
monitoting credit exposures by undertaking transactions with a lazge number of countetparties in various industries
and by continually assessing the credit worthiness of counterparties.

37.3.1 Exposure to credit risk

Credit risk of the Company anses principally from the balances with banks, loans to employees, investments (except
for investment in government securities, units of mutual funds and listed equity shares), premium due but unpad,
amount due from other insurers / teinsurers, reinsurance and other recoveries against outstanding claims and sundry
receivable. To reduce the credit risk the management continuously reviews and monitors the credit exposure towards
the policyholders and other insurers / reinsurers and makes provision against those balances considered doubtful of
recavery.

In summary, compared to the amount included in statement of assets and habilities, the maximum exposure to credit
tisk as follows:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Balance as per  Maximum Balance as per Maximum
Note the financial exposure the financial eXposure
statement statement
e {Rupees)

Cash at bank 15 142,930,315 142,930,315 315,113,909 315,113,909
[nvestments &9 848,996,830 848,996,830 463,909,374 463,909,374
Loans and other receivables 9 72,271,217 12,211,217 10,535,153 10,535,153
Insurance / reinsurance receivables 10 192,822,757 192,822,757 137,546,331 137 546,331
outstanding chims 122,581,102 122,581,102 101275592 101275592

1,379,602,221  1,379,602,221 1028380350 . 1,028,380,359

The credit quality of Company's bank balances can be assessed with reference to external credit ratings as follows:
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Rating Rating 2024 2023
Short term Long term Agency S 111 1 o) [ ——
Mational Bank of Pakistan Limited Al AAA VIS 138,571 70,525
Allied Bank Limited Al+ AAA { PACRA 257,848 129,069
MCB Bank Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 75,105 37,553
Soner Bank Limited Al+ AA- PACRA 184,108 092,054
United Bank Limited Al+ AAA VIS 137,650,606 310,066,259
8 Bank Limited Al+ AA PACRA 4,624,077 4 718,449

142,930,315 315,113,900

Concentration of credit rask

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counterparties have a similar type of business activities. As a
tesult, any change in economic, political or other condiions would effect their ability to meet contractual obligations
in similar manner. The Company manages concentration of credit risk through diversification of activities among
individuals, groups and industry segments.

The Company enters into re-insurance / co-insurance arrangements with re-insurers / other insurers having sound
credit ratings accorded by reputed credit rating agencies. Further, the Company is required to comply with the
requirements of circular no. 32 / 2009 dated October 27, 2009 issued by SECP which requires an insurance company
to place at least 80% of their outward treaty cessions with reinsurers rated 'A' or above by Standard & Poots with the
balance being placed with entities rated at least 'BBB' by reputable ratings agency. An analysis of all reinsurance assets
recognised by the rating of the entity from which it is due is as follows:

—

Amount due Reinsurance Prepaid
from other and other reinsurance
insurers / recovenes premium
reinsurers against ceded 2024 2023
outstanding
claims
A or above (including PRCL) 186,069,255 58,629,416 20,717,358 265,416,029 162,891,437
A - 8,992,528 22,578,428 32,555,848 64,126,804 72,367,819
BBB 577,543 . s 577,543 2
Othiess 7,492,489 41,373,258 5,919,244 54,784,991 55,153,488
203,131,815 122,581,102 59,192,450 384,905,367 290,412,744

37.3.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations
associated with financial liabilities, Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Company might be unable to
meet its payment obligations when they fall due under normal circumstances. To guard against the nsk, the Company
has diversified funding sources and assets are managed with liquidity in mind, maintaining a healthy balance of cash
and cash equivalents and readily markerable securities. The mamurity profile is monitored to ensure adequate liquidity
is maintained.

The following are the contractual maturities of financial lisbilites:

2024
Carrying Uptoone  Greater than
Amount year one year
Non-Derivative Financial Liabilities === c;esseecceeeee {(Rupees) —=-=--smemrsmmnr——
Outstanding claims including IBNR 280,599,160 280,599,160 : -
Insurance / reinsurance payables 164,136,155 164,136,155 -
Orther creditors and accruals 91,746,332 91,746,332 =

536,481,647 536,481,647 -
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37.3.3

3734

2023
Carrying Upto one Greater than
Amount year one year
Non-Derivative Financial Liabilities (Rupees) -—-m-msmsrmemceeee
Outstanding claims including TBNR . 216,793,824 216,793,824 -
Insurance / reinsurance payables 92,049,713 92,049,713 -
Other creditors and accruals 77,488,261 77,488,261 -
386,331,798 386,331,798 -
Market risk

Market risk is the tisk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices
may affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of markert risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceprable parameters, while optimising the
return. All transactions are carried in Pak Rupees therefore, the Company is not exposed to currency risk. However,
the Company is exposed to interest rate risk and other price risk.

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets at fair value through profit and loss. Therefore, a
change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit and loss account and equity of the Company.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

The Company is exposed to cash flow interest rate tisk in respect of its balances with profit and loss sharing account
with banks and term finance certificates. A change of 100 basis points in intetest rates at the year end would not have
matetial impact on profit for the year and equity of the Company.,

Foreign Currency tisk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because
of changes in exchange rates. The Company, at present is not matetially exposed to currency risk as all of the
transactions are carried out in Pakistani Rupees,

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing
patties in an arm’s length transaction.
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* The Company has not disclosed the fair value of these items because their carrying amounts are a reasonable
approximation of fair value,

Fair value is an amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settded, between knowledgeable willing
partics in an arm's length transaction. Consequently, differences may ause between the carrying values and the fair
values estimates.

The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs
used in making the measurements:

Level 1
Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

Level 2

Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either divectly (i.c. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3

Fair value measurements using inputs for the assct or liability that are not based on observable market data (ie.
unobsetrvable inputs).

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company's objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as 2 going concern
s0 that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and to maintain a
strong capital base to support the sustained development of its business.

The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments to it in the
light of changes in economic conditions.

The Company currently meets the minimum paid-up capital requirement i.e. Rs.500 million as required by the
Securites and Exchange Commission of Pakistan,

CORRESPONDING FIGURES
Previous year figures have been rearranged and/or recalssified, whenever necessary for betrer presentation.

2024 2023
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES SRR, X S S R
Number of employees as at year end 75 76
Average number of employees duting the year 74 71

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

Thesc financial statements have been authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors
an 1.0 AD AN,

= VY MR LYY
GENERAL
Figures in the financial statements are rounded off to the nearest rupes.
oyl
- d

Chief Executive Officer

Director ) FChaitmau
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Alpha

Insurance Company Limited

[A subsidiary of State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan)

MANAGEMENT STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
WITH SHARTAH RULES AND PRINCIPLES

The financial arrangements, contracts, and transactions entered into by Alpha Insurance Company

Limited (Window Takaful Operation) referred to as ‘Operator’ herein after for the year ended 31
December 2024 comply with Takaful Rules, 2012

Further, we confirm that:

1. The Window Takaful Operation (WTO) comply within a Shariah governance framework

whete all produect offerings are approved by a dedicated Sharigh Advisor who ensure strict
shariah compliance at the granular level.

2. The transactions entered into, by the WTO and the Wagqf, as the case may be for the year
Ended 31st December 2024, are in compliance with the requirements of the Shariah
guidelines as preseribed by the Shariah Advisor and the Takaful Rules. 2012

3. The WTO has imparted trainings / orientations and ensured availability of all manuals
approved by the Shariah Advisor and the Board Of Directors to maintain an adequate level
of awareness, capacity and sensitization of the stafl and management

4, The WTO offers a diversified range of Shariah-Compliant product offerings to its
participants. All products have been approved by the Shariah Advisor and the financial
arrangements including investments, investment policies, contracts and transactions

performed by the company are in accordance with the guidelines and policies approved by
the Shariah Advisor, '

5. The assets and liabilities of Takafia] Operations (Participants Takaful Fund) are segregated

from the company s other assets and liabilities of WTO at all times in accordance with the
provisions of Takaful Rules, 2012

I hereby confirm the statement of compliance with Shariah Rules and principles for the year ended

31st December 2024 by the mana gement of Alpha Insurance Company Limited (Window Takaful
Operation)

n
2
Muhammad ¥ashid

Ch¥et Financial Officer
& Company Secretary

Date:

Head Office:

Building Ne. 1-B, State Life Square,

Off. L.I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi-74000.
Tel: 021-32416041-45 Fax:021-32419968
info@alphainsurance.com. pk
m.alpha]nsurance.com.pk
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INDEPENDENT REASONABLE ASSURANCE REPORT 15t & 3rd Floor,
TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON Modern Motors House,
MANAGEMENT'S STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE Beaumont Road,
WITH THE SHARIAH PRINCIPLES Karachi, Pakistan.
Scope T +92 21 354672951-54

We were engaged by the Board of Directors of Alpha Insurance Company Limited (the
Company) to teport on the management's assessment of compliance of the Window Takaful
Operadons (Takaful Operations) of the Company, as set out in the annexed statement prepared
by the management for the year ended December 31, 2024, with the Takaful Rules, 2012, in
the form of an independent reasonable assurance conclusion about whether the annexed
statement reflects the smtus of compliance of the Takaful Operations with the Takatul Rules,
2012, in all material respects. This engagement was conducted by a multdisciplinary team
including assurance practitioners and independent Shatiah scholars.

Applicable Criteria

The criteria for the assurance engagement against which the annexed statement has been
assessed comprises of the Takaful Rules, 2012, issued by the Seccurities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

Management's Responsibility for Shariah Compliance

The management is responsible for preparation and designing, implementing and maintaining
internal controls relevant to the preparation of the annexed statement that is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. It also includes ensuring the overall compliance
of the Takaful Operations with the Takaful Rules, 2012,

The management is also responsible for preventing and detecting fraud and for identifying and
ensuring that the Takaful Operations comply with laws and repulations applicable to its
activities. They are also responsible tor ensuring that the management, where appropriate, those
charged with governance, and personnel involved with the Takaful Operations compliance with
the Takaful Rules, 2012 are propetly trained, systems are propetly updated and that any changes
in reporting encompass all significant business units.

Our Independence and Quality Control

We have complied with the independence and other ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics
for Chartered Accountants issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, which
is founded on fundamental principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence and due
care, confidentality and professional behavior. d

Chartered Aecoumtarits grantthornton.pk
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The firm applies Internatonal Standards on Quality Management 1 "Quality Management for
Firms Thar Perform Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Tnformaton, Or Other
Assurance and Related Services Engagements” and accordingly maintains a comprehensive
system of quality control including documented policies and procedures regarding compliance
with ethical requirements, professional standards and applicable legal and regulatory
requirements,

Our Responsibility and Summary of The Work Performed

Our responsibility is to examine the annexed statement and to report thereon in the form of an
independent reasonable assurance conclusion based on the evidence obrained. We conducted
our engagement in accordance with Internatonal Standard on Assurance Engagements (ISAE)
3000 (Revised), “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information™ issued by the International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board.
That standard requires that we plan and perform our procedures to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the annexed statement presents reflects the status of compliance of the Takatul
Operations with the Takaful Rules, 2012, in all material respects.

The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the tisks of
material non-compliances with the Takaful Rules, 2012, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, we have considered internal control relevant to the Takaful
Operations’ compliance with the Takaful Rules, 2012, in order to design assurance procedures
that are appropriate in the citcumstances, but not for the purposes of expressing a conclusion
as to the effectiveness of the Corporation's internal control over the Takaful Operations'
compliance with the Takaful Rules, 2012. Reasonable assurance is less than absolute assurance.

A system of internal control, because of its nature, may not prevent or detect all instances of
non-compliance with Takaful Rules, 2012, and consequently cannot provide absolute assurance
that the objective of compliance with Takaful Rules, 2012, will be met. Also, projection of any
evaluation of effectveness to future perlods is subject 1o the risk that the controls may become
inadequate or fail.

The procedure performed included:

- Evaluate the systems, procedures and practices in place with respect to the Takaful
operations against the Takaful Rules, 2012 and Shariah advisor’s guidelines;

- Evaluating the guidelines arrangements including the reporting of events and status to these
charged with relevant responsibilities, such as the Audit Commiltee/ Shariah Advisor and
the Board of Directors;

- Test for a sample of transactions relating to the Takatul operations to ensure that these are
carried out in accordance with the laid procedures and practices including the regulations
relating to the Takaful operations as laid down in Takaful Rules, 2012; and

- Review the statement of management’s assessment of compliance of the Takaful
transactions during the year ended December 31, 2024 with the Takaful Rules, 2012.

- Taking necessary guidelines on Shariah matters from independent Shariah scholar referred
above.
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Conclusion

QOur conclusion has been formed on the basis of, and is subject to, the matters outlined in this
report. We believe that the evidence we have obrained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our conclusion.

In our opinion, the annexed statement, for the year ended December 31, 2024, presents faicly
the status of compliance of the Takaful Operations with the Takaful Rules, 2012, in all material
respects.

P S R WA L

Chartered Accountants
Karachi
Date: May 21, 2025
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SHARIAH ADVISOR REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

For the year ended 31 December 2024
32§ (el ada g all 8 5 oAV il dana (b pall g e LuiVidie o a3l g 35kall § Cysalal) oy difdaadl

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of Alpha Insurance Company Limited Window Takaful Operation
(hereafter referred as “The Operator”) for the year ended 31 December 2024.

We acknowledge that as a Shariah Advisor of the Operator, it is Shariah Department’s responsibility to ensure that the financial
arrangements, contracts and transactions under taken by the Operator with its participants and stakeholders are compliant with
the requirements of Shariah rules and principles.

As per the charter of the Operator it is mandatory on the management and employees to ensure application of Shariah guidelines
issued by the Shariah Advisor and to ensure Shariah compliance in all actives of the Company. The prime responsibility for ensuring
Shariah compliance of the Operator’s operations thus lies with the managements.

To form our opinion as expressed in this report, we have reviewed all types of business transactions of the Operator during the
year 2024. Based on above, we are of the view that under Takaful Rule 2012,

Vi

The financial arrangements products and transactions entered into by the Operator and the Wagf, as the case may be
for the year ended December 31, 2024 are incompliance with the requirements of the Shariah rules and guidelines as
prescribed by the Shariah Advisor

The Operator strived to identify new investment avenues and opted different available options that delivered excellent
results. During the year management continuously consulted with the Shariah advisor on the matters and market
practices relating to investment activities. The investment avenues and locations selected by the investment manager
were periodically reviewed by the Shariah Department and are found Shariah compliant and in conformity with the
Shariah guidelines issued by the Shariah Advisor.

Few minor cases which had some irregularities from the Shariah perspective were discussed with the management and
duly resolved. Furthermore, the management of the Takaful Operator has been advised to strictly follows Shariah
compliance in future,

The Shariah Department has provided Basic Takaful training to the staff of the window Takaful operations. Meanwhile,
the mandatory training on Takaful Concept and practices was also organized for executive level & sales staff as well.
The Operator-should more focus towards enhancing the skills and knowledge for the all staff of Window Takaful related
to the Shariah structure of the company and on Takaful Concept and practices. The Operator should organize the more
sessions for executive level & sales staff as well around the country.

Consequently, we have found that the company is in accordance with the Shariah principals with respect to all
transactions

May Allah bless us with the best Tawfeeq to achieve this precious tasks and bestow us with success in this world and in the
world hereafter and forgive us for our mistakes. A'ameen.

U

Mufti Sajjad Ashraf Usmani
Shariah Advisor
Alpha Insurance Company

Window Takaful Operations

Head Office:

Building No. 1-B, State Life Square,

Off. 1.1, Chundrigar Road, Karachi-74000.
Tel: 021-32416041-45 Fax:021-32413968
info@alphainsurance.com.pk
www.alphainsurance.com.pk
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 6 el Fhise
TO THE MEMBERS OF ALPHA INSURANCE COMPANY  Modern Motors House,
LIMITED - WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS Beaumeont Road,

Karachi, Pakistan.

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS T +92 21 35672951-56

Opinion .

We have audited the annexed Anancial statements of Alpha Insurance Company Limited —
Window Takaful Operations (the Operator), which comprise the statement of financial
position as at December 31, 2024, the profit and loss account, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in funds, the cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including summary of material accounting policies and
other explanatory information and we state rhat we have obtained all the information and
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes
of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our informarion and according to the explanations given to
us, the statement of financial positon, the profic and loss account, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in funds and the cash How statement together
with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and
the Companies Act, 2017 (XTX of 2017}, 2017, in the manner so required and respectively give
a true and fair view of the state of the Operator's affairs as at December 31, 2024, and of the
loss, other comprehensive income, the changes in funds and its cash flows for the year then

ended.
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemnatonal Stindards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Awditor’s Responsébilities for the Andit of the Uinanial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Operator in accordance with the International Ethies Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Fthivs for Profescional Avconntants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obrained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Chartorad Accountanis grantthornton.pk
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

-

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual teport, but does. not include the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audir of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materdally inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained In the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstared. 1, based on the work we have performed on the other information
obrained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Ditectots for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017)
and for such internal contrel as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from marterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Operator’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Operator or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but o do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Operator’s financul reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur cbjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errvor, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan
will always detect 4 material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
staterments,

As part of an audit in accordance with TSAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
mistepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Operator’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obmined, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Operator’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we arce
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Operator to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

)

b)

proper books of account have been kept by the Operator as required by the Insurance
Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017},

the statement of financial positon, the profit and loss account, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in funds and the cash flow statement
together with the notes thercon have been drawn up in conformity with the Insurance
Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) are in agreement with the
books of account and returns;

investments made, expenditures incurred and guarantees extended during the period were
for the purpose of the Operator’s business; and

no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of
1980,
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The tngzgcml:nt partner on the audit Le:,ultmg in this independent auditor’s report is
Muhammad Khalid Aziz.

VT G L Hn s,

Chartered Accounrtants

Karachi
Dated: May 21, 2025
UDIN: AR202410154BqgrUjWhC
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ALPHA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED - WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024
Operator's Fund Participant’s Fund
2024 2023 2024 2023
MNotes = sceeeeccesceceee——a- (Rupees) ~=—m-mmmemammmncmaenn

ASSBETS .
Qard e Hasna to Participants' Takaful Fund 25,000,000 - -
Investments

Debt securities 5 - 25,000,000 - -
Takaful / retakaful recetvables [ - - 10,107,008 9428336
Reinsurance Recovetable - - 626,028 -
Deferred Wakala fee 19 - - §,290,890 5,406,244
Deferred commission expense 18 3,282,754 2,823,772 - -
Receivable from OPF/PTF T 11,716,563 10,709,827 - -
Taxation - payments less provision 514,327 22,018 507,879 58,252
Other receivables 8 - 1,095,865 887,926 -
Prepayments 9 - - 9,803,237 10,630,110
Cash and bank 10 40,804,664 25,545,371 48,778,456 9,533,690
Total Assets ) 81,318,308 65,196,853 79,001,424 35,056,640
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserve attributable to:
Operator's Fund (OPF)
Statutory fund 50,000,000 50,000,000 - -
Accomulated Surplus 7,670,246 2,883 227 - #
Total Shareholders Equity 57,670,246 52,883.227 - 5
Participants’ Takaful Fund (PTF)
Ceded money - - 500,000 500,000
Accumulated deficit - - (18,613,794) (2,474,275)
Total Participants' Takaful Fund Equity - - (18,113,794) (1,974,275)
Qard-e-Hasna from Operator's Takaful Fund - = 25,000,000 -
Liabilities
PTF Underwriting Provisions
Outstanding claims including IBNR 16 - - 8,437,126 490,482
Unearned contrdbution reserve 14 - - 26,817,572 15,584,797
Reserve for unearmned retaleaful rebate 15 - 317,169 372,110
Conttibution Deficiencey Reserves - . 3,514,142 -
Unearned wakala fee 19 8,290,890 5,406,246 - -
Conttibution teceived in advance - - 144,840 376,317
Takaful / retakaful payables 11 - . 11,207,323 4,649,812
Other creditors and accruals 12 15,357,172 6,907,380 9,960,483 4,847,570
Payable to OPF/PTF 7 - - 11,716,563 10,709,827
Total liabilities 23,648,062 12,313,626 72,115,218 37,030,915
Total equity and liabilitics 81,318,308 65,196,853 79,001,424 35,056,640
Contingencies and commitments 13

The annexed notes 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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ALPHA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED - WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

.Y

Participant's Fund

Contributions earned
Less: Contmbutions ceded to retakaful
Net contributions revenue f {1055}

Rerakaful rebate earned
Net underwriting income / (loss)

Ner claims - reported / sertled - IBNE
Conrriburion deficiency
Other direct expenses

Deficit before investment income

Other income
Less:Mudarib's share of investment
Deficit transferred to accumulated deficit

Opetator’s Fund

Wakala fee
Commission expense
Management expense

Mudarhb's share of PTF on investment income
Investment income

Other income

Ceded money expense

Other expenses

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit after taxation

The anncxed notes 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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2024 2023
------------- {Rupees)—-mememmmmamn-
27,148,006 6,065,599
(23,026,647) {6,207,918)
4,121,359 (142,319
654,898 65,172
4,776,257 (77,147
(19,622,047) (591,346)
(3,514,142) -
{600,793) (2,077,624
(23,736,982) {2,668,970)
(18,960,725) 2,746,117)
2,821,206 388,346
- (116,504)
(16,139,519) (2,474,275)
14,892,500 3,218,875
(8,108,189) (1,340,792)
(5,910,866) (4,078,757)
873,445 (2,200,674
- 116,504
1,567,662 3,759,392
5,012,472 3,558,607
- (500,000
(711,299) (672,947)
6,742,280 4,060,882
(1,955,261) {1,177,653)
4,787,019 2,883,227
i
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ALPHA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED - WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

2024 2023
Rﬂﬂiﬂmm}ﬂﬂ —————m——— {(Rupees)-m=s=s---a-
Deficit for the year (16,139,519) (2,474,275)
Other comprehensive income ; - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year (16,139,519) (2474,275)
Operator's Fund
Profit after tax for the year 4,787,019 2883227
Other comprehensive income . -
Total comprehensive income for the year 4,787,019 2,883,227
The annexed notes 1 to 33 form an ingegral part of these financial statements.
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ALPHA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED - WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Operating Cash flows

{a) Takaful activities
Conmbution received
Rensurance recoveries received
Retakaful contribution paid
Claims paid
Re-rakaful rebate reccived
MNet cash flow from takaful activities

{b) Other operating activitics
Income tax paid
Comission paid
Wakala/ Mudarib fee received / (paid)
Ceded money expense
Receivable from OPF/PTH
Othier operating payments / receipts -~

Net cash Hlow (used in) / generated from other operating acrivities

Total cash flow (used in) / generated from all operating activities

(c) Investment activities
Profit / retumn recetved
Payments for investments
Proceed from investments

Total cash flow generated from / (used in) investing activities

(d} Financing activities
Contrbution to the operator funds
Qard ¢ Hasna {paid) / received

Total cash flows generated from financing activities

Net cash flow generated from all activities
Cash and cash equivalenis at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
Reconciliation to profit and lose account

Operating cash flows

Profit / retuen recetved
Investment income

Increase in assets orther than cash
Increase in liabilides

Profit / (deficit) after taxation

Attnbuted to:
Operator's Fund
Participants’ Takaful Fund

The annexed notes 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.

J
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Operator's Fund

Participant's Fund

S5

2024 2023 2024 2023
LT 1) I ———
- 65,307,696 15,817,253
Yoo 1,005,857 2
- (22,199,774)  (12,188217T)
. (13,307,288) (100,864)
= 599,957 437,282
N 31,406,448 3,965,454
24475700 [ (1199673 (449,627) (58,252)
(7,391,296)| | (1,500410) < .
25,000,000 : (25,000,000) s
- (500,000) - -
(7,577,840)| | (2,475,680) 5,466,733 4,738,148
7,583,294 (5,676,763)  (19,982,894) 4,679,896
7,583,294 (5,676,763) 11,423,554 B,645,350
7,675,999 6,222,134 2,821,206 388,346
= (25,000,000 - .
25,000,000 - . :
32,675,999  (18,777,866) 2,821,206 388,346
< 50,000,000 - 500,000
(25,000,000) - 25,000,000 :
(25,000,000y 50,000,000 25,000,000 500,000
15,259,293 25545371 39,244,760 9,533,696
25,545,371 : 9,533,696 =
40,804,664 25545371 48,778,456 9,533,696
7,583,294 (5,676,763 11,423,554 8,645 350
5,012,472 3,558,607 2,821,206 388,346
2,663,527 3,759,392 - -
862,162 13,555,617 4,700,024 25,522 944
(11,334,436)  (12,313,626)  (35,084,303)  (37,030,915)
4,787,019 2,883,227  (16,139,519)  (2,474,275)
e —
4,787,019 2,883,227 - -
. - (16,139,519)  (2,474,275)
4,787,019 2,883,227  (16,139,519)  (2,474,275)
| S
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ALPHA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED - WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Balance as at January 01, 2023
Contribution to the operator funds
Profit for the year

(ther comprehensive income
Balance as at December 31, 2023
Balance as at January (1, 2024
Profit for the vear

Orther comprehensive income

Balance as at December 31, 2024

Balance as at January 01, 2023

Additon duting rthe year
Deficir for the year

Othet-comprehensive mcome
Balance as at December 31, 2023
Balance as at January (1, 2024

Deficit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Balance as at December 31, 2024

Operator's Fund

The annexed notes 1 1o 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statutory Fund e Total
profit
e (Rupees) -——--—-—memmmmeeeeeen
50,000,000 = 50,000,000
2 2,883,227 2,883,227
50,000,000 2,883,227 52,883,227
50,000,000 2,883,227 52,883,227
5 4,787,019 4,787,019
50,000,000 7,670,246 57.670,246
Participants' Takaful Fund
Accumulated ;
Ceded money Deficit I'otal
{Rupees)
500,000 - 500,000
y (2,474,275) (2,474,275
500,000 (2,474,275) (1,974,275)
500,000 (2,474,275) (1,974,275)
: (16,139,519) (16,139,519)
500,000 (18,613,794) (18,113,794)
HTwr
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ALPHA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED - WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

1

21

2.2

2.3

2.4

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Alpha Tnsurance Company Limited (the Operater) has been authonized to undertake Window Takaful Operations
(WTO) on November 21, 2022 by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) under SECP Takaful
Rules, 2012 to carry on General Window Takaful Operanons in Pakistan. The registered office of the Company is
situated at 4th Floor, Bulding # 1-B, State Life Square, [ 1. Chundrigar Road, Karachi.

For the purpose of carrying on the Takaful business, the Operaror has formed a Waqf (Participants' Takaful Fund (PTF)
on January 11, 2023 under the Wagf Deed with 2 Seed money of Rs. 500,000. The Waqf Deed and PTF Policies (Waqf
Rules) govern the relationship of Operator, Waqf and Participants for management of Takaful operations, investment of
Waqf and Operator’s Fund as appraved by the Sharish Adwvisor of the Operator. The accounts of the Waqf are
maintained by the Opetator in a manner thar the assets and liabilities of Waqf temain separately idenufiable. The
financial statements of the Operator are prepared in such a manner that the financial positon and results from the
operations of Waqgf and the Opetaror ate shown separarely.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan.
Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the
Intetnational Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are notfied under the Companies Act, 2017, Islamic Financial
Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, as are notified under the
Companies Acr, 2017, provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, the Insurance Ordinance,
2000, the Takaful Rules, 2012 and the General Takaful Accounting Regulations, 2019,

In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Act, 2017, the Insurance Ordinance, 2000, the
Takaful Rules 2012 and the General Takaful Accounting Regulations, 2019 shall prewvail.

These finaneal statements reflect the financial position and results of operanons of both the Operator's Takatul Fund
(OPF) and Participants' Takaful Fund (PTF) {(collectively WT'()) in a manner that the assets, liabilities, income and
expenses of the Operator and Parncipants’ Talkful Fund remain separately identfiable.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepated under the historical cost except for available for sale investments thar are
measure at fair value.

Functional And Presentation Currency

These financial statermnents are presented in Pak Rupees which is also the WTO's functional currency, All financial
information presented in Pak Rupees has been rounded 1o nearest thousand Rupees, unless otherwise stated.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that were effective in the
current year

The Company has adopted following accounting standards, interpretations and amendments of IFRSs and the improvements
to accounting standards which became effective for the current year,

Amendments to approved accounting standards Effective Date
Classification of liabilities as current or non-cureent {Amendments to TAS 1 in January 2020) January 01, 2024
Non-current habilines with covenants (Amendment to [AS 1 1n October 2022) January 01, 2024
Lease Liabiliry inn a sale and leaseback (Amendment to IFRS 16 in September 2022) January 01, 2024
Supplier finance arrangements (Amendments to [AS 7 and IFRS 7) January 01, 2024

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 and
the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting periods beginning on orafter 1 January 2025,

Amendments to approved accounting standards

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendment ro IFRS 10 and
[AS 28) amend accounting treatment on loss of contral of business or assets. The amendments also introduce new
accounting for less frequent transaction that involves neither cost nor full step-up of certain retained Interests in assets
that are not businesses. The effective date for these changes has been deferred indefinitely undl the completon of 2
broader review. Early adoption continues to be permitted.



ALPHA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED - WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS
WOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Lack of Exchangeability (amendments to [AS 21) clarify:

- when a cutrency is exchangeable into another currency; and
- how a company estimates a spot rate when a currency lacks exchangeability

Further, operators will néed to provide new disclosutes to help users assess the impact of using an estimared exchange
rate on the financial sratements. These disclosures might include:

- The nature and financial impacts of the currency not being exchangeable;
The spor exchange rare used;
The estirmation process; and
Risks to the operator because the currency is not exchangeable,

The amendments apply for annual repotting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025, Earlier application is
permitted.

- Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments - Amendments to [FRS 9 “Finanecial
Instruments” and IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments Disclosures” Financial Assets with ESG-linked features.

Under IFRS 9, it was unclear whether the contractual cash flows of some financial asser with ESG-linked features
represented SPPIL This could have resulted in financial assers with ESG-linked fearures being measured at fair value
through profit or loss. Although the new amendments are more permissive, they apply te all contngent features, not
just ESG-linked features. While the amendments may allow certain financial assets with contingent features to meet the
SPPI criterion, companies may need to perform additional work to prove this. Judgement will be required in
determining whether the new test 1s met.

The amendments introduce an additional SPPT test for financial assets with contingent features that are not related
directly to a change in basic lending risks or costs - e.g,, where the cash flows change depending on whether the
borrower meets an ESG tarpet specified in the loan contract.

The amendments also include additional disclosures for all financial assets and financial liabilivies that have cerrain
contingent features that are:

- not related directly to a change in basic lending nisks or costs;
- not measured ar fair value through profit or loss; and
- recognition / derecognition requirements of financial assets / liabilides by electronic payments.

The amendments to IFRS 9 clarify when a financial asset or a financial liability is recognised and derecognised and
provide an exception for certain financial lizbilitics settled using an clectronic payment system. Companics generally
derecognise their trade payables on the sertdement date (1.e. when the payment is completed). However, the amendments
provide an exeeption for the derecognition of financial liabilitics, The exception allows the Operator to derccognise its
trade payable before the settlemnent date, when it uses an clectronic payment system that meets all of the following
criteria:

- Nao practical ability to withdraw, stop or cancel the payment instruction;

- No practcal ability to access the cash to be used for setlement as a resulr of the payment instruction; and

- The setlement risk associated with the electronic payment systemn is insignificant,
The amendments apply for repotting petiods beginning on or after 1 January 2026. Companies can choose to early-

adopt these amendments (including the associared disclosure requirements), separately from the amendments for the
recognition and derecogniton of financial assers and financial liabilities.

- Other related amendment:
Contractually linked instruments (CL1s) and non-recourse features:

The amendments clarify the key chatactenistics of CLIs and how they differ from financial assets with non-recourse
feaures. The amendments also include factors that a company needs ro consider when assessing the cash fows
underlying a financial asset with non-recourse fearures (the Took through' test).

Disclosures on investments in equity instruments:

The amendments require additional disclosures for investments in equity instruments that are measured ar fair value
with gains or losses presented in other comprehensive income (FVOCI),

The amendments apply for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026, Earlier applicaton 1s permitted.
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Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards — Amendments to:

- IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards;

- IFRS 7 Finanecial Instruments: Disclosures and it's accompanying Guidance on implementing TFRS 7;
- IFES 9 Financial Insmuments;

- IFRS 10 Consolidared Financial Statements; and
- LAS 7 Statement of Cash flows

The amendements to IFRS 9 address:

- conflicr berween IFRS 9 and TFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers over the imital measurement of
trade receivables: Under IFRS 15, a trade recetvable may be recopgnised at an amount that differs from the
transaction price e.g, when the transaction price is vanable. Convetsely, IFRS 9 requires that companies initially
measure trade receivables without a significant financing component at the transaction price. The IASB has
amended IFRS 9 to require companies to intially measure 2 wade receivable without a significant financing
component at the amount determined by applying IFRS 15; and

- how a lessee accounts for the derecognition of a lease liability under paragraph 23 of TFRS 9:

When lease Labilities are derecognised under IFRS 9, the difference berween the carrying amount and the consideration
paid is recognised in profit and loss account.

The amendment on wade receivables may require some companies to change their accounting policy.

The amendments apply for annual reporting periods bepinning on or after 1 January 2026. Easlier applicaton is
permirted.

The amendment on derccogrition of lease liabilities applies only to lease liabilites extinpuished on or after the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which the amendment is first applied.

Temporary exemption from IFRS 17 and IFRS 9

Pursuant ro the requirements of Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan SRO 1715 {T) / 2023 dated 21 November
2023 IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts”, 1s applicable to the companies engaged in insurance / takaful and re-insurance / re-
takaful business from financial years commencing on or after January 01, 2025,

TIFRS 17, replaces TFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts”. The new standard will apply to all entities thar issne insurance and
reinsurance conrracts, and to all enrides that hold reinsurance contracrs, This srandard requites enrities to identify contracts
and its rerms and to assess whether they meet the definition of an insurance contract or includes components of an insurance
contract, Insurance contracts are u:quit::d to account for under the rccagnitlan Fi dc:cc::gnitiun of IFRS 17. Compmuc:s
subject to the requirement of SRO 1715 will also be required to adopt requirements of TFRS 9 from the date of transition.
On inutial application of IFRS 17, comparative information for insurénce contracts is restated in aceordance with IFRS 17,
whereas comparative informaton for related financial assets might not be resrared in aceordance with IFRS 9 if the insurer i3
smitially applying IFRS 9 at the same date as [FRS 17,

SECP through s S.RO.506(1)/2024 has directed that the applicabulity period of optional temnporary exempton from
applying IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments™ as given in para 20\ of IFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts” is extended for annual
periods beginning before 01 January 2026, subjecr to fulfilling the same conditions as are prescribed by para 208 of TFRS 4,

SECP vide lerwer no. ID/MDPRD/IFRS-17/2021/176 dated 15 June 2021 inivated a four-phase approach towards
mmplementation of IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts”. The first three phases now stand completed and Phase 4 parallel run and
implementation has commenced and is currently under progress.

In Phase 4 SECP requires parallel run of TFRS 17 for the year ended 31 December 2024 ro be submitred ro SECP by 30 June
2025 and dry run on the financial staternent of the first quarter of 2025 to be submitted by 30 November 2025,

The rables below ser our the fair values as at the end of reporting vear and the amount of change in the fair value during that
year for the following two groups of Anancial assets separately:

a) financial assets with contractual terms that grve rise on specified dates to cash flows thae are solely pavments of prncpal
and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding, excluding any financial asset thar meers the definition of fair
value through profic and loss in IFRS 9, or that is managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis; and

b all other financial assets,

Fair value of financial assets and chanpe in the fair values during the year ended December 31,2024,
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3.11

3.2

Ar at 31 December 2024
Fail the SPPT test Paass the SPPI test
z = Change in Change in
Financial assces alised unrcalised
Fair Valus bsdniperinnin Fair Value ; =
5 gain during gain during
the year the year
Cash and bank™ - - 529,583,120 -
lovestrment in debr securities = - = -
= - 89,583,120 =
* The carrying amount of these financial assets measured applying IAS 39 are a reasonable approximation of their fair
values,
Mg oat 31 December 2023
Fail the SPPI test Paus the SPPT rest
Financial asscts Change in Change in
Fair Value unrealised gain Fair Value unrealized gain
during the year during the year
Cash and banl* * - - 35,079,067 -
Invesoment in debt securities - - 25,000,000 -
Y - GO.079.067 =

* The carrying amount of these financial assets measured applying IAS 39 are a reasonable approximation of their fair
values.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The material accounting policies adopted in the preparanon of these financial statements are consistent to all the years
presented. Detalls of these accounting policies are as follows:

Takaful contracts

The takaful contracts are based on the ptinciples of Wakala. The rakaful contracts so agreed usually inspire conceprt of
tabatru (to donate for benefit of others) and mutual sharing of losses with the overall objective of eliminating the
clement of uncertainty.

A separate Participants Takaful Fund (PTF) has been created in which all contriburion received under general takaful
contribution net off any government levies and administrative surchatge are credited. The role of takaful operator 1s ef
the management of the PTF. At the initial stage of the setup of the PTF, the takaful operator makes an inital donation
to the PTF. The terms of the takaful contracts are in accordance with the generally accepted principles and norms of
insurance business smrably modified with guidance by the Sharizh Advisor of the Takaful operator.

These contracts are entered with group companies, corporate clienrs, and individuals residing or located in Pakistan,

Once 2 contract has been classified as an takful contract, it remains a rakaful contract for the remainder of its period,
even if the takaful risk reduces significantly during this period, unless all rights and lishilities are extinguished or expired.

Takaful contracts are classified into following main catepories:
Fire and property

The petils covered under fire insurance include damages caused by fire, tiot and stike, explosion, earthquake,
atmospheric damage, flood, electric fluctuation, impact and other coverage.

Marine and transport

Matine and transport rakaful provides coverage against cargo risk, war risk and damages occurring in inland transit.
Motor

Motor takaful provides comprehensive car coverage and indemmnity against third party loss.

Other classes

Other classes includes mainly bond, liability, engineering, etc.

Commission expense

Comimission incurred in obtaining and recording takaful are defetred and recognised 4s an asser, These costs are
charged to the profit and loss acocunt based on the pattern of recognition of contibution revenue,
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3.5

3.6

3.7

Rebate income

Rebate income from retakaful is recognized on the date of the commencement of the undetlying itakaful conreact.
These are deferred and recognized in the profit and loss account as revenue in accordance with the patrern of
recoginition of the rerakaful conrtbutions.

Contribution

For all the takaful contracts, contributions / cover notes issued including administrafive surcharge received / receivable
under a policy / cover note are recognised as written from the date of attachment of the risk to the policy / cover note
and over the period of contract from inception to the expiry of policy. Where contrbutons for a policy are payable in
installments, full contributon for the duraton of the policy is tecognised as written at the inception of the paolicy and
related assets ser up for contributions receivable ar a later date. Contributions are stated on gross basis and exclusive of
raxes and duties levied on contributions.

Uneamed Contribution

Contribution under @ policy is recongnised on the time of commencement of the takaful contract. The uncarned
contribution reserve is the unexpired portion of the contribution including administrative surcharge. Uncarned
premuiums have been t:alculatc‘d by applying 1/24th [/ 1/6th method as applicable and specified in the Insurance Rules,
2017. Remaining portion is recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Contribution deficiency reserve

The WTQ is required as per Insurance Rules, 2017, to maintain 2 provision in respect of contribution deficiency for the
class of business where the uneatned contribution reserve is not adequate to meet the expected future liability, after
rerakaful, from claims and other expenses, including tetakaful expense, commissions and other underwriting expenses,
expected ro be incurred after the balance sheet date in respect of the unexpired takaful contract in that class of business
at the reported date. The movement in the contributon deficiency reserve is recorded as an expense in the Starement of
profit and loss and the same is recognized as a liability.

The WTO derermines adequacy of hability of contribution deficiency by catrying out analysis of expired petiods. For
this putpose actuarial valuation has been carded out to determine the amount of conmibution deficiency reserve as
required by under Insurance Rules, 2017 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan on January 09,
2012, However, the management, including on the basis of this actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2023, consider
that no conttibution deficiency reserve is required to the maintained.

Retakaful contracts held

Takaful contracts entered mto by the WTO (for FIT) with retakaful operator for compensaton of losses suffered on
takaful contracts issued are retakaful contracts. These retakaful contracts include both faculraove and treaty arrangement
contracts and are classified in same categories of takaful contracts for the purpose of these financial staternents. The
WTO recognizes the enttled benefits under the contract as retakaful assets. Ourward retakaful contribution are
accounted for in the same period as the related contribution for the direct or sccepted retakaful business being covered
under the retakaful arrangement.

Rerakaful liabilicies represent bialances due to retakaful entities. Amounts payable ate estimated in a manner consistent
with the related retakaful conteace.

Rerakaful assets represent balances due from retakaful companies. Amounts recoverable from retakaful operator are
estimated in a manner consistent with the provision for eutstanding claims or settled claims associated with the
retakaful contract and are in accordance with the related retakaful contract. Retakaful assets are not offser against related
rerakaful labilities. Incorne or expenses from rerakaful contracts are not offser against expenses or income from relared

retakaful assets / lizhilities,

The deferred portion of retakaful contribution ceded is recognized as a prepayment which is calculated in accordance
with the pattern of recognition of revenue.

The WTO assesses its retakaful assets for impairment on financial statement date. If there is an objective evidence that
the rerakaful asset is tmpaired, the WTO reduces the carrying amount of the retakaful asser to its recoverable amount
and recognises that impairment loss in the Statement of profit and loss account.
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3.9

3.10
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Receivables and payables
Receivables related to Takaful contract

Receivables related to takaful contracts are recognized and due at cost which is the fair value of the consideration given
less provision for impairthent, if any. If there is an objective evidence that the takaful receivable 15 impaired, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the ininal recognition, the WT'O reduces the carrying amount of the takaful
receivables accordingly and recopnizes thar impairment loss in the Statement of profic and loss account.

Provisian for impairment on contribution receivables is estimated on a systematic basis after analyzing the receivables as
per their aging.
Creditors, aceruals and provisions

Liabilines for creditors and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be
paid in furure for the goods and / or services received, whether ar not billed to the WTO.

Provisions are recognised when the WTO has 3 present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it
1s probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefirs will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Provisions are reviewed at each financial statement date and adjusted to reflect the current estimate,
Reinsurance recoveries against ourstading claims

Claim recoveries against outstanding claims from the reinsurer and salvage are recognized as an asset at the same tme as
the claims which give rise to the night of recovery are recognized as a liability and are measured at the amount expected
to be recevied.

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the WTO rhar engapes in business acrivites from which it may earn revenues
and incur expenses including revenues and expenses that relate to rransactions with any of the company’s other
components. All operadng segments’ results are reviewed regulatly by the management to make decisions about
resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, for which discrete financial informanon is available.

The WTO presents segment reporting of aperating results using the classes of business as specified under the Insurance
Rules, 2017 and General Takalful Accounting Regulation, 2019. The reported operating segments are also consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the Board of Directors who assess the performance of the operating segments.
The performance of segments 15 evaluated on the basis of underwriting results of cach segment.

Assers, lisbilities and capiral expenditures thar are directly zrrtiburable to specify segments are assigned to them, while
the cartying amount of cerrain assets (liabilites) used (incurred) joindy by two or more segments are allocated to
segments on a reasonable basis. Those assers and lisbilides which cannot be allocated o a pardeular segment on a
reasonable basis are reported as unallocated corporate assers and liabilines,

The WTO has four primary business segments for reporting purposes, namely fire and property, marine and transporr,
motor and other classes. The nature and business activities of these segments are disclosed in note no. 4.1. Income and
expenses directdy attribute to a pardeular segment is so allocated. Underwriting expenses have been allocated to various
classes of business on a basis deemed equitable by the mianagement. Expenses not artriburable to the underwriting
business are charged 2s other expenses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash :qLu'.l‘a.lcnts are carred in the fnancial statement at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents consists of cash in hand, stamps in hand and current and saving accounts with banks.

Revenue recognition

3,11.1.1 Contribution

Thc revenue rCCGEﬂi[:i.OIl pD]JC‘_{ fCII Cnnn:i.butiun j.S givcn undcr note 3.4,

3.11.1.2 Retakaful rebate income

The revenue recognition policy for rebate from rerakaful opertaors is given under note 3.3.

3.11.1.3 Dividend income .

dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the dividend is established,
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3.11.1.4 Gain / (loss) on sale / redemption of investments

Gain / (loss) on sale / redemption of investments is taken to profit and loss account in the year of sale / redemprian.

3.11.1.5 Income on debt securities and bank balances

312

313

3131

Income en debt securities and bank balances is recognized on a time propotonate basis taking account the effectivencss
yield on the investment / bank balances.

Wakala fecs

The Operator manages the genetal takaful operations for the participants and charges 35% (2023: 35%) for fire and
property, 35% (2023: 35%) for marine, aviation and transport, 35% (2023: 35%) for motor, 35% (2023 35%) for
engincering, 20% (2023: 35%) for health and 35% (2023: 35%) for miscellaneous of gross contribution wntten including
administrative surcharge as wakala fee against the services.

The Takaful operator also manages the participants' investment as Mudarib and charges 30% of the investment /
deposit income earned by the Participants’ Takaful Fund as Mudarib's share (2023: Nil).

Investments

These comprises of the following:

- In debr securites - held-to-maturity
Measurement

Held-to-marturity

Ar the dme of acquisition, investments with fixed marrity, where management has both the intent and the ability to
hold ull maturity, are classified as held-to-maturiey.

Subsequently, these are measured at amortised cost less provision for impairment in value, if any. Amortised cost is
caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisiion by using the effective yicld method.

The difference between the redemption value and the purchase price of the held-to-maturity investments is amortised
and tzken to the profir and loss account over the rerm of the investment.

1' These are reviewed for impaitment at year end and any losses adsing from impairment in values are charged 1o the

314

3.15

Statement of profit ar loss.
Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial labilites are offset and the net armount 15 reported in the financial statement, 1f the WO
has a legally enforceable nght ro ser-off and the WTO intends either to settle the assets and Liabilines on 4 net basis ot
to realise the asser and sertle the lability simultaneously.

Taxation
Current - OPF

Prowision for current taxation is based on taxable income of the operator for the year deretmined in accordance with
the tax rates enacted on substantially enacted as at the year end. The charge for current rax also include adjustments,
where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising from assessments finalized during the
current year for such years / relating to the operators fund operated.

Deferred - OPF

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability methed, in respect of temporary differences arising at the
balance sheer date berween the tax bases of assers and liabilides and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes.

Deferred tax labilines are generally recognised for all raxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
tecognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deducoble temporary
differences, unused rax losses and tax eredits can be unlised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured ar the tax rates that are expected to apply to the periods when the asset is
utilized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rares (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively endcred at
the balance sheet date. Deferred tax 1s charged or credited to the profit and loss account excepr in the case of irems
credired or charged ro equity in which case it is included in equity.
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3.18

3.19

3.20

3.21
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3.23

Impairment of assets

A financial asset is assessed at each financial statement date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that it
is impaired. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if thete is an objective evidence that one or more events have
had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset. Ifa decline in fair value 15 significant or prolonged,
than there i§ an objective evidence, of impairment regardless of how long management intends to hold the investment.

The catrying amount of non financial assers is reviewed at each financial statement date to deresmine whether there is
any indication of impaitment of any asset or group of assets. If such indication exist, the recoverable amount of such
asset is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its value in use and irs fair value less cost of sell.
An impairment loss is recopnised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.

All impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of profit or loss. Provision for impairment are reviewed at cach
reported date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Change in the provisions are recognised as an
INCOME OF eXpense.

Foreign currency transalations

Transactions in forelgn curtencies are accounted for in rupees at the rates prevailing on the date of the transactions.
Monetary assers and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into rupees at the rates of exchange
which approximate those previiling at the reported date. Exchange differences are taken to the profir and loss account.

Salvage recoveties
Salvage recoveries are recognized as an asset and measured at the amount expected to be receved.
Claims

Takaful claims include all claims incurred during the year, whether reported or not, related internal and external claims
handling costs thar arc directly related to the processing and sertlement of claims.

Provision for outstanding claims (including IBNR)

A liability for outstanding claims 15 recognised in respect of all claims incurred up to the financialstatement dare which 15
measured at the undiscounted value of expected future payments. Provision foroutstanding claims include amounts in
relation to claims reported but not settled, claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) and expected claims settlement
COSts.

Retakaful recoveries against ourstanding claims are recognised as an asset and measured at the amount expecred to be
received.

The provision for claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) 1s made at the financial starement date. In accordance with
SECP circular no. 9 of 2016, the Operatar has changed its method of estimation of IBNR. The Operator now ralces
gctuarial advice for the determination of IBNR claims. IBNR claim have been estimated using Chain Ladder (CL)
methodology. The Chain Ladder (CL) Method involves determination of development factors or link ratios for each
period. These are then subsequently combined to determine Cumulative Development Facror (CDF) which represents
the extent of future development of claims to reach their ultimate level,

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial labilities within the scope of TAS-39 are recognized at the ume when the WT'O becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument and are derecognized when the WTO loses control of contractual
rights that comprise the financial assets and in the case of financial Liabilies when the obligation specified in the
conrracr is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on derecognition of the financial assets and financial
liabilities is included in the Statment of Comprehensive Income. Fair value of financial assets at discounted interest rates
are determined imually and the difference carried forward as a prepayment (staff bonus), which then is expensed out
over the period in which the services are rendered.

Takaful Surplus

Takaful surplus attributable to the participants is calculated after charging all direct cost and setting aside vanous
reserves. Allocation to participants, if applicable, is made after adjustment of claims paid to them during the period.
Management expensc

Expenses allocated to the takaful business represent divectly atriburable expenses. Expenses not dirc‘cdy allocable to
takaful business are charged to OPF and allocated on the basis of gross contribution written during the peniod.
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3.24 Qard-e-Hasna

5.1

[f there is a deficit of admissible assets over liabilitics in PTF, the Operatar from the Operatars Fund may provide Qard-c- Hasna to PTF
s0 that 'I'F may become solvent as per Takaful Rules, 2012, Qard-e-Hasna from PTT can be recovered by the Operator over any period
of time without charging any profit.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformiry with approved accounting stindards requires the use of certain crtical accounting
estimates, It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the WT'O's accounting polices, The estimates /
judgments and assocated assumptions used in the preparation of the financial statements are based on historical experience and other
facrors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the cireumstances, the result of which form the
basis of making the estimates about carrying values of assets and Labilities that are not readily apparent from other sourees.

Actual resules may differ from these estimates, The estimates and underdying assumptions are reviewed on an onpomng basis, Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that pedied, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and fumre petiods. In the process of applying the WT'O’s accounting
policies, management has made the following estimates and judgments which are significant to the finandial statements:

Note
Contribution deficiency reserve 36
Receivables related to Takaful contract = 381
Provision for outstanding claims including IBNR 320
Taxation 3.15
INVESTMENTS December 31, 2024 Drecember 31, 2023
Cost Impain_'n!:nt Carrying Cast [mpain?n.mt Carrying
/ provigsion value { provision value
Mote -—————-——— (Rupees) (RUpLes) ~mmmmmeemennannes
INVESTMENT IN DEBT SECURITIES -
HELD TO MATURITY
Operator's Fund
- Splulke cernificares 5.1 - - - 25,000,000 - 23,000,000
- - - 25,000,000 - 25,006,000

Sukub certificates having face value of Rs. Nil (2023: Rs. 25 million). These carry profic of Nil (2023: 21.25%) per annum and matured in
April, 2024,

Operator's Operator's Participant's Participant's
Fund Fund Takaful Fund  Takaful Fund
TAEAFUL / RETAEAFUL RECEIVABLES December 31 December 31, December 31, December 31,
Unsecured and considered good 2024 2023 2024 2023
{Rupees)
Due from takaful participants holders - - 6,651,715 4,608,601
Due from other takaful / retakaful operators - - 3,455,293 4819735
- - 10,107,008 0,428,336
RECEIVABLE FROM PTF
Wakala fee 1,402,265 8625121 - -
Mudasib 116,504 116,504 - -
Inter fund reeeivable 10,197,794 1,968,202 - -
11,716,563 10,709 827 - -
OTHER RECEIVABLES
Accrued Markup - 1,095,865 - -
Receivable from Alpha Insurance Company Limited - - 802,461 =
Orthers - - 85,465 -
- 1,005,865 887,926 =

8.1 This amount represents the interest accrued on the on the Sukuk held by the Operator as at December 31, 2024 ar Nil (2023: 21.25%).
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Operator's Operator's Participant's Participant's
Fund Fund Takaful Fund  Takaful Fund
9 PREPAYMENTS December 31 December 31, December 31,  December 31,
2024 2023 2024 2023
- Note (Rupees)
Prepaid retakaful contribution ceded - 9,803,237 10,630,110
10 CASH AND BANK
Cash at bank
Profit and loss account 10.1 40,804,664 25,545,371 48,778,456 9,533,696
40,804,664 25,545,371 48,778,456 9,533,696
10.1 The rate of return on profit and loss sharing accounts held with Tslamic banks during the year is 10.75% per annum (2023 11.01% to
15.75% per annum).
Operator's Operator’s  Participant's Participant's
Takaful Fund Takaful Fund Takaful Fund  Takaful Fund
11. TAEAFUL / RETAKAFUL PAYABLES December 31, December 31, December 31,  December 31,
2024 2023 2024 2023
(Rupees)
Due to takaful fretakaful payables - - 11,207,323 4,649,812
12. OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS
Commission payable 3,840,029 2,664,154 - -
Payable to Alpha Insurance Company Limited 7,380,111 3,166,670 - -
Federal mkaful fee - 492,510 219,971
Sales mx on services - - 9,040,346 2,653,293
Withholding tax payable 1,559,916 566,956 186,433 -
Accrued expenses 2,010,306 509,600 - 1,974,306
Audirod’s fee 559,600 - - -
Others 7,210 - 41,194 -
15,357,172 6,907,380 9,960,483 4,847 570
13. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
13.1 Contingencics
There are no contingencics outstanding as at Decemeber 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023,
13.2 Commitments
There are no commitments as at Decemeber 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023,
Decemher 31, December 31,
2024 2023
i4. NET CONTRIBUTION {(Rupees)
Written gross contribution 53,273,281 24,869 271
Less: Wakala fee (14,892,500) {3,218,875)
Contribution Net of Wakala Fee 38,380,781 21,650,396
Add: Unearned contribution reserve opening 15,584,797 -
Less: Unearned contribution reserve elosing (26,817,572) (15,584,797)
Contribution earned 27,148,006 6,065,599
Less: Retakaful contribution ceded 22,199,774 16,838,028
Add: Prepaid retakaful contabution opening 10,630,110 -
Less: Prepaid retakaful contrbuton elosing (9,803,237) (10,630,110)
Retakaful expense 23,026,647 6,207,918
Net contribution 4,121,359- {142,319)
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December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
15. RETAKAFUL REBATE EARNED Note = s=eeeeee- {Rupees)-—-—--—-
Retakaful rebare received or recoverable 599,957 437,282
Add: Unearned retakaful rebate opening 372,110 -
Less: Uneatned retakaful rebate closing (317,169) (372,110
654,898 65172
16. TAKAFUL BENEFITS / CLAIMS EXPENSE
Benefits / Claims paid or payable 13,307,288 100,864
Less: Oustanding claims including [BNR opening (490,482) -
Add: Outstanding claims including IBNR closing 8,437,126 490,482
Benefits / Claims expense 21,253,932 591,346
Less: Retakaful and other recoveries received 1,005,857 -
Add: Retakaful recoveries against outstanding claims - opening - -
Less: Retakaful recoveries againgt outstanding claims - closing 626,028
Retakaful and orher recoveries revenue 1,631,885 5
Net Takaful Benefits / Claim Expense 19,622,047 591,346
17. OTHER DIRECT EXPENSES
Inspection charges 348,480 1,892,991
Bank charges 6,327 8,027
Others 245,986 176,006
600,793 2,077,624
18. COMMISSION EXPENSE
Commission paid or payable 8,567,171 4,164,564
. Add: Deferred commission expense opening 2,823,172 -
Less: Deferred commission expense closing (3,282,754) (2,823,772)
Commission expense 8,108,189 1,340,792
19. DEFERRED WAKALA FEE
Gross Walcala Fee 17,777,144 8,625,121
Add: Unearned wakala fee opening 5,406,246 =
Less: Uncatned wakala fee closing {8,290,890) (5,406,240
Net wakala fee 14,892,500 3218875
20, MANAGEMENT EXPENSES
Employee Benefit cost 2,370,000 1,054,434
Legal and professional charges - 088,200
Professional Charges- I'T Related 3,540,866 2,036,123
5,910,866 4,078,757
21,  INVESTMENT INCOME
Profit on sukuks 10.1 1,567,662 3,759,392
22,  OTHER INCOME
OPF
Profit on bank deposits 5,012,472 3,558,607
PTF
Profit on bank depaosits 2,821,206 388,346
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December 31, Decemnber 31,

2024 2023
MNote e —{Rupees)—--s-e--
23. OTHER EXPENSES
Auditors' remunetation : 231 700,000 650,000
Bank Charges 11,299 7,147
Printing & stationery - 15,800
711,299 672,947
231 AUDITORS' REMUNERATION
Audit Fee 350,000 350,000
Shariah Audit Fee 150,000 150,000
Chut of Pocket Expense 200,000 150,000
700,000 650,000
24. CLAIM DEVELOPMENT - PTF
The Company maintains adcquage reserves in respect of its insurance business in order to protect against adverse future
claims experience and developments, The uncertainties abour the amount and timing of claim payments are normally
resolved within one year. The following table shows the development of the claims over a year of time. All amounts are
presented in gross numbers before remsurance.
December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
Acadentyear — =esesesseeees (Rupees} ............
Estimate of ultimate claims cost;
At end of accident year 21,845,278 591,346
Cumulative payments to date (13,408,152) (100,864)
. Liability recognised in sratement of financial position 8,437,126 490,482
25. TAXATION
For the year
- Cusrent 1,955,261 1,177,655
25.1. Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit
Profit before taxation 6,742,280 4,060,882
Tax at the applicable rate of 29% 1,955,261 1,177,655
26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Operator has related party relations with the Alpha Insurrnace company Limited. The operator in the normal course
of business carries at the transactions with the Alpha Insurance Company Limited,

Relationship and December 31, December 31,

Name of related party Transactions during the

percentage of share aiisd 2024 2023
holdmg P "“'(RHPEEB]-—-
Sratutory fund received
Aphs ]m‘l”::i: dcompml’ Parent Company - OPF . 50,000,000
' Insurance stamps - PTF = 21,810
Relationship and December 31, December 31,
Name of related party percentage of shate Balance 2024 023
holding -—--(Rupees)—---
ka1 ¢ Payble to AICL - OPF 7,380,111 3,166,670
Alpha Insurance : :
t i Patent Company Receivable from AICL -

Lifnited ;
e PTF 802,461
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27.

27.1
2711

2712

27.1.3

27.14

MANAGEMENT OF TAKAFUL AND MANAGEMENT RISK

The Operator issue contracts that transfer takaful risk or financial tisk ot both. This section summarises the takaful risks
and the way the Operator manages them.

Takaful risk management
Takaful risk .

The risk under any takaful contract is the possibility that the insured event ocours and the uncertainty of the amount of
compensation to the participant. Generally most takaful contracts carry the takaful sk for a year of one year, although in
case of marine contract, it may be of lesser year.

The Operator's risk exposure is mitigated by employing a comprehensive framewotk to identify, assess, manage and
monitor risk. This framework includes implementaton of underwriting strategies which aim to ensure that the
underwritten risks are well diversificd in terms of type and amount of the risk. Adequate rerakaful 15 arranged ro mingare
the effect of the potential loss to the PTF from individual to large or catastrophic insured events. Further, the Operaror
adopts strict claim review policies including active management and prompt pursuing of the claims and regular detailed
review of claim handling procedures and frequent investigation of possible false claims to reduce the rakaful risk.

Frequency and severity of claims

Risk associared with general takaful contracts includes the reasonable possibility of significant loss as well as the frequent
oecurrence of the covered events. This has been managed by having in place underwriting swategy, retakaful
arrangements and proactive claim handling procedures.

The retakaful arrangements against major risk exposure include excess of loss, quorta share, surplus arrangements and
catastrophic coverage. The objective of having such arrangements is to mitigate adverse impacts of severe losses on PTF's
net retentons,

Uncertainity in the estimation of future claim payments

Claims on takaful contracts are payable on a claim occuttence basis: The PTT is liable for all covered events that occur
during the term of the tkaful contracts respectively, including the event repotted after the expity of the takaful contrace

" et

An estimated amount of the claim is recorded immediately on the intimation to the Operator. The estimation of the
amount is based on management judgement or preliminary assessment by the independence surveyor appointed for the
purpose, The inital estimates include expected settlement cost of the claims. Provision for IBNR claims is determined
based on actuary advice and is estimared using Chain Ladder (CL) methodeolegy. The Chain Ladder {CL) Method involves
determination of development factors ot link ratios for each year. These are then subsequently combined to determine
Cumulative Development Factor (COF) which represents the exrent of future development of claims to reach their
ultimate level.

There are several varable factors which affect the amount and tming of recognised claim habolites. The Operator talkes
all reasonable measures to mingate the factors affecting the amount and timing of elaim setrlements. However,
uncertainty prevails with estimated claim liabilices and it is Lkely that final setdement of these liabilides may be different
from inital recogrised amount. Outstanding claims are reviewed on 2 yeatic basis.

Key assumptions

The process used to determine the assumptions for caleulating the outstanding claim resetve is intended to result in
neutral estimates of the mosr likely or expected income. The nature of the business makes it very difficult to predice with
certainty the likely outcome of any pardcular claim and the ultimate cost of notfied claims. Each notified chiim is
assessed on a separate case to case basis with due tegard to the claim circumsrtances, information available from surveyors
and historical evidence of the size of similar claims, Core esumates are reviewed regulatly and are updared as and when
new information 1s available.

The principal assumption underlying rthe Kability esnmation of IBNR and Contribution Deficiency Reserves is that the
PTIs future claim development will follow similar historical patteen for occurrence and reporting. The management uses
qualitative judgement to assess the extent to which past ocoutrence and repotting pattern will not apply in furute. The
judgement includes external factors eg treatment of one-off ccourrence claims, changes in marker factors, economic
conditions, ete,
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The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the esimaton of the cost of setting
claims already notified to the Operator, in which case information about the claim event is available, IBNR provisions are
initially estimated at a gross level and a separate calculation is carried our to estimate the size of the reinsurance
recoveries. The estimation process takes into account the past claims teporting pattern and details of reinsurance
prograsms,

27.1.5 Sensitivity analysis

The risks associated with the rakaful contracts are complex and subject to a number of vatiables which complicate
quandrative sensitivity analysis. The Operator makes various assumptions and techniques based on past claims
development experience. This includes indications such as average claims cost, ultimate claims numbers and expected loss
ratios. The Operator considets that the liability for claims recognised in the balance sheet is adequare. However, actual
expenence may differ from the expected outcome.

The claim liabilities are sensitive to the incidence of covered events and severity / size of claims. As the Operator enters
into short term takaful contracts, it does not assume any significant impact of changes in market conditions on unexpired
risks. However, some results of sensitivity testing are set out below, showing the impact on profit before tax net of
retakaful. The impact of 10 % increase / decrease in incidence of covered events on gross claim liabilites, underwriting
results, net claim liabilities, profitsbefore tax and sharcholder's equity is as follows:

December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,

2024 2024 2023 2023
Underwriting || Shareholder's|| Underwriting || Shareholder's
results equity results eguity
Average claim cost e R PRS- e s nn aan
Tire and property (234,360) (166,395) (7,983) (5.668)
Marine and transport (99,397} (70,572) - -
Motor (1,188,699) (843,976) (51,152) (36,318)
[Health (116,266) (82,549) . .
Orther classes (323,483) {229,673) - -
(1,962,205) (1,393,165) (59,135) (41,986)

27.1.6 'Concentration of risk

To optirmnise benefits fonm the principle of average and law of large numbers, geographical spread of risk is of extreme
importance. There are a number of patameters which are significant in assessing the accumulation of risk with reference
ta the geopraphical locaton, the most important of which is nsk survey.

Risk surveys are carned out on a reg_lla_r baszis for the evaluanon of physica.l hazards associated with the commmercial /
industrial/ residentdal oceupation of the insured, Derails regarding the fire separation/ segregation with respect to the
manufacturing process, storage, utlities; etc. are extracted form the layout plan of the msured facility. Such details are
formed part of the reports which are made avalable to the underwniers/ re-takaful personnel for their evaluation,

Reference 15 made to the standard construction specification as laid down by TAP (Tnsurance Association of Paldstan).
For instance, the presence of perfect party walls, double fire proof iron doors, physical separation between the building
within a insured’s prémises. It is basically the property contained within an area which is separated by another property by
sufficient distance to confine insured damage from uncontrolled fire and explosion under the most adverse conditions o
that one area.

The ahility to manage catastrophic risk is fied managing the density of risk within a particular area. For camstrophic
aggregates, the system assigns precise geopraphic CRESTA (Catstrophe Risk Ewvaluating and standardising Target
Accumulations) codes with reference ro the accumuladon of sum insured in force at any particular location agamnst natural
perils,

For marine dsks, complete underwriting details such as sums insured, mode of transport (air / inland transir), vessel
identification, sailing dates, origin and destnation of the shipments, per carry limits, acourmuilation of sum insured on 2
single voyage etc. are taken into consideration,

A number of proportional and non-proportional re-talkaful arrangements are in place to protect the net account.” Apart
from the adequate event limit which is a multiple of the treaty capacity or the primary recovery from the proportional
treaty, any loss over and above the said limit would be recovered from the non-proportonal treaty which is very much in
line with the nsk management philosophy of the Company,
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27.1.7

27.1.8

The insurers monitors concentraton of Takaful risks primatily by class of business, The table below sets out the
concentration of the claims and premium liabilities (in percentage terms) by class of business at reporting dare:

December 3, 2024 December 31, 2023
Gross claims || Net claims Gra?s Net premium | Greoss clims || Net claims (}mlss Net premium
fsbiliies || liabiiies || P || Babitiies | Gabiites || Babites | Po || fabibe
liahilities kishilitzes

1. Fire and Property Damage 3% 53% M W% 16.3% 16:3% 3% 14%
1. Marine, Aviation and Transport 7% b T 8% 010 0% 9.3% A.5%
3, Motor 4% 4% 46% 52 B3.7% B3.7% 1% [128%
4, Accidental and Health 0% % % 10% (P ihira ({4 0P
5, Others ¥ 0% 13% 8% 0.0% 0% 33% -30.7%
100% 100% 100% 100% 100.0% 00,0 L00% 1000

The Company minimises ils exposure to significant losses by obtaining re-takaful from a number of reinsuters, who are
dispersed over several geographical reptons.

The concentration of risk by type of contracrs based on single risk with maximum exposure is summarised below,

December 31, 2024 | December 31, 2023
Giossain g spgafal | et il | Net
insured insured

Fire and property 454,000,000 444,000,000 10,000,000 424,383,808 414 383,898 10,000,000
Manne, aviaton and

transporr 212,368,200 202,368,200 10,000,000 256,540,500 246,540,500 10,000,000
Health 65,000,000 63,000,000 2,000,000 0,000,000 38,000,000 2,000,000
Motor 360,000 - 360,000 - - -
Miscelleneous 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000

736,728,200 709,368,200 27,360,000 725,924,308 698,924,398 27,000,000

Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of furure claim payments

Claims on general Takaful contracts are payable on a claim oceurrence basis. The Company is liable for all insured events
as per terms and condition of the Takaful contract,

An estimated amount of the claim is recorded immediately on the indmation to the Company. The estimation of the
amount is based on management judgement or preliminary assessment by the independence surveyor appoinred for the
purpose. The initial estimates include expected settlement cost of the claims. Provision for IBNR is recorded based an
the advice of the actuary.

There are several variable factors which affect the amount and tming of recognised claim lighilities. The Cormpany tales
all reasonable measutes to mingate the factors affecong the amount and timing of claim settlements. However,
uncertainty prevails with estimated claim liabilices and it is likely that final settlement of these liabilities may be different
from initial recogmised amount. Similatly, the provision for claims incurred but not reporred is based on historic reporting
pattern of the claims other than exceptional losses. Hence, actual smount of incurred but not reported claims may differ
from the amounts estmated.

Process used to decide on assumptions

The principal assumption underlying the liability estimation of IBNR and Premium Deficiency Reserves 15 that the
Operators's future claim development will follow similar historical pattern for occurrence and reporting, The

management uses qualitative judgement to assess the extent to which past occurrence and reporting pattern will not apply
in furure, The judgement includes external factors e.g, treatment of one-off occurrence claims, changes in market factors,

.economic conditions, etc
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ALPHA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED - WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Insurance and financial sk management objectives and policies are consistent with those disclosed in financial statements

29. MANAGEMENT OF TAKAFUL AND FINANCIAL RISK
for the period ended December 31, 2024,
29.1. Credit risk i

Credit risk is the risk that arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its
obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Operator attempts to control credit risk by monitoring
credit exposures by undertaking transacHons with 2 large number of counterparties in varous industres and by
continually assessing the credit worthiness of counterparties.

29.1.1 Management of credit risk

The Operatot's policy is to enter into financial contracts in accordance with the guidelines set by the Board of Directors.
Credit nisk is managed and controlled by the management of the Operator in the following manner:

- Credit rating and / or Credit worthiness of the counter party is taken into account along with the financial background
50 as to minimize the risk of default. Collaterals are obtained wherever appropriate / relevant.

- The risk of counterparty exposure due to failed agreements causing a loss to the Operator is mitigated by a periodic
review of the credit ratings, financial statements, credit worthiness, etc. on a regular basis and makes provision against
those balances considered doubtful of recovery.

- Loans given to employees are deductible from the salary of the emplayees.
- Cash is held with reputable banks only,

To reduce the credit rsk the manapement conunuously reviews and monitors the credit exposure towards the
policyholders and other insurers/reinsurers and makes provision apainst those balances considered doubtful of recovery.

29.1.2 Exposure to credit risk

In summary, compared to the amount included in statement of assets and liabilities, the maximum exposure to credit risk
for the year ended December 31, 2024 is as follows:

December 31, 2024
Operators’' Fund Participants' Takaful Fund

Balance as 5 Balance as .
? Maximum N Maximum
per financial per financial
exposure exposure
statements statements
(Rupces)
Other teceivables - - 887,926 887,926
Takaful / retakaful receivables - - 10,107,008 10,107,008
Reinsurance Recoverable - - 626,028 626,028
Receivables from PTF 11,716,563 11,716,563 - -
Cash and bank 40,804,664 40,804,664 48,778,456 48,778,456
52,521,227 52,521,227 60,399,418 60,399,418
December 31, 2023
Operators' Fund Partcipants' Takaful Fund
Balance as . Balance as .
; Maximum ; Maximum
per financial pet financial
exposute exposure
statements statements
------- {Rupees)
Other receivables 1,095,865 1,095,865 = -
Takaful / retakaful receivables - - 9,428,336 9,428,336
Receivables from PTF 10,709,827 10,709,827 -
[nvestments 25,000,000 25,000,000 - -
Cash and bank 25,545371 25,545,371 9,533,696 ° 0,533,696
62,351,063 62,351,063 18,962,032 18,962,032
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ALPHA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED - WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

29.1.3 Impaired asset

Age analysis of the contribution due from takaful participants’ holder:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
: Gross Impairment Gross Impaitment
samacamssss (RUPEES) wremmennnnan
Upto 1 year 6,651,715 - 4,608,601 .
6,651,715 - 4,608,601 -
Age analysis of amount due from other takaful / retakaful Operators at the reporting date was:
December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Gross Impairment Gross Impaitment
————— (Rupees) =-mm-=mmemx
Upto 1 yeatr 3,455,293 - 4,819,735 '
3,455,293 - 4,819,735 -
Ape analysis of other recoveries against outstandings claims at the reporting date was:
Diecember 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Gross Impairment Gross Impairment
—m————— -- (Rupees) {Rupees) —---—nm-
Upto 1 year 626,028 - - -
626,028 - - -

29.1.4 Credit rating and collateral

The credit quality of Operator's bank balances can be assessed with reference to external credit rating as follows:
December 31, 2024

\ Shortterm  Long-term Rating
Rating Rating agency
Bank Al Habib Limited Al+ AAA PACRA
Meezan Bank Limited Al+ AAA PACRA
UBL Al+ AAA VIS
]S Bank Al+ AA PACRA

December 31, 2023

Short-term Long-term R

Rating Ratng ERERERY
Bank Al Habib Limited Al+ AAA FACRA
Meezan Bank Limited Al+ AAA PACRA

UBL Al+ AAA VIS



ALPHA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED - WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

29.1.5

29.2,

The Operator enters into re-takaful / co-takaful arrangements with re-takaful / other takaful operators having sound credit raongs
accorded by reputed credit eating agencies. The Operator is required to comply wich the requirements of dreular no. 32 / 2009 dated
October 27, 2009 issued by SECP which rcquires an insurance company to place at least 80% of their outward treaty cessions with
reinsurers rated 'A' or above by Sundard & Poors with the balance being placed with entities rated at least 'BBB' by reputable ratings

agency. An analysis of re-takaful assets relaring to outward tweaty cossions recognised by the eating of the entity from which it is relates is as
follows:

§ December 31, 2024
Amount Reinsurance P d
due from recoverics : e
FE, St reinsurance || December
takaful / || outstanding p::::’::udm 2 2l
retakaful claims
A or above 3,455,293 - 7,842,590 11,297,883
(including PRCL)
Other - 626,028 1,960,647 2,586,675
3,455,293 626,028 9,803,237 13,884,558
Drecember 31, 2023
Amount due errt?:r:lME Prepaid
from other ne ,L :-".i relnsurance December
takaful / “gmd"_ premium 31,2023
retzkaful mk::sn:ng ceded
A or above 4,819735 6,170,370 10,990,105
{including PRCL)
Other - - 4,459 740 4,459,740
4,819735 - 10,630,110 15,449,845

Concentration of credit nisk
Concentration of credir risk agses when a number of counterparties have a similar type of business activities, As a result, any change in
economic, political or other conditions would effect their ability to meet contractual oblipations in similar manner. The company manapes
conceniration of credit risk through diversification of activities among individuals, groups and industry segments.
Sector-wise analysis of contribution due but unpaid at the reporting date was:

Participants' Takaful Fund

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

{Rupees) Y {Rupees) %a
Textile and composite 354,444 9.64 24,528 0.26
Cable, engineering and sreel - - 38,460 0.41
Ohthers 3,322,950 90.36 0,360,020 09.33
3,677,394 100.00 9,423,008 100.00

Settlement risk

The Operator's activities may give rise to the risk at the time of sctddement of tansactions. Settlement risk is the risk of loss due o the
failure of an entry ro honor its obligations to deliver cash, securities or other assets as contracrually agreed on sale.

This risk is addressed more or less in accordance with the parameters set out in the eredit rsk management above,

Liquidity risk

Liquidiry risk is the risk that the Operator will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due. Liquidity risk arises
because of the possibility that the Operator could be required to pay its liabilifies earlter than expected or may face difficulty in raising funds
1o meet commitments associated with financial liabilides as they fall due under normal circumstances. To guard apainst the nsk, the

Operator has diversified funding sources and assets are managed with liquidity in mind, maintaining a healthy balance of cash and cash
equivalents and readily marketable secudties. The maturity profile is monitored to ensure adequate liquidity is maintained.



ALPHA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED - WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

29.21

2922

The following are the contractual marurities of financial liabilities:

Non-Derivative Financial Liabilities

Outstanding clims including IBNR
Takaful / re-rakaful payables
Payable to OPF/PTF

Other creditoes and acerualy - PTE
& OPF

Management of liquidity risk

December 31, 2024

December 31, 2023

Carrying Upto one year|| Greater Carrying Upto one || Greater than
amount than one amouant year one year

------------------ (Rupees) - e (<t )
8,437,126 8,437,126 ' - 490,482 490,482 -
11,207,323 11,207,323 - 4,649,812 4,649,812 -
11,716,563 11,716,563 - 10,709,827 10,709,827 B
13,838,450 13,838,450 - 8,314,730 8,314,730 -

45,199,462 45,199,462 - 24,164,851 24,164,851

The Operator's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when
due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incuering unacceptable losses or dsking damage to the Operator's reputation. Due
to nature of the business, the Operator maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining committed credit lines available. The Operator's
liquidity manapement invloves projecting cash flows and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to fulfil its obligation; monitoring
balance sheet liquidity ratios againstinrernal and external requirements and maintaining debe financing plans.

Maturity profile for financial assets and liabilities

The table below analyses the Operator's financial liabilites iaro relevant marrity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet date to maturity date and represents the undiscounted cash flows. The amount in the table are gross nomunal undiscounted casf flows
(including interest paymets). The information given below is based on the contracrural repricing on the marurity dates, which ever is cadier.

OPERATOR'S FUND
Financial Asset
Receivable feam PTE
Investments

Oither receivables

Cash and bank

As on December 31, 2024

Financial Liahilitics
Other creditors and aceruals
As on December 31, 2024

Net

PARTICIPANTS' TAKAFUL FUND

Financial asscis

Takatful / retakaful receivables
Remnsurance Recoverable
Other receivables

cash and bank

Ag on December 31, 2024

Financizal liabilities

Qutstanding claims including IBNR
Takaful / retakaful payables
Payable to OPK

Other creditors and accrual

As on December 31, 2024

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Non- Non-
Interest/ n.mrk- interest/Non- Total Interest/ ma:k interest/ Non Total
up bearing mark-up up bearing -mark-up
bearing bearing
Maturity upto Maturity Mawrity upto Marurry
One yedr upto one year One year upio onec year

. 1,716,563 11,716,563 > 10,709,827 10,709,827
= B - 25,000,000 - 25,006,000
. . - ' 1,095,865 1,005,865

40,804,664 - 40,804,664 25,545,371 - 25,545,371

40,804,664 11,716,563 52,521,227 50,545,371 11,805,692 62,351 063
- 13,797,256 13,797,256 - 6,340,424 6,340,424
- 13,797,256 13,797,256 - 6,340,424 6,340,424

40,804,664 {2,080,693) 38,723,971 50545371 5,405,268 56,010,639
- 10,107,008 10,107,008 - 9428336 9428336
3 626,028 626,028 2 =
- BR7,926 887,926 - - -

48,778,456 - 48,778,456 9,533,696 - 9,533,696

48,778,456 11,620,962 60,399,418 0,533,696 9428 336 18,962,032
. 8,437,126 8,437,126 . 490,482 490,482
- 11,207,323 11,207,323 4649812 4,640,812
- 11,716,563 11,716,563 10,709,827 10,709,827
= 41,194 41,194 - 1,974,306 1,974,306
- 31,402,206 31,402,206 - 17,824 427 17,824 427
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293  Markert risk

Market sk is the sk that changes in marker prices, such as interest rates, equity prices, foreipn exchange rates and credit spreads (not
relating to changes in the obligor's / issuer's credit standing) will effect the Operator’s income or the value of its holding of financial
instruments. the abjectve of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while
optimising the retuen on risk, ~
The Operator is exposed to interest rate risk, currency risk and orther price risk.

29.3.1 Interest rate risk

[nterest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will Huctuate beecause of changes 1 market
intercst rates. Interest rate exposure arises from balances held in profit and loss sharing accounts with reputable banks and government
securities. The Operator limits interest rate risk by monitoring changes in interest rates, Other risk management procedures are the same as
those mentioned in the credit dsk management.

Refer note 29.2.2 for the derils of maruriry analysis of financial instruments,
29.3.1.1 Senstivity analysis

At the balance sheet date the interest rate profile of the Operator’s interest-bearing financial instcument are as follows:

Operator's Fund Operator's Fund
- December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Effective Effective
Financial asset interest rate Rupees Interest rafe Rupees
Assets subjective to variable rate in % in%
-Bank balances 10.75% 40,804,664 7.5% 10 17.5% 25,545,371
Participants' Takaful Fund  Participants' Takaful Fund
December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Effective Effective
Financial asset interest rate Rupees interest rate Rupees
Assets subjective to variable rate in % in %
-Bank balances 10.75% 48,778,456 7.5% 10 15.75% 9,533,696

Fair value senstivity analysis for fixed rate instrument

The Operator does not account for any fixed rate financial assets at fair value through profit and loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates
at the reporting date would not affect profit and loss zccount and Fund of the Operator.

Cash flow senstivity analysis for variable rate instruments

‘The Operator is cxposed to cash flow interest rate dsk in respect of its balances with profit and loss sharing account with banks. A
hypothetical change of 100 basis points in interest rates ar the reporting date would have decreased / (increased) profit for the year by the
amounts shown below. Tt is assumed that the changes oceur immediately and uniformly to each catepory of instrument containing interest
rate risk. Vadatons in market interest rates could produce significant changes at the time of early repayments. For these reasons, acrual
results might differ from those reflected in the details specified below. The analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant.

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Operator's Fund Operator's Fund
Mark-up 100bps Mark-up 100bps
Increase Decrease Increase Drecrease
—-——-- (Rupees) —--——-- g L1411 ) B
Cash flow senstivity 4,080,466 (4,080,466) 2,554,537 (2,554,537)
Participants' Takaful Fund Partcipants’ Takaful Fund
Cash How sensovity 4,877,846 {4,877,846) 953,370 (953,370)

29.3.1.2 Price risk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the market prices (other than
those arising from interest / mark-up rate risk or currency rsk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual
financial insteument or its issuer, or facrors affecting all or similar Ananeial inseruments traded in the macket,

‘The WTO's strategy is to hold its strategic investments for long period of ame. Thus, WT'O's management is not concerned with shost
term price flucruarions with respect to ire strategic mvestments provided that the undedying business, cconomtic and management
characteristics of the investee remain favorable, WT'O strives to maintain above average levels of sharcholders' capial to provide 1 margin
of salety against short term equity price volatility. WTO manages price risk by monitoring exposure in these securities and implementing
the strict discipline in internal risk management and investment policies.



ALPHA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED - WINDOW TAEAFUL OPERATIONS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Market prices are subject to fluctuation and consequently the amount realized in the subsequent sale of an investment may significandy
differ from the reported marker value, Furthermore, amount realized in the sale of a pacticular security may be affected by the relative
quantity of the security being sold.

The WTO has no significant concentration of price risk.

29.3.1.3 Foreign currency risk

294

30

Foreign currency risk is the rsk that the fair value or future cash flows of financigl instruments will flueruate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The WTO, at present is not materially exposed to currency risk as majority of the transactions are carried out in Pak Rupees,

Fund management

The Operator's objective when managing capital is to safe puard the WTO's ability to continue as 4 poing concern so that it can continue to
provide returns for sharcholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong eapital base to support the sustained
development of ity businesses.

The Opentor manages its funds structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments o it n the light of changes in
economic conditions.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lLability in an ordedy transacton between market
participants at the measurement date (Le. an exit price).

Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing on the statement of assets and liabilities
date. The estimated fair value of all other financial assers and financial liabilities is considered not significandy different from book value.

The following table shows financial instruments recognized at fair value, analysed berween those whose fair value is based on:
Level 1! quoted prees in the active market for identical assets or liabilites;

Level 2: those involving inputs other than quoted prices include in level 1 that are observable for the asset or lability, either directly (25
prices) or indircetly {derived from prices); and

Level 3: those with inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs),

OPERATOR'S FUND | As on December 31, 2024 |
Heldto || Loansand EDD,:::d Foaticbil - Fair value measurement using
maturity |l receivables St liabifities Level L | Level2 | Levell

(Rupees)

Financial assets measured at fair value

Receivable from PTF - 11,716,563 - - 11,716,563 - - -

Cash und bank balances - - 40,804,664 - 40,804,664 - - -

- 11,716,563 40,804,664 - 51521227

Financial liabilities not measused at fair vidue
Orher creditors and 2ceeuals - - - 13,791,256 13,797,256 - - -
- - - 13,791,256 13,297,156 - - -

| Az on December 31, 2023 |

Fair value measurement using

Loans and | Other financial | Financial

Heldto g onttec|  susses libilities Tl it | 1oz |z
P— (Rupees)

Financial assets measured at fair value
lnvestments 25,0610, 000 - - s 25,000,000 . 25,000,000 E
Other eeceivables - 1,005,865 - - 1,095,865 - - -
Receivable from PTF - 10,709,827 - - 10,709,827 - = -
Cash and bank balances - - 25 545,371 - 25,545 371 - - -

250000000 11,805,692 25 545,371 - 62,351,063 - 25,000,000 -

Financial liabiines not measured at Fair viaue
Other coeditors and aconials = = = 6,340,424 6,540,424 . . .
= 5 = 6,340,424 6,340 424 - = =
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PARTICIPANTS' TAKAFUL FUND | As on December 31, 204
Held to Laans and ﬁf:::; " Financial Toul Thir vils seusmromest sing
maturity | receivables liabilities > Level1 ] Level2 | Level3
assets
(Rupess)
Financial asstes measured at fair value
Takaful | retakaful recoverics - 10,107,008 - - 10,107,008 - - -
Reinsurance Recoversble . 626,028 - - 626,028 . - -
Other Recemable - B27.926 - - 487,926 . - -
cashrand hznk balances - - 48,778,456 - 48,778,456 - - -
11,620,962 48,778,456 - 60,399,418 . . -
Financial liabilities not measurced at fair valoe
Pagbe to OPF - . - 11,116,563 11,116,563 - - -
Outstanding chims including [BNR - . - 8,437,126 8437126 - - -
Takaful / retakaful pagables - - - 11,207,323 11,207,313 - - -
Other ¢reditors and accruals > - - - 41,194 41,194 - - -
- 31,402,206 A02206 - - -
As on December 31, 2023
Fair value measure i
, . | Loansznd | Other financial | Financial = o
Held o maturity] . L Total
recetvables assets liabdities Level1 | Lewel2 | Lewel)
(Rupees)
Financial ssstes measured at fair value
Takeafl / reeakafil recoveries - 0428336 - - 0,428,336 .
_ cash and bank balances e : 9533 696 L 9,533,694 - - -
9428336 9533606 = 18962032 - - o
Fimancial liabilities noc measured at fair value
Payble 10 OPF - - . 10,700 827 10,709,827 = = =
Outstanding claims inchuding IBNR . 3 : 490,482 g - - -
Takaful / tetakaful payables 2 < - 40640 812 4,649,812 = > 2
DOther creditors and aconals - B - 1,974,306 L9074, 306

17824421 178427

The carrying value of remaining financia assers and financial liabilides reflected in these financial statements approximate to their value, as
there are mastly short term in mature or repriced frequently,

December  December

3 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 31, 2024 31, 2023
Number of employees at the end of the year 2 1
Average number of employees during the periad 2 1

32. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION
These financial statements have been authordzed for issue on
33. GENERAL

by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

s

Chief Execufive Officer Dire{:tt:lr Director Chairman




